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APPEARANCES

For the Plaintiffs:

PREZANT & MOLLATH
ATTORNEYS AT LAW

By:

STEPHEN C. MOLLATH, ESQ.

6560 SW McCarran Blvd., Suite A
Reno, Nevada 89509
(775} 786-3011

scmpclgbis.com

For the Defendants:

GAYLE A. KERN, LTD.

Attorneys at Law

By:

GAYLE A. KERN, ESQ.

5421 Kietzke Lane, Suite 200
Renc, Nevada 89511
{(775) 324-5930

gaylekern@kernltd. com

Dispesition

Mcllath for

Disposition

transcript,

of Original Depo: Original transcript to Mr.

signature.

of Exhibits: Attach original exhibits to original

coples to copies.

SUNSHINE REPORTING SERVICES
775-323-3411

AA2914

Page 2



R Y B N}

10

11

Mark Steppan 9/29/2008

I NDEZX
PAGE
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1 AIA DOCUMENT DATED OCTOBER 31, 2005 12
Z APPLICANT AFFIDAVIT DATED JANUARY 12, 2006 36
3 APPLICATION FOR TENTATIVE MAP, SPECIAL-USE 40
PERMIT
4 COMMUNTITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT MEMORANDUM 45
DATED OCTORBER 3, 2006
5 NOTICE OF CLAIM OF LIEN 57
6 COMPLAINT TO FORECLOSE MECHANIC'S LIEN AND 59
FOR DAMAGES
7 AFFIDAVIT OF DAVID SNELLGROVE IN SUPPORT OF 85
SUPPLEMENTAL RESPONSE TO APPLICATION FCR
RELEASE OF MECHANIC'S LIEN
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BE IT REMEMBERED that on Monday September 29, 2008, at
the hour of 1:58 p.m. of said day, at the offices of Gayle
Kern, Ltd., 5421 Kietzke Lane, Suite 200, Reno, Nevada, before
me, SUSAN CULP, a notary public, personally appeared MARK B.
STEPPAN, who was by me first duly sworn, and was examined as a
witness in said cause.

-000-

MARK B. STEPPAN,
called as a witness, having been duly sworn,

testified as follows:

EXAMINATION

BY MR. MOLLATH:

Q Would you please state your name for the record.

A Mark Bantam Steppan.

Q What 1s your current business, profession, or
cccupation?

F\ I'm an architect.

Q How lcng have you been an architect?

A I've worked in the profession since I graduated

school, and T was licensed, I believe, in 1987.
Q On or about September of 2005, who were you employed
by?

A Fisher Friedman and Associates.

Page 4
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Q Okay. And what is Fisher Friedman and Associates?
A It's an architectural firm.

0 And where are they located?

A Emeryville, California.

o) And how many architects are in Fisher Friedman?

A Currently or at that time?

Q At that time.

A And you're referring to two thousand what?

Q September of 2005.

A Okay. Around six or seven licensed architects.

Q How many were licensed in September 2005 in the state

of Nevada?

A One.

C And who was that?

A Me.

Q Okay. Who is Mr. Nathan Ogle?

A He is the vice-president of Fisher Friedman
Associlates.

] And is he licensed in Nevada®?

A No.

Q On September -- In September of 2005, had you had an

occasion, on behalf of yourself or Fisher Friedman or Mr. Ogle,
to make contact with a company called Consolidated Pacific

Development?

A A gentleman from Consolidated came into our office and

Page 5
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met with us, and that was Sam Caniglia.

Q And what was the date of that?

y:\ I don't remember a specific date. It was in the
September 'CLh timeframe.

e September '05. Now, let me backup for a little
housekeeping matter.

Do you have a file on the transaction that's the

subject matter of this litigation? Separate and apart from
your litigation file, but a file that Fisher Friedman or

yourself maintains concerning this particular project and job.

A We have many folders of documents, whether they are a
contract or copies of drawings at the cffice. That's standard
practice.

Q Okay. Now, was this -- was this file or a group of

documents created sometime after Sam Caniglia contacted your
firm in September of '057

A There would have been nothing prior to his
communicating with us.

Q All right. So the start of your document record
concerning this Reno project would have started sometime in
September of '057

A If I'm correct of that being the month, that's right.

Q Okay. Now, would that -- Would I be correct in
assuming that that file would c¢ontain all the correspondence

concerning the project between you and the developer, that

Page €
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being Consolidated Pacific?

A I cannot directly speak to all of the documents that
would be in the office. I could not tell you if all
communications between people other than myself and Sam would
be there. I would assume so.

Q Okay. So this file that starts in September of '05
would contain, I assume, any correspondence between your firm
and anykedy whe you were working with on the project?

A I believe so.

Q Okay. It would contain any correspondence with -- or
submittals éo any governmental agencies?

A I believe so0.

Q Would it contain the contractual documents between
your firm and the developer, whoever contracted with you?

A Yes.

Q All right. Would it contain any contracts with
third-party consultants that you hired, such as audio/visual
pecple, engineers, electrical engineers? In other words,
subcategories in the building profession?

F.\ They would be there if we had hired somebody.

0 Ckay. Right.

MR. MOLLATH: Counsel, do you have any problem with
arranging for the Bates stamping of the entire file of
Fisher Friedman and providing that to me?

MS. KERN: I'1l]l take a look at it first. I have no

Page 7
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idea.

MR. MOLLATH: Okay. 1'd like to have that file, in
its entirety, Bates stamped.

MS. KERN: Well, I'll take a look at it and see if
there's anything that I need to identify under privilege law.
BY MR. MOLLATH:

Q2 Okay. Now, in September of '05, when you had -- your
firm had the meeting with Sam Caniglia, who was present at that
meeting?

A If 1 remember correctly, it would be Sam, and Tony
Tamesi, representing Consolidated, and from Fisher Friedman, et
cetera, would have been Rodney Friedman, Nathan Ogle, myself,
and I den't remember if David Tritt was there or not.

Q 2nd what was discussed at that initial meeting in

September of '05 with Sam Caniglia and Tony Inozzi?

A Tamesi.

Q Tamesi, okay.

A I-a-m-e-s-i, I think.

o What was discussed at that meeting?

P The concept of deoing a fantastic project in Reno.

0 Did they tell vyou the status of the ownership of the

ground upon which that project was proposed to be developed?
a 1 cannot tell you that they mentioned at the time of
that first meeting that it was in the process of being

purchased, that that's what they were working on, or whether

Page 8
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that came in a later conversaticn.
Q Did you have an understanding at the first meeting
that they did or did not own the property that was going to be

the subject of this development?

A I do not remember at this time.
Q Okay. At any point in time subsequent to the
September 5th -- or the September of '05 meeting, did you or

your firm make a determination whether that property was owned
or not owned by Consolidated Pacific Develcpment?

A Yes. There was some point thereafter where we knew
that it was not owned at that time or currently by the people
that we were contracted in with.

Q How long after September 5th did your firm or yourself
make a determination that they did or did not own the property?

A I can't answer that, because as I just said
previcusly, I can't remember if that was discussed at the
September meeting or not. So had it been discussed in
September, that's when it would have been. Had it been after
that, it could have been later in September or in October, when
we were signing the original letters of starting to design the
project.

e Okay. But at some point in time after the September
initial engagement meeting, 1t was made aware to you that the
property was not owned by Sam Caniglia's group, it was owned by

somebody else.

Page B
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A At some point in that general timeframe.

Q Okay. Did Sam Caniglia or his group make available to
you the transactional documents by which they were going to
acquire the property from the owner?

A I do not remember seeing anything.

Q At any point in time prior to the execution cf the
contract, which was, I believe, October of 2005, the
architectural contract, did Sam Caniglia or his group indicate
to you who in fact was the owner of the property?

A I -- At this moment I don{t remember any particular
time of when that was discussed.

¢ At some point in time did you find ocut who the owner
cf the property was?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And what point in time, after the September
meeting, did you find cut who the owner was?

A I could not tell you.

e What level of detail did you know about the owner of
the property?

A T knew his name is Dr. John Iliescu, and that he was
local to Renc. But as to any more of that, I don't remember
what else might have been discussed in my presence cr nct in my
presence.

¢ Okay. How much after September of '05, if you can

recall, did you find ocut that Dr. Iliescu was the owner of the

Page 10
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property?

A As 1 said earlier, I don't know when exactly that was,
because that still goes back to the same concept of whether or
noct the people we were working with owned the property or not.

Q Okay. BAll right. Now, what relationship did you have
with Wood Rodgers concerning this project?

A They were a consultant to Consolidated/BSC, provided
services for them, I believe, for civil and helping -- and
maybe not for civil, but helping to get the entitlement process
done.

Q And when did you first come into information that Wood
Rodgers was going to be the consultant dealing with the
entitlements in Reno, Nevada for this project? In cther words,
when did they first come up on your radar screen?

A I don't really remember.

Q Okay. Now, did you have an occasion, at any time
prior to the execution of the contract in October of 2005, to
meet with any representatives of the City of Reno concerning
the project?

A Well, I don't know that that contract was executed in
October. I think that contract was executed in April of '06,
but we did have a letter of agreement to start designing in
October.

I believe at that same time, or similar to that time,

we came up to Reno to meet with representatives from the

Page 11
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planning department, walk around the site, drive arcund Reno,
present ideas to the planning department, get their take on
things.

That was a combination of Fisher Friedman and Sam and
Tony, and I don't remember whom else was up here. Possibly Cal
Bosma. And we met with a couple of people at the planning
department.

Q Was any representatives of Wood Rodgers present during
those meetings?

A I think David Snellgrove might have bkeen, but I don't
remember for sure.

MR. MOLLATH: Let's have marked as next in order an
BI2A document with Bates stamp document numbers 108 threough 132Z.
(Exhibit 1 was marked.)
BY MR. MOLLATH:

Q Lat me show you what has been marked as Exhibit No. 1,
which is an AIA document dated, con the first page, the 3lst of
Qcteber 2005, but in the body of the document it has an
execution date of April 21, 2006.

Do you see that on the very last page?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. So am I correct in my assumption from your
testimony a moment before, that the actual execution of the
Exhibit 1, BAIA Standard Form Agreement between Owner and

Architect, was April 2lst of 2006, but it was effective October

Page 12
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31lst of '05? 1Is that what I'm hearing?

A Uh-huh, uh-huh.

Q S0 on Octoper 31st of '05 --
A I'm sorry, yes.
Q So as of October 31lst of '05, this document was not

vel in existence?

A As a completed document, that is correct.

Q As a completed document?

A That's correct.

Q And it was not in existence as an executed document.
A Correct.

Q Now, was there another document or letter of

understanding or engagement that vou had with the developers of
this project pricr to the Exhibit 1 being executed on

April 2lst, 20067

A Yes.
Q Okay. Tell me about that decument.
A There was probably at least one single-page letter

discussing the general synopsis of the proposed project and
that we were going to start designing it, and it was signed by
me, and I believe it was signed by Sam, and that would have
been in October of '05.

o Okay. So that, or a variant of that document,
goeverned the relationship of the parties —- that being your

firm, your architectural firm, and the developers -- between

Page 13
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October of '05 and April 2ist of '067

A That was the starting document to get the project
started correct.

Q Okay. Why did it take a period of time from
Cctober '05 to April of '06 to get to an AIA contract document
between yourself and the developer?

Fay We worked under the agreement letter for quite awhile,
and then we started putting together the draft -- for a little
while, and then we started putting together a draft version of
the B 141, and it went off to the client and the client’'s
counsel for review. That took quite a bit of time before we
got comments back.

and then before you're done you go back and forth with
comments, corrections, back and forth modificaticns, and by the
time you reach the final agreement of all parties, including
all counsel, it ended up being towards the beginning of April,
and that's when it got signed.

o] So would I be correct te assume that in your document
file you would have a copy of these letter agreements that we
just talked about?

A I assume so.

Q Right. &And would I also be correct in assuming that
there would be copies of the drafts that went back and forth
between counsel for the client, which was Sam Caniglia's group?

A Yes.

Page 14
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Q Okay? And your firm?
Y I believe so.
Q A}l right. De you know who counsel for Sam Caniglia's

group was during this period of time Cctober of '05 through
April 2lst of '06?

) Well, part of me wants Lo say that it was Hale Lane,
but I can't remember for sure. There was a firm that
BSC/Consolidated, and I don't know which divisiﬁn of that was
talking to the counsel, was working with the counsel. There
was a lady attorney who was reviewing a lot of the information
in there, providing written suggestions. But I don't really

remember the firm name, so I could be mistaken in saying that.

Q Does the name Karen Dennison ring a bell?

A Yeah. The Karen part does, uh-huh.

Q Okay.

A Yes.

o Do you recall a point in time that you actually

started dealing with Hale Lane, in your mind, in regards to
this project?

A Not specifically. Again, if Karen was the right
person, if she was empleyed by Hale Lane, then that wculd have
taken place during the negotiations of the contract, which
would have been probably post-November '05 into late March or
so of '06, when the contract was being negotiated.

Q Okay. 3o let me see if 1 understand this: During the

Page 15
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period of time from October '05 up until April 21st, 2006, you
recall dealing with attorneys for the client.

A Correct.

Q That weould be the Caniglia group.

A Correct.

Q On the issue of the details and language c¢f the AIA
construction contract that was ultimately executed on
April 21st 2006.

A Correct.

Q Ckay. Do you recall having any dealings or
discussions with a law firm that was representing the Caniglia

group concerning the obtaining of the entitlements on the

property?

) I don't remember any specific discussions, but I did
not have all the discussiens. I was only on part of them,
50...

Q Okay. Who would best know,.in your firm, the

relationship between your firm and the client relative to the
prosecution of this project, from an entitlement standpoint and
a business standpoint, other than you? Is there somebody else
in your firm that dealt with it more than you did?

A Well, for a lot of the process, a lot of what was
going on was being handled by Nathan Ogle. Rodney was a part
tc a lot of things, but the day-to-day was more handled by

Nathan. A lot of communications back and forth were —-- between

Page 16
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Sam's group and our office, over the contract, were handled by

Nathan.
Q Ckay.
A I participated in scme of them, I did not participate

in others.

Q 211 right. Fair enough. Now, let's go to the first
page of the contract. The -- about the center of the page it
refers to BSC Financial, LLC, limited liability company, care
of Consolidated Pacific Developing, do ycu see that?

A Yes.

Q Okay. What was your understanding of who BSC
Financial, LLC, was as it relates to care of Ccnsolidated
Pacific Development?

A That was our client. It was the vehicle they were
using as a limited liability corporation to handle the project,
and that Consclidated Pacific directly wasn't necessarily doing
it. T didn't have a whole lot of conversation about that
issue, if much of any.

Q Who would have had the conversation concerning the -—-

A T don't know if there would have been much
conversation about it.

Q Was yourself ¢r as a representative cf your firm
dealing with counsel on your side? In other words, did the
architectural firm have legal counsel that was talking with

legal counsel for BSC Financial or Consclidated Pacific

Page 17
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Development?

A I believe we had counsel. I do not know for sure if
the counsels talked to each other directly, but I'm pretty sure
we had counsel.

Q Would it be fair, then, to state that the Exhibit 1,
the standard form agreement between cwner and architect dated
as of 31lst of October 2005, was the culmination of a
negotiation process between your architectural firm and its

lawyers and the lawyers in client BSC Financial Consolidated

Pacific?
A Tes.
Q Okay. WNow, during the period of time from

October 31st, 2005, to April 21st, 2006, did ycu ever have any

contact with or discuss this project with Dr. or Mrs. Iliescu?

A Personally?

Q You personally.

A No.

Q When is the first time you ever met Dr. or

Mrs. Iliescu, or either one of them?

A T have seen Dr. Iliescu at one of the case meetings
down at court here in Reno, and that was the only time that I
have seen him.

Q Okay. Do you know whether any member of your firm had
any professional centact, other than medical, with Dr. Iliescu,

on this project, relative to —-- these lawyers, you've got to be
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specific -- relative to this project between the period of

Qctober 31st, 2005, and April 21st, 20067

A I really don't know if there was any.

0 All right. Do you know of any?

A No.

0 During this same period of time, Cctoker of '05

through April of '06, did ycu have any personal contact
concerning this project with Mr. Dick Johnson on behalf of

Dr. Iliescu?

A I did not talk to him at that time, no.

Q When is the first time you talked to Mr. Johnson?

A It probably was at the same.

o At the court hearing?

A Yeah, yeah.

Q Ckay. 1In regards to this project, how many trips did

you make to Reno, concerning this project, between
Cctober 31st, 2005, and April 21st, 20067

A Are you questioning how many trips were made by
representatives of the firm or me myself perscnally?

0 I'm going to ask first as te you and then T'll ask
about the firm.

A I was —-- it was either one or two.

Q And tell me about, the best of your recollection
generally, what did you do on these cone or two trips to Reno

during that periocd of time?
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A 1 stated earlier for the record, I came up with
representatives of our firm and BSC to meet with the planning
department, discuss the project, look at the site, drive
around, check out the, you know, surrounding areas.

Q Okay. Ckay. And then T'm assuming that other members
of your firm came up to Reno on various occasions during that
period of time to familiarize themselves or do work concerning
the project?

A I don't know how many more visits were made in that
specific timeframe, but there certainly were probably some
other visits made in that time, as well as post-April --

@] Okay.

A -- by other people, vyes.

Q Dkay. So cbviously after BApril 21st of 2006 up and
through the time of the approval of the project by the City
council, there were visits alsc by you and your firm?

B There were visits, correct.

] Would your billing records show who was in town or
what services they provided during the pericd of time from
October of '05 through the time of the approval by the City
council in November of '067

A They may or may not show specifics about someone being
out of town. They would probably just be showing a record that
the person was working on a project. The timecard may or may

not say they happened toc be gone on a side visit that day or
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just go to the planning department. It's possible, but not
everybody records time sheets that way.

Q Does your staff routinely record, in job files, a
diary or a calendar of the time and work spent on a particular
day cn a project? 1In other words, transpose your daily work
calendar into the job file, so if somebody wanted to determine
what work was done on what date by what perscon by looking at a
calendar, could they do that?

A Generally not.

Q Okay. Now, I notice on the first page of the
contract you're the only one that signed this contract and the
contract is not signed by the firm; is that correct?

n It is signed by me, that's correct.

Q But it's not signed by or on behalf of Fisher Friedman
and Associates or Nathan Ogle?

A Correct.

Q Is that a function of the requirements cf the Nevada
State Architectural Board that requires a contract to be with
an architect thaf is licensed in the state?

A That's correct.

Q So the purpose for having you on this contract is the

regquirements of the state architectural board --

A Correct.
Q -- for your licensing?
A Correct.
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0 Are there any requirements of the state architectural
board as to whether unlicensed architects may do work on a
project within the state of Nevada, notwithstanding the fact
that a licensed architect has signed the contract documents?

Are you aware of any --

A No.

Q -- any regulaticns in that regard?

A No.

Q Are you operating under the assumption that you are

the architect of record for this particular job for purposes of

licensure and regulation by the Nevada State Architectural

Board?

A Are you asking the guestion as opposed to scme other
reason?

0 No.” I'm just trying to determine under what capacity

you executed Exhibit 1, which is the contract for this project.

And I'm trying to determine that one particular --

A Okay.

Q ~- understanding.

A Yes.

Q Okay. Now, what relationship, then, does

Fisher Friedman and Associates have relative to this job as it
relates to the contract that you have with BSE Financial?
A They are a design consultant to me.

Q Okay. So they -- in essence, Mark Steppan contracted
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with Fisher Friedman to de certain design and development work
related to architecture?

A Essentially.

0 Are there any contracts or letter agreements in place
that memorialize the relationship between Mark Steppan and
Fisher Friedman and Associates and Nathan Ogle or other members

of the firm, that relationship?

A I really don't remember.
Q Would that be something that you would ordinarily do?
A I don't remember those type of letters being dene in

any of the types of work in the past where we were doing work
out of state and the firm as Fisher Friedman was not licensed
in the State.

So the architect such as &A. Robert Fisher, who was the

partner, would sign the drawings and execute the contracts. I
do not remember if there was any agreement. I doubt it.

Q Do you know what the requirements of the Nevada State
Board of Architecture are relative to -- relative to

out-of-state architects that are unlicensed providing worker
services on a Nevada project through an architect of record who
is licensed?

A Yes. I believe I understénd the rules, and that's why
we've signed the contract in this fashion, and what we have
done is per the direction of the Nevada board.

Q Okay. Could you outline for me what your
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understanding of the rules that are required of you by the
State of Nevada Architecture Board that governs the nature and
form of Exhikbit 17

A T can't answer to all the rules and regulations off
the top of my head of the Nevada board; however, in order to do
a project in the state you must be a licensed architect.

Q Okay.

A Okay. 1t is allowed for nonlicensed people to work on
the project as long as there is overall supervision and
observation by the person with the license, just as in any firm

in any state that ycu're doing business.

Q Okay.

A You happen to be out of state, so the same thing
applies in Califcrnia. There's no situaticn where all members
of a firm are licensed, so everyboedy —- generally speaking,

there is a controlling perscn in the office, cor people, and
there are people underneath that do work. They are not
licensed. Tt's the same concept.

Q Okay. MNow -- and I understand that concept. I don't
necessarily disagree with you on that.

The question I have is -- is: How was that
relationship carried through in a lineal or aﬁ organizational
chart fashion, te tie the work that Fisher Friedman was doing
to you as the architect of record that supervised the work of

Fisher Friedman?
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In other words, 1'm looking to see if there is any
document chain that sets forth that relationship. 5o if the
State architectural board would come in and ask, "Well, how was
this supervision carried out,” they would be able to point to
some type of document that says this is what the relationship
is. That's what I'm looking for.

A All right. I don't know if there's a document that
addresses your guesticon.

It's carried out through the nature of the fact that
I'm an employee of Fisher Friedman Associates, I'm a director
of the corporation, and we are all in the same office. So the
supervision is handled through being in close perscnal contact
to everything, by nature.

I don't know if there's any written delineation of it
any further, and per the contract, Fisher Friedman is listed as
a design consultant. And as long as they are reviewed by me,
per the standard and practice, that generally meets the intent
of the regulation, to the best of my knowledge.

Q Where, in the contract which is in frent of you,
Exhibit 1, is Fisher Friedman outlined as a design consultant?

A It's on Page 130. It's the —-- right under the
paragraph that's "Addendum," it says, "AIA contract review
between BSE Financial," blah, blah, blah -- sorry for the blah,
klah, blah -- "Mark Steppan and Fisher Friedman Associates,

Design Consultants.”
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Q Okay. So what has kbeen done, then, is in the

addendum your relationship with Fisher Friedman has been set

forth.
A Yes, Iit's defined there.
Q Ckay. All right. I understand.

Now, why was that done in the addendum rather than in
the ATA document itself, or in the portion of the AIA document
that talks about design and contract administration?

A Part two is more about construction administration and
other issues. That type of modification would normally happen
in an addendum or supplemental conditions of a contract. I
suppose 1t could take place someplace in the body of the
contract, as well, but that's where they decided to put it.

Q Ckay. All right. Let's go, then, to the second -- I
guess, let's see, Page 3, which is Page 110. And on that page,
up in section 1.1.3.2 it says, "Sam Caniglia, BSE Financial."

Do you see that?

A Yes.

Q Did you know whether BSC Financial or-- strike that.

Did Sam Caniglia indicate to you that BSC Financial
had obtained an assignment of the contract to purchase the
property from Dr. Iliescu from Consolidated Pacific? Did he
tell you about that at all?

A I don't remember anything.

Q Would that be something that you would want to know
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about as an architect, whether a contract for purchase of the
property had been assigned to —— or belonged to an entity 5ther
than what the contracting party was?

A Yes, that would be goced to know.

Q Because if the right to purchase the property belonged
to Consolidated Pacific but the contract that you signed was
BSC and there was no consignment from Consolidated Pacific,
that, theoretically, could affect the contract rights that you
had for the services you were rendering to the project?

A I can't answer that questicn. BAs far as we knew,
Consclidated and BSC were essentially the same thing.

Q I don't want to ask you for a legal conclusion, but
would that be something that you, as an architect, would want
to know, that you're dealing —-- the person that you're dealing
with in fact has the right to purchase the property legally
that you're working on?

A A short answer is yes. But the distinction is 1f the
client you're working for tells you that it has this name or
that name, "I am in the precess of purchasing the land.”™ It's
not my concern whether he's doing that with this group or this
group as long as it gets done --

Q Uh-huh.

i -- and he obtains ownership and he continues fc use us
to do whatever work he needs on that project.

o Okay. Fair enough.
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pid you Qork with Wood Rodgers concerning the
submission of the application for the tentative map, special
use permits, and variances?

A I did not do a lot of personal participation in that
as far as direct participation.

Q Was there somebedy in the Fisher Friedman firm that
was tasked to coordinate with Wood Redgers in the processing of
the entitlements of the property?

A A lot of that was handled by Nathan.

Q Okay. 8o Nathan would have been familiar with how the

entitlement process was progressing?

A Certainly.

Q Okay. Now --

A As was I, that it was progressing.

Q Okay.

A Yes.

Q Now, tell me about you're compensation on this

project. How was that structured?
A It's structured that there's a professional fee due
based on percentage of constructicn costs per the agreement.
Q Now, on -- why don't you turn to Page 116. I have a
couple of questions here.
Exhibit A and Exhibit B, it says, "Master Fee Schedule
and Reimbursable Expenses," and Exhibit B, "Concept Design

Plans and Model Images."” Do you see that as Exhibits A and B?
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I don't have, in the documents that found their way to
my office as part of this litigation, Exhibits A or B. Do you

know what we are talking about on Exhibit A and B?

A Exhibit A is a Master Fee Schedule.
Q Is it --
A and it lists different types of employee status and

what the billing rate is. &nd it has a paragraph that
discusses what's included in reimbursables and how they are

charged. That's what that is.

Q Is that part of the exhibit that I just showed you?
A I do not see it.
0 Okay. But that would be -- probably be a document

that would be in the possession of your criginal files on this

matter?
) I would think so.
Q Okay. How about Exhibit B, the Concept Design Plans

and Model Images, what does that consist of?
A I don't know specifically. I don't remember
specifically what Exhibit B looks like, whether it was reduced

floor plans and model pictures, which is what logically it

would be.
Q Okay.
i And it might-- I don't remember seeing it attached to

this or not.

Q But that's something that would have cordinarily been
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attached to the original contract that was executed between BSC
and your firm?

A It may or may not have been included at the same time.
It may have already been provided and it was Jjust called
Exhikit B and given a cover sheet of Exhibit B. I don't really
know for sure.

Q Now, Article 1.5 kelow that, talks about the
compensation.

Am I correct to assume that 5.75 percent is the

percentage of the total construction costs that you base

your —- the company based its fee on?
FiS For this project, that is correct.
Q And that was modified from 160 million teo 180 million

in the addendums?
A Correct.
Q Now, on the SD charge, I'm assuming "SD" refers to

schematic design.

A That's correct.
9] What's included in schematic design?
A Schematic design includes the basic concept of the

project design: Site plan, basic overall building plan
layouts, schematic elevations. That's normally what's included
in schematic design.

Q And that constitutes 20 percent of the total fee

allocation?
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A That's correct,.

o And then "DD," what does "DD" stand for?

A Design development .

Q 2nd what constitutes or comprises design development
work?

A Design development is a phrase that further defines
and develops what you propose as a design and schematics. So

at that point you start bringing in more structure --
structural engineering components. You start working the
design out more completely and more accurately as you move
forward in the documentation process.

0 And the next one is "CD." That's construction
documents, I assume.

iy That's correct.

Q So basically under the DD provisions cf the
contract you would start bringing in yeur other consultants,
yvour electrical engineers, your structural enginegers, your
mechanical engineers, lighting cecnsultants, all those people to
get them up to speed on the design.

Is that a fair statement?

A Well, there are many ways of handling it. Sometimes
it happens in schematics and scmetimes it happens in DD, as you
just described. Sometimes you've already had communication
with them in schematics, but they don't come on board

officially until design development.
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Q In essence, the nitty-gritty of the project occurred

in DD and CD?

A The overall basic of the design is set up in
schematic.

Q Okay.

I The real guts of the project 1s from site coverage,

number of units, types of units, floor plans of the units, the
way the elevations look, the relationship to spaces, the
relationship to site. Those things are all set during
schematic. They may not be drawn in 5,000 drawings or they
might be done in 5,000 drawings. They are all set.

You might have done walk-throughs. You might have
done Power Point shows that show different view options for the
different elevations. There's all kinds of things that occur
in schematics that really set the parameters of the design.

The design development phase is taking it and defining them,
making that design start to work from a construction standpoint
and other things. You start fine-tuning the design you set in
schematics.

Q What porticn of the schematic design process 1is
attributable to entitlements?

A Many times entitlements are not part of the schematic
design process. Many times you don't have to get entitlements.
This particular contract included schematic design and

entitlements knowing there would be a lot of work to get this
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project approved through the city.

Q Okay. So when we refer to 3D in here under this
contract, it was contemplated SD would included not only
schematic design but also any work that was necessary to obtain
the entitlements that were architectural in nature separate and
apart from Wood Rodgers?

pa Correct. And if you look on Page 130, it further
defines that, "To obtain entitlements and approvals for the
property and proposed buildings, etc., agreement as part of the
design services and the schematic designs entitlement phases,”
and it tells you on 131, section 1.5, that, "The abbreviated
terms used in the first paragraph are as follows: They have
been adjusted."”

Q Okay.

A So schematic design includes the City of Reno and

entitlements process.

Q Now, what portion of the schematic design contract of
the 20 percent was the entitlement -- City of Reno entitlement
work?

A 1 can't put a percentage to it.

Q Well, is it --

A I mean, it's part of the whole thing. It's part of a

phase. 1It's part of the process of putting a project together
and designing it.

Q Obviously schematic design encompasses much more work
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and design work than just the entitlement process and
submissions through Wood Rodgers to get the special use permifs
énd the various approvals, correct?
A There's a lot more to SD than design and entitlement.
¢ Correct. What i'm trying to determine is, what

portion of the SD is related to or represents the entitlement

process?
A I don't think T could break the percentage out.
Q Why couldn't you break the percentage out?
A Because so much of it is looped toéether when you're

doing work for entitlements at the same time you're developing
the design. How do I make the distinction between part of
these hours was developing the entitlement drawing at the same
time I'm also developing the design? I don't know how to make
the distinction.

Q Fair enocugh. Let's assume the entitlements were
cbtained. CObvicusly additional work has to be done on the

schematic design after the entitlement.

A Not necessarily.
9] How abeout in this case?
A No. We got very complete schematic design package

that the entitlements were granted on and we were ready to move
to the next phase.
Q Now, at what point in time did you stop providing

services in the schematic design phase of this project?
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A I don't believe we stopped in the schematic design
phase of the process. We stopped after submitting the invoices
for a hundred percent schematic design, after receiving
entitlements, and we've been waiting to get the payment in
order to be able to move into design development.

Q Okay. Sc are you telling me, then, that at the point
in time that the entitlements were obtained your firm had

completed the S$D, or schematic design process?

A That's what I believe.
Q QOkay.
A Gail will correct me if she knows something to the

contrary from reading these deccuments.

Q Would your internal documents allow us to determine
whether or not all schematic design work, as contemplated, was
completed as of the date the entitlement was granted?

A I don't know that there's a direct -- that you would
find a direct relationship to November 15th, or whatever the
exact date is, but the —-- the minute that an invoice is sent
off for a hundred percent schematics —-

Q Uh-huh.

A -- and that the billings are all adjusted, or figured
out, based on that, that tells me we decided that all the work
was performed.

Q ind who would that -- who was that billing sent to?

A I'd have to look on the inveice. I don't remember who
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specifically was listed on the invoice. It might have gone to
Cal Bosma at deCal to Lry to get paid at that time. I might
have gone through Sam. I don't really remember. I don't send
out the invoices.
MR. MOLLATH: Let's have marked as next in order
No. 2, three pages called Applicant Affidavit 142, 143 and 144.
{Exhibit 2 was marked.)
BY MR. MOLLATH:
Q Let me show you what has been marked as Exhibit 2.
Hzve you ever seen the Applicant Affidavits, those

three pages that I've showed you in Exhikit 2, before today?

Fiy Yes, I've seen them.

Q Did you see those affidavits on ¢r before February of
20082

A I really don't remember if I saw them in looking

through the application package at that time or later than

that.
Q Ckavy.
A That's two years ago.
Q Okay. But you deon't have any recollecticn of
seeing -- do you have any recollection of seeing these prior to

the submissicn of the application for any entitlements for the

project?
iy I don't remember not seeing it at that time, either.
O Okay.
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A So, no, I couldn't say specifically.

C Okay. Fair enough.

Did you or any member of your firm, if you know, have
any specific contact with Dr. Iliescu concerning the execution
of the second and third pages of Exhibit 2, that being Bates
stamped Page 143 and 1447

A I'm not aware of any direct contact between anyone at
the office and Dr. Iliescu --

O Okay.

Fy —— over this. I imagine the contact would have been
to Wood Rodgers, and that we would have seen the package
multiple times that it was being produced.

o Was the Wood Rodgers package given to you in draft

form before it was submitted?

A I believe so0, vyes.

Q So you had occasion bo review —-—

A Yes.

Q ~- that prior to its submission?

A Ch, ves.

Q All right. 8o you had occasion, then, to be able to

see Exhibit 2, the Applicant Affidavits for the project, prior

to the submissicn for the entitlements for the project?

A I assume s0.
Q All right. And it's your understanding that as part
of a -- this application, that these Applicant Affidavits had
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to be part of the application package?

A I didn't have an understanding one way or the other.

o Is it something that would ordinarily be, as part of
an applicaticon package, that the owner of the property consents
to the application being submitted?

A I assume so, but the application packages are handled
in s0 many different ways that I don’'t remember seeing cne that
has this in it.

Q Well, let me ask you this: In your course of work as
an architect, have you had occasion to prepare and submit
applicatiocns to various governmental agencies seeking

entitlement for multiple pilieces of property?

A I have ncot had to do the entitlement applications
personally.

Q All right. So who —- so somebody in your firm
would -- would do the work of putting together the application
pvackage?

A It's possible, or the owner themselves did it.

0 Ckay.

A If you work for develcpers and the developer already

owns the land, then they more likely than not are geoing to do
that themselves.

o Let me cut to the chase here. Would it be your
understanding, in your professicnal career, that ordinarily an

owner of a property has to give permission te, by some type of
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authorization or document, to a governmental agency so as to
allow a governmental agency to consider and process

entitlements requested by application on their real estate?

A I believe so.
Q Okay. Now, would it be fair to say that Exhibit 2
are —- is dated January 12th and January 17th of '067
A Yes.
Q And that those Applicant Affidavits would have been in

place prior to the time that Exhibit 1, the ATIA contract, was

executed in April 21st of 20067

y2y Yes. The date is sooner, that's correct.
Q So Exhibit 2, the Applicant Affidavits, would have
been -- would have come to the surface or been 1n the process

during the period of time that vou were working under this
letter agreement or understanding between the Caniglia group
and Fisher Friedman?

MS. KERN: I'm going to object to the extent you're
asking for legal conclusion. The contract is dated as of
Cctober 2005.

MR. MOLLATH: T understand that, but the contract was
not executed in the form that we see in Exhibit 1 until April
of 2006, correct?

MS. KERN: TIf you're asking for him to answer the
simple question of whether it was executed, asked and

answered 1t was April of '0e.
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THE WITNESS: Okay.

MS. KERN: But your next guestions were going further
than that, and I'm geing to direct him not to answer because
it's legal conclusiocn.

MR. MOLLATH: Okay. We'll have marked as next in
order the application.

(Exhibit 2 was marked.)
BY MR. MOLLATH:

Q Okay. Exhibit 3 is the Application for Tentative Map,
Special-Use Permit application prepared by Woocd Rodgers.

Do you see that?

A Yes.

Q Would this be the document that -- in generality, that
your cffice reviewed prior to its submission to the City of
Renc in February of 20067

A It locks like it, but I don't know if it's complete —-

Qo And this is --

A —-— or.

Q And this is Bates stamped 145 through 200. Ckay.

Now, on the second -- on the third page, Page No. 147,
we have the applicant developers Consolidated Facific
Development, do you see that?

A Yes.

] And now we have Fisher Friedman Asscclates on the

person to contact?
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A Uh~huh .

Q Right?

Why aren't you on the person to contact since you are
the architect of record and Nathan Cgle is not and he's not
licensed in Nevada?

A Well you can have a person to contact, that doesn't
have to be the person licensed in Nevada.

However, to answer the question why I'm not listed
versus Mr. Friedman, I cannot answer why Wood Rodgers filled
the form out that way.

o Did you have occasion to look at the name of the
applicant, Consolidated Pacific, a£ the time the draft
application was presented to you?

A I don't remember specifically locking at the
front-page portion of this. I would have been looking probably
at the floor plans in relation to the other documents. I would
have been reading the front-end and relying on others reviewihg
it.

Q Okay. Do vou recall having any discussions internally
in Fisher Friedman about the fact that the application was in
the name of Consolidated Pacific Development but the contract

between you and the owner was in the name of BS3C?

A No, although the contract does say, "Care of," so0 I
don't know. This identity is similar. I don't remember or --
Q Ckay.
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A Yeah. I don't remember any conversations about it.
Q Okay. The other guestion I have is: ' If you look at
the drawings that are attached to -- Well, let's go to -- Let

me get a little more specific on this.

Let's go to Page No. 173, and I'm assuming this page
is a project data summary that is gleaned from your schematic
design as to square footage and tabulation, things like that.

A Yes.

Q and what I'm trying to recencile 1s the application
date is February 7th of 2006. And we all know that the
application was submitted, in fact, in two parts: One, 1
believe, February 1lst or 2nd, and one February 7th.

Why are the dates on the drawings dated June 1lst? If

veu go and look —- you have a date —-
A There's a whole variety of dates on here.
Q They are all subseguent to February?

A Uh-huh.

Q And if you go farther on to the end of the document,
you have April 7th, 2008. And the guestion I have for you is:
How come there are dates on all the drawings that accompany an
application of February 7th that are a number of months later

than February 7th?

A It's guite possible.
0 If you have an explanation.
S I don't know for sure other than I have a feeling
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there was -- there were additional submissions. I believe
there's other ones after February 7th.

But many times you have placeholders for the floor
plans in an application and you can refill in with more

up-to-date versions of the plans.

Q Ckay.

A It depends on the timing of everything. So many times
you ~- and many application processes you in-fill and replace
outdated sheets. That would be cne explanation, in any case.

M3. KERN: Counsel, can you tell me where you saw
April 20087

MR. MOLLATH: Yes. ©Ne¢. April 2006.

MS. KERN: Thank you.

MR. MOLLATH: Did I say '-87

MS. KEERN: Yes,

ME. MQLLATH: I'm losing my mind. It's old age
creeping up.

MS. KERN: No.

MR. MOLLATH: I understand that.
BY MR. MOLLATH:

Q Now, let me ask you this: At any time did you, as the
architect of record, and I'm assuming the supervising architect
with Fisher Friedman, make an effort to provide a copy of the
contract, that being Exhibit 1, to Dr. and Mrs. Iliescu to let

them know what was happening relative to their property? Did
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that idea ever pop into your head?
A I could not tell you if it popped into anybody else's
head.
| Q Would it be fair to say that the contract, with all
the financial details ¢f what was going to be done, the
schematic drawings, the fee schedule and éverything else, was

never provided to Dr. and Mrs., Iliescu in connection with this

project?

A I can only answer to what we may or may not have
provided. And I can say we may or may not —- I'm not aware we
provided it to Dr. Iliescu. 1 canncot speak to anybody else.

Q Fair enough. Now, in regard to Exhibit 3, the

tentative map and special-use permit application, do you know
whether that application was ever provided to Dr. and
Mrs. Tliescu at any time in the processing of this application?
A I don't -- I deo not know specifically what was made
available to them during the processing of the application or
what was in Wood Rodgers' ocffice when these things -- when the
affidavits were signed. I understand that they certainly
were -- there was a product at that time, so I cannot say what
was provided or not by others.
Q 211 right. But to the best of your knowledge,
yourself or Fisher Friedman Asscciates did not provide to
Dr. Iliescu or Mrs. Iliescu a copy of the tentative map and

special use application on their property.

Page 44

SUNSHINE REPORTING SERVICES
775-323-3411

AA2956




10

11

1z

13

14

16

i7

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Mark Steppan 9/29/2008

A No. That -- excuse me -- that is correct, we have
not. I'm not aware that we provided it, nor would it have been
normal process to do so unless requested by ocur client. Our
direct client contractually was BSC/Consclidated.

Q Did BSC/Consclidated ever require you not to provide
Dr. and Mrs. Iliescu with the contract for architectural

services or the applicatien for tentative map and special-use

permit?
A I'm not aware they asked or didn't ask.
Q Okav. Now, in the -- let's turn -- let's see, where

are we? OQkay.

MR. MOLLATH: Let's have marked as next in order the
Community Development Department memorandum and related
documents Bates stamped Iliescu 2003 through 324. And some of
these are double-szided.

MS. KERN: I have to -- I wrote down the wrong number.
I wrote down Z003.

MR. MOLLATH: I mean 203 through 324. There's too
many zercoes there.

(Exhibit 4 was marked.)
BY MR. MOLLATH:
Q Could you take a look at Exhibit 4 for a moment and
familiarize yourself generally what it contains.
A Okay.

Q Okay. I would represent to you that that coentains the
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documentation relating to the processing of the entitlements
for the property owned by Dr. Iliescu as a result of the
application for special-use permit filed February 7th of '03,
consisting of the staff report, Planning Commission, and City
council approval.

A Okay.

Q Now -- and that covers a period of time from
February 7th, 2006, to November 15th, 2006.

So what I'm telling you this about is just to focus in

on the timeframe of February 7th, 2006, which is the date of
this application, which is Exhibit 3, I believe, and

November 15th, 2006, which is the final approval from the City

council. That slice of time, okay?
A Qkay.
Q During that slice of time, I'm assuming that yourself,

Fisher Friedman, and people working on your direction were
providing architectural services to the developer pursuant to
the contract, which is Exhibit 1, and coordinating with Wood
Rodgers to obtain the entitlements.
Would that be a fair statement?

A Yes.

o) Okay. And at what point in time in this process did
the procject reoll out in become public if you recall?

A I don't remember.

Q Okay. Do you recall attending any hearings of the
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planning commission on this project? Were you at the

planning --
A I personaliy did not, no.
Q Who attended the planning commission hearing?
bl It's possible Nathan Ogle did.
o Did you attend the city council hearing?
A No.

Q Would it be a fair statement that Nathan Ogle was the
point person delegated by you under your autherity to deal with
this project?

4 Generally —-- yes, generally speaking.

Q So he would have more familiarity with how this
project progressed thrcugh the entitlement process?

A Yes, he would have more familiarity.

Q Noew, I think you told me that when you finished the
schematic drawings, $D, you sent a bill to the developer, which
was either BSC or Consolidated Pacific?

A What I thought I said was that is what happens. 1
assume we sent a hundred percent inveice, and I was using that
to point out that we were considerihg curselves complete with
the schematic design phase.

I don't have -- I don't remember seeing the invoice
directly, so I can't speak to it.

Q Dkay. HNow —-

A But I assume it was sent at some point.
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Q Would your records at your office and file reveal what

date that invoice was sent, and the contents of that invoice?

A Yes.

Q Okay. Do you recall how much that invoice was for?

A No, because a payment schedule had been agreed to
prior to the entitlements being approved. So I don't know how

the invoices were working.

Q And who agreed to the payment schedule?

A DeCal.

Q Which was Mr. Caniglia?

A Well, it was Cal Bosma, Calvin Beatty, Schleining. It

was a compination of folks, because Sam wasn't providing the
funds, so the funds were coming from other direct parties that
are part of BSC. So there had -- there was a payment schedule
agreed to by a variety of parties, all who discussed it. T
can't say, although I do know that it was Calvin and Jochn and
Cal Bosma, because the -- we were owed money for many, many,
many, many months. So we had agreed to a payment schedule that

had dates and amounts to be paid over a certain amount of

months.
o] Okay.
A And that was being -- that was being agreed to prior

to the entitlement approval on November 15th. 8o I don't know
the exact timing and nature ¢f inveicing at that time.

Q Ckay. Was that -- was that an addendum or
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modification of the contract, Exhibit 1, or was that a separate
letter agreement?

i It's just a separate discussion of payment schedule.
There's no payment schedule in the contract. It's Just a
percentage that's due at the end of the phase, so¢ that is not
in the contract.

Q Okay. At what point in time in the period of time
between October 31lst, '05, and 2pril 21st, 2006, was a payment
schedule agreed upon between you -— or I should say your firm
and the developer?

A I don't believe there was a payment schedule, because
by agreeing to the contract you agree to pay as invoiced
monthly.

0] And did they pay?

A They paid some things, they didn't pay all.

Q How much was paid under this contract, if you recall?

A I don't remember the exact number, but it's north of
400,000.

Q Mow, 1'm given to understand that scometime prior to

the final City council hearing you hadn't been paid. There was
some dispute over payment; is that correct?

A I'm sorry?

Q What T'm trying to determine 1s prior to the City
council hearing --

A Uh-huh.
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Q -- was there some discussions as to a payment
schedule?

A Yes.

Q Am I to assume that that -- sometime between October

31st of '05 and esarly November of '06 some issues arose beltween
Fisher Friedman and the developer concerning payment?

a There were issues in that the developer was not paving
his inveices probably post-May because I den't know what was
being paid up until April. There were early invoices that were
paid, so I cannot address the early portion of that timeline.

Q Okay.

A But there were ocutstanding invoices, and a payment
schedule to take care of those invoices was agreed to in I
believe it was October.

2 Did your firm or your lawyers ever contact the

developers' counsel concerning the nonpayment of these

invoices?
A I don't know.
Q Would your file have indicated whether any <f that

correspondence occurred?

A Only if it was written correspondence.

Q All right. Do you personally know whether your
lawyers or your architectural firm contacted the developer over
these invoices that weren't pald prior to May of '067?

Fi\ I don't know what was paid prior to May of '06, so I
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don't know if there would have been contact about it at that
time because they may have been paying their invoices. I don't
kncw how often they were inveiced between October of '05 and
May of '06&.

0 But cbviously at some point in time, as evidenced by
the recordation of the lien on November 7 of '06, payment
wasn't made, which necessitated the filing of a mechanic's
lien.

A Correct.

o So what I'm trying to determine is at what pocint in
time prior to the filing of the mechanic's lien did you know

there was some payment problems with the developers in this

case?

A I den't know the exact date.

Q Would vyour file reflect that?

A I don't know if you could glean that from the file.

o] Would Nathan Cgle know that informaticon?

A I don't know if that direct of an answer can be
chtained that easily. I can't answer the question.

Q Okay. That's fine. Fair enough.

Do you know whether your firm coordinated with the
lawyers for the developer relative to the entitlement process
during this period of time?

A I don't know.

Q Would Mr. Ogle know that?
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A If -—- I suppose so.
Q But you don't have any independent recollection of any
communications that occcurred between your firm or your lawyers

and the lawyers for the developer?

A During the entitlements?

Q During the entitlement process.

A For the purpcse of getting entitlements?

o For the purpcses of getting entitlements.

A I den't know. 1 don't know if there would have been.
Q Did you, as the supervising architect, become aware

that there was a payment problem going on, on this project?

A Yes.

] And when did you first discover that or become aware
of that?

A In '06, but specifically when, I don't remember.

Q Okay. Would it be —--

A It would have been probably after the contract signing
date, but I'm not positive of that.

Q And what steps did you undertake, as the supervising
architect, to remedy that situation?

A That was -- we discussed it internally, and it was
left to discussions between Rodney and Nathan and Sam and
Calvin and John and Cal, and lots of communications back and
forth. I didn't step inteo that. It was not a necessary

regquirement of me.
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Q Okay. But you were the supervising architect on the
job?

A Sure.

Q Wouldn't that be part of your responsibility?

A Not necessarily. I mean, I can be the supervising

architect, someone else can write the contract, I can review
it. It's not absolutely necessary for ﬁe to sit in on every,
single meeting that they have resolving the contract until it
gets to its final state unless I had specific concerns.

Q Okay. Did you make any suggestion or did it come into
your mind that if we are having a problem with the payment by
the developers, to contact the owners of the property, Dr. and
Mrs. Iliescu, concerning this problem?

yiy It was not something that I personally thought about,
I suppose, but I den't think it was being discussed. BAnd as I
mentioned, 1 was not the main thrust c¢f -- of doing the -- the
invoicing and the payments and things.

Q Okay.

A Qur invoicing is handled, and payments and discussions
of said, are handled by, you know, the accounting/bookkeeping
department, and as I still work for Fisher Friedman and
Associates, it's still a Fisher Friedman Associates project in
a sense, s0 there are other parties besides me that participate
in the production of a project, and that includes things such

as contracts and inveicing and things like that.
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o) Would you agree with me that at some polnt in
time between October 31st of 2005, when you first had the
meeting with Sam Caniglia, and April 21st, 2006, the date that
the contract -- the AIA contract was executed, that
Fisher Friedman, as a group or entity, knew that Dr. and
Mrs. Iliescu owned the property and it wasn't owned by
Consclidated or deCal or BSC?

A I —— yes, I'm sure that we knew that our client did
not currently own the land.

Q And -- and did you know whether Wood Rodgers knew that
Dr. Iliescu and Mrs. Iliescu owned the property and it wasn't
owned by B3C or Sam Caniglia or Conscolidated Pacific?

A I don't know that I can say how they thought about it.
I would have assumed so, but I —-

Q2 Ckay.

A -- as I had no personal discussion with them about it,
I can't speak for them.

Q Okay. So there was nothing that would prchibit your
firm from notifying Dr. Iliescu that your firm was doing work
on this project that effected his property during the period of
time of October of '05 through April of '067?

A 1 suppose you could say no, that there's nothing that
would have prohibited it. I don't know that it would have been
standard practice directly to¢ do so, but 1 don't know that -- 1

haven't heard anything that would have prohibited it.
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Q Okay. There was nothing that would have prevented or
been an obstacle for Fisher Friedman to determine, certainly by
April 21st, 2006, that the property was owned by Dr. and
Mrs. Iliescu. Would that be a correct statement?

A Uh-huh, yes.

o And certainly there would be nothing that would
prohibit or impede or otherwise interfere with Fisher Friedman
determining what the address of Dr. and Mrs. Iliescu was in
Renc, Nevada.

A I suppcse not.

Q All right. A&nd there would be nothing preventing or
inhibiting or otherwise interfering with Fisher Friedman from
notifying Dr. and Mrs. Iliescu that you had entered into a
contract with BSC to provide design services on a piece of
property that they were selling teo BSC or some other entity.
That could have been done very easily, couldn't it?

MS., KERN: I'm going to object to the extent that
you're implying, by your question, that it wasn't done. Our
records reflect that they did know about it and they knew
exactly who 1t was.

MR. MOLLATH: I'm talking about notifying him in
writing in some shape, manner, or form is something that could
have been done, certainly, by April 2ist, 2006.

MS. KERN: And I'm going to interject the -- I don't

think you're implying that, but I just want the record to be
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clear there clearly is a writing that evidences their name with
the name of the architects prior to that time. So I don't want
there to be an implication that your question is somehow
ignoring the documentation that already exists.

MR. MOLLATH: I assume you're talking about the
fly-over and the boards with the name of the architects and all
that.

M5. KERN: That's some of it. But there's also some
other additional. There's some additional documentation that
Wood Rodgers has. There's additional documentation they
executed with the names of the architects on the application,
those type of things.

MR. MOLLATH:; I understand that.

M3. KERN: Okay.

BY MR. MOLLATH:

Q But separate and apart from documents that are in the
entitlement file, all right, there is nothing that would have
prevented Fisher Friedman from knowing, certainly by
April 21st, 2006, that Dr. and Mrs. Iliescu owned the property,
and that your contracting developer did not own it, that you
could ascertain the address in Renc, Nevada, of Dr. and
Mrs. Iliescu, and you could have sent them some type of written
document or notice that you were undertaking architectural
services in connecticn with their property. That is something

certainly you were capable of doing.
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A Yes., I assume so.
MR. MOLLATH: Okay. Let's have marked as next in
order the Notice of Claim of Lien.
(Exhikbit 5 was marked.)
BY MR. MCOLLATH:

0 Okay. I'll show you what has been marked Exhibit 5,
Notice of Claim of Lien. And I'm assuming that this notice was
authorized to be filed and recorded. T should say recorded,
not filed, by vyour office to Gail Kern; is that correct?

A Correct.

Q And who authorized Gall Kern to file the Notice of
Claim of Lien from your office? Was it you or your accounting

department?

A 1t was probably a combination of Rodney Friedman and
myself.
Q Ckay. And this is a rasult of a refusal to pay

certaln agreed-upon inveoices by BSC Financial, care of
Censolidated Pacific, pursuant to the contract which is
Exhibit 1, right?

A I would change that. "Refusing," to me, implies lack
or conflict with what is owed. They weren't refusing to pay
through the fact of disagreement with fees owed. There was a
lack of payment or an inability te pay. That is different than
refusing.

0] Qkay. The distinction is well-taken.
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Now, I am also given to understand fhat there was an
amended Notice of Claim of Lien recorded after this, but I
don't have a copy of it.

A Ckay.

Q Do you know ~-- Do you know why an Amended Notice of
Claim of Lien was recorded?

A I frankly don't remember the second, no.

MR. MOLLATH: Could you provide me a copy of that, or
I assume --

MS. KERN: 1It's in the pleadings, but yeah, I'll
provide a copy.

MR. MOLLATH: I don't have it in what was given to me
by Hale Lane, so I need the amended.

MS. KERN: Sure.
BY MR. MOLLATH:

Q The Notice of Claim of Lien on -- 1 suppose,
presupposes that there was an inability to pay for some type of
reason by BSC prior to the filing of the Notice of Lien. Would
that be a fair statement?

A Yes.

Q Okay. Was any —- was any thought given by
Fisher Friedman to contact Dr. and Mrs. Iliescu to inquire of
them or informing them that BSC or the person involved in
developing the property was not paying bills?

A I don't know what Rodney or anybody else discussed on
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it.

o] Okay. ©Now, on the second page of the Notice of Claim
of Lien, Paragraph 5, it says, "The first labor and materials
furnished by lien c¢laimant to and incorporated in the project
was on or about April 21st, 2006."

Do you see that?

A Uh-huh.

Qo Why 1s that date, April 21st, 2006, inserted?

4 I assume because that's the date that Gail used from
the actual signature day on the contract.

Q All right. But what I heard from your testimony, that

work was done prior to April 21st, 2006.

A Correct.

0 Ckay. Going back into September of '05 cor Octcber of
'057

A Correct.

0 So that's an error, that April 21st, 2006, is inserted

in there?

piy I suppeose that's true.
0 Let's go te and have marked as the next in, order
which is the Complaint to Foreclose Mechanic's Lien. I guess

that's Exhibit No. 67
{Exhibit # was marked.)
BY MR. MOLLATH:

o That's Bates stamped starting with No. 568. And this
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complaint, I'm assuming, 1is the claim of Mark Steppan to
foreclose the mechanic's lien against Dr. Iliescu's and
Mrs. Iliescu's property; is that correct?

A That's what it says.

Q Now, is there a reason why you're the plaintiff and
Fisher Friedman is not the plaintiff in this case?

A To be consistent with the legal entity in Nevada.

Q Okay. Is there some type of an assignment or document
that gives ycu the right to maintain the action on behalf of
the company against Dr. and Mrs. Iliescu? In other words, the
contract is with BSC and it's with you, but then it's amended
to put the company in its place?

MS, KERN: Objection. That is not what it says. He
identified them as a design c¢onsultant instead of Mr. Steppan.
BY MR. MOLLATH:

Q All right. So are you saying you are always the
contracting party then.

A Yes.

Q Okay. And so the question I have is: Is the -- is
there some type of document that creates the obligation between
yvou and Fisher Friedman that allows you to prosecute the action
against Dr. and Mrs. Iliescu for the collection of those
monies?

MS. KERN: 1I'm going to object to the extent you're

asking for a legal conclusion. He can answer it if he
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understands the question.
BY MR. MOLLATH:

Q Okay. What I'm trying to determine is: There's a
contract that is between you and BSC, and that contract
provides that you're going to hire -- Let me get to that
language here.

Well, let's go back to Exhibit 1. I'm trying to get
my arms around this. Why don't you pick up Exhibit 1 there,
it's the AIA contract, and turn to page 130.

130 talks about a -- it says, "ARIA contract review
between BSC Financial, LLC, and Mark Steppan, AIA, and
Fisher Friedman Associates Design Consultants,” okay?

A Uh-huh.

Q Is that the formal name of Fisher Friedman Asscciates,
Design Consultant?

A No .

Q The formal name of Fisher Friedman Associates 1s
Fisher Friedman and Associlates?

A Correct.

Q So what you're intending to do here, I'm assuming from
your testimony, you are recognizing that Fisher Friedman
Associates are design consultants?

A Correct, and that's also indicated on the drawings.

Q Okay. All right. And so, essentially, there is —-

what I'm trying to find out is the relationship, contractually,
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between you as the contracting party with BSC, and ycu as the
person that has the legal right to maintain an action to
forecleose a mechanic's lien. That relationship there, as
compared to the relationship that you have with
Fisher Friedman, how do you get that linkage to tie together,
is what I'm looking for?

Let me rephrase it.

MS. KERN: Yeah.
BY MR. MOLLATH:

o Is there some type of written document or contract
that obligates you to pay Fisher Friedman for the design
consulting services rendered on this project?

A Noe. I don't believe s¢, anyway.

Q All right. Are you contractually obligated to pay
Fisher Friedman and Associates for the design consulting fees
that they did on this project if you don't collect any design
consulting fees from DY¥. Tliescu? In other words, there's a
contractual obligation between you and Fisher Friedman that if
Dr. Tliescu doesn't pay, vyou've got to pay.

A No.

Q Is there any assignment by Fisher Friedman and
Associates to you of any right to be repaid or be compensated
or otherwise obtain the monies that are due them by consulting
services from you? In other words --

A That wasn't clear.
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o Okay. Do you know of any assignment of the right of
Fisher Friedman tc¢ collect monies from or monies associated
with this job to you to allow you to, therefore, sue Dr. and
Mrs. Iliescu for these funds?

MS. KERN: I cbject to the extent you're still asking
for a legal conclusion.

The contract is with Mr. Steppan. He has -- I believe
that's the legal argument. If you're going to make the
argument that legally, under the contract, he doesn't have the
legal right to seek the compensation that's due and owing after
the contract, then I suppose that's a legal argument maybe
you're going to make.

But if you're asking him to testify with respect to
what the law is going to -- how the law is going to view the
relationship between he and Fisher Friedman, I'm not going to
let him answer. He doesn't --

MR. MOLLATH: Let me rephrase it because I'm not
asking him that,

MS. KERN: Okay.

BY MR. MCLLATH:

Q We all agree, do we not, Mr. Steppan, that there is no
contractual okligation between you and Fisher Friedman that
obligates you to¢ pay Fisher Friedman and Assoclates for the
design services they rendered on this project through you for

this particular piece of preperty to either BSC or Dr. Iliescu?
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There's no contractual agreement obligating you to pay them for
anything.

MS. KERN: 1I'm going to object. Because you're saying
at any time. I guarantee you that if Mr. Steppan is paid-under
this contract, he's under a legal obligation to make sure that
Fisher Friedman is -- receives the compensation tﬁat he's due
for the work it performed. 1If you're asking, say, nobody gets
paid, is Fisher Friedman going to sue you because they provided
design consultants to you under their contract and are they
going to sue you, I don't know which guestion you're asking.

BY MR. MOLLATH:

o] Let me ask you this: Do you know of any written
document that obligates you, under any circumstances, to pay
back to Fisher Friedman the amount of money that has been
expended on this project through the design services rendered
by Fisher Friedman through you?

A If you're asking me if there's an agreement in place
that I personally pay Fisher Friedman and Associates, the
answer is no.

Q Soc you have ne present or past liability to
Fisher Friedman for these fees?

MS. KERN: I'm going -- I'm going to object just
because I think that's ambiguous and confusiﬁg. To the extent
that he is paid on the contract, he most certainly does have an

obligation. If you could make that distinction so he

Page 64

SUNSHINE REPORTING SERVICES
775-323-3411

AA2976



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Mark Steppan 9/29/2008

understands.
MR. MOLLATH: ©Okay. I understand.
BY MR. MOLLATH:

Q I'm just looking -- the real question I'm asking is:
Is there any written document or oral agreement in place
between you and Fisher Friedman that, regardless of whether you
collect the money from Dr. Iliescu or BSC, you are personally
responsible for repayment of those charges back to
Fisher Friedman?

A To the best of my knowledge, there is no written
document that I perscnally would pay Fisher Friedman back for
funds not received in payment through the lien process or from
the client.

Q Is there any oral agreement in place between you and
Fisher Friedman?

A No.

MR. MOLLATH: Okay. Now, let's have marked as next in
order Affidavit of David Snellgrove; Document. 578.
{Exhibit 7 was marked.)
{Whereupcn a break was taken.)
BY MR. MOLLATH:

Q Okay. Snellgrove affidavit. On the second page,

Paragraph 7, there's a line starting on Line 12. It says:
"It is my reccllection that Dr. Iliescu saw

the architectural drawings as provided in
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the two applications at or about the time
of the receipt of the owner's affidavit.”
Do you see that?

A I see that.

Q Do you have any independent knowledge that Dr. Iliescu
or Mrs. Iliescu, or anvbkody asscciated as an agent of
Dr. Iliescu, saw architectural drawings on or about the time of
the owner affidavits being executed in January? Which 1is
Exhibit 2, 1 think.

A I don't have knowledge of what cther people may or may
not have done.

Q Okay. Do you have any information on anything related
to whether Dr. and Mrs. Iliescu and/or Dick Johnson, leaving
lawyers aside for a moment, had any information concerning the
work that Fisher Friedman or yourself was doing on this project
grior to the time of the filing of the lien?

. So if you're talking about the availability to see
documents at Wood Rodgers' office, and the ability to see the
presentations, or to be at any of the public meetings, or any
of the other times when the project was exhibited, discussed,
Power Points shown, et cetera, fly-throughs, et cetera, I can't
speak to whether or not they were there or not there as I
wasn't at those occurrences. There were certainly lots of
opportunities to see the project and to see the names of my

name and Fisher Friedman.
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o] So I want to be clear on this because this 1s an
important point: As 1 understand the position that you've
taken in this litigation, relative to the mechanic's lien and
relative to Dr. and Mrs. Iliescus' knowledge of the existence
of the work that yourself and/or Fisher Friedman were doing
architecturally on this project that is related toc their
ability, that being Dr. and Mrs. Iliescus' and their agents’
ability, to be able to observe by looking at public documents
and attending public hearings, that your firm was the firm that
was providing architectural work to the project. I mean, 1is
that kind of in a nutshell?

MS. KERN: He can answer -- I'm totally lost by your
question, so I don't know if he is, but --
MR. MOLLATH: I'm trying to be really careful here.
THE WITNESS: No.
BY MR. MOLLATH:

0 You don't have today, as you sit here, any specific
knowledge that somebody told Dr. and Mrs. Iliescu that
Fisher Friedman or yourself or any other architect was
providing architectural services to this project prior to the
filing of the mechanic's lien. Told.

In other words, information -- you don't have any
information, that you know of as you're sitting here today,
that you can tell me that, "Yes, I think Mr. Jones told Dr. and

Mrs. Iliescu or told Dick Johnson that Fisher Friedman and
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myself or Mr. Ogle was providing architectural services."

MS. KERN: To his knowledge. I mean, I don't want to
bind -- T don't want to limit what other information is already
out there as able to be produced with respect to other people
and then you say, oh, look, he testified that there wasn't
anycne.

MR. MOLLATH: No. I'm just talking about this
gentleman sitting in this chair today, and what T want to know
is: Does he have any information within his possession or
knowledge, as he sits here today, locking back, you know, going
back through the archives in the little gray cells, that you
know of somebody, anybody, that told Dr. Iliescu and
Mrs. Iliescu cr Dick Johnson, "Fisher Friedman Associates,
myself, or Mr. Qgle, or another architect is doing
architectural work on your property prior to the filing and
recordation of the mechanic's lien.”

MS. KERN: Qther than what you've already been
provided.

MR. MOLLATH: ©Other than, you know, what he menticned
about public documents and a Power Point presentation at public
hearings and things like that. I want to know whether he knows
of any living, breathing person, that he knows of, that told
Dr. or Mrs. Iliescu, or any one of their agents, that your firm
was doing architectural work on their project. I don't know

hew clear I can be. A living, breathing person.
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MS. KERN: Other than Mr. Snellgrove, who's given an
affidavit in this case.

MR. MOLLATH: Other than Mr. Snellgrove.

THE WITNESS: 1 don't know that I perscnally know more
about anybody else having specifically told Dr. Iliescu who was
the architect, other than David. As -- I don't knew if anyone
else did or didn't.

ME. MOLLATH: Ckay.

DCCTOR ILIESCU: My faith in human nature.

MR. MCLLATH: The only --

THE WITNESS: BRut, see, you're being very specific,
and you're being specific for a reason, and your specificity is
about my knowledge of someone specifically telling him, coming
out and saying, "Hey, these are the architects working on your
project, " or "your site," sorry.

BY MR. MOLLATH:

Q Yeah. Somebody that you personally know because you
were physically there when that person told Dr. Iliescu, or
somebody 1n the course of business in the administration of
this particular jog has teld you, "I told Dr. Iliescu about
this, where they can find these architects,” yocu know of no
other living, breathing person who may have dene that except
for Mr. Snellgrove.

A I'm not aware of any. That's not come to light

directly to me, okay? But again, I don't know -- I don't hear
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everything. There may be scmebody, so...
Q I want to know what you know today.
What I'm hearing'is the only living, breathing person
that you know of that has said in some shape, manner or form
that Dr. Iliescu personally knew who the architects was or

were, were Mr. Snellgrove. That's all you know in that

regard.

MS. KERN: Without limitation.

MR. MOLLATH: I just want to know. 1Is that a cogrect
statement?

THE WITNESS: As far as I know.
BY MR. MOLLATH:

Q Ckay. BAnd would Mr. Ogle kncw any more than you or
may know mcre than vyou?

A He may or he may not. I can't speak for that. He
hasn't told me.

Q Okay.

A I don't know that he's met Dr. Iliescu personally. He
may have seen him at the meeting. I can't say that they spoke,
and I don't know if he has heard of any other record.

Q Do you know whether any member of your organiéations,
that architectural organization down in
Emeryville California --

A Yes.

Q -- has ever spoken, at any time prior to this
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litigation, has ever spoken with Dr. or Mrs. Iliescu at any

time concerning the architectural work that was done on this

property?
A Ngt that I remember.
Q Okay. BAnd you know of no written letter, notice,

document or otherwise, that was sent by Fisher Friedman or
yourself to Dr. Iliescu, prior to the recording of the notice
of lien, that Fisher Friedman or yourself was going to lien
their property for nonpayment by the developer?

In other words, you didn't send them any notice that
says, "Hey, we are working on ycur project. We are spending
money, and if we don't get paid we are going to lien your
property."” That wasn't done, was it?

A Although, I would say we were working on BSC's project
on his property, I'm not aware of a letter.

MR. MOLLATH: Okay. Let's continue this deposition to
a point where I get all the documents. Do I need to do a
formal document production for all these documents?

MS. KERN: TIt's my understaﬁding you want whatever
file we have -- you don't want all the drawings --

MR. MOLLATH: 1 don't care about architectural
drawings or stuff from CAD or disks or anything else. I'm
talking about the hard transmittal letters, contracts, e-mails,
you know, that kind of stuff. I don't care about the drawings.

MS. KERN: And the amended claim of lien.
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MR.

application,

MOLLATH: And the ameaded claim of lien. The

the hard copy of the applicaticen for the

entitlements.

MS.

MR.

MS.

ME.

M5.

KERN: You were provided a disk.
MOLLATH: I was?

KERN: Yes.

MOLLATH: And what's on that disk?

KERN: It's the fly-by, that's been referred to as

the fly-by and the Power Point.

MR.

MS.

Okay.

MR.

MS.

MR.

MOLLATH: I've got all that.

KERN: ©Okay. Because we've produced all of that.

MOLLATH: Yeah. I know about that.
KERN: Okay.

MOLLATH: What I'm talking about is those little,

you know, paper files that are sitting in file drawers that

have all the stuff in them.

MS.

MR.

MS.

MR.

it.

MS.

MR.

litigation,

KERN: Okay.
MCLLATH: Okay. That's what I need.
KERN: Okay.

MOLLATH: And if you want to, you can Bates stamp

KERN: Yeah.
MOLLATH: But I think it's probably wise, in this

£o just give it to me --
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M5. KERN: It makes it a lot easier to Bates stamp
it.

MR. MOLLATH: -- and just Bates stamp everything.

MS. KERN: Yeah, T will.

MR. MOLLATH: &nd I probably will want to take the
deposition of Snellgrove.

MS. KERN: Okay.

MR. MOLLATH: 2and we probably --

MS. KERN: My October is a nightmare.

MR. MOLLATH: I'm going to be going to Hawaii,
anyway.

MS. KERN: I mean, it really is a nightmare.

MR. MOLLATH: Don't worry, I won't set it in Cctober.
We'll coordinate a date on that.

MS. KERN: I've got eight arbitrations.

MR. MOLLATH: That's all I've got.

DOCTOR ILIESCU: 1 appreciate your honesty. It makes
me feel better. Nothing to do with me, it's just people, and I
feel somebody that's an architect has that kind of integrity.

THE WITNESS: You're welcome.

DOCTOR ILIESCU: You can count on it from me.

MR. MOLLATH: That's all I've got for the time
being. I appreciate your time, and get you out of here an
hour early.

THE WITNESS: You're fine.
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MR. MOLLATH: Send the original to Ms.

MS. KERN: Thank you.

Kern.

(Whereupon the deposition concluded at 3:54 p.m.}
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STATE OF NEVADA )
) s5s.

COUNTY OF WASHOE )

I, SUSAN CULP, a notary public in and for the County
of Washoce, State of Nevada, do hereby certify:

That on Monday the 29th day of September 2008, at the
hour of 1:58 p.m. of said day, at the offices of Gayle Kern,
Ltd., 5421 Kietzke Lane, Suite 200, Renc, Nevada, personally
appeared MARK STEPPAN, who was duly sworn by me to testify the
truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, and
thereupon was deposed in the matter entitled herein;

That said deposition was taken in verbatlm stenotype
notes by me, a Certified Shorthand Reporter, and thereafter
transcribed into typewriting as herein appears;

That the foregoing transcript, consisting of pages 1
through 75, is a full, true, and correct transcript of my
stenotype notes of said deposition to the best of my knowledge,
skill, and ability.

DATED: At Reno Nevada this 7th day of October 2008.

Sersmi Cotp

SUSAN CULP CSR #343
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Steppan v. Tliescu Mark Steppan Page &
1 PURSUANT TO NOTICE, and on Tuesday, the 16th day of
2 February, 2010, at the hour of 10:00 a.m. of said day,

3 at 6005 Plumas Street, Reno, Nevada, before me, Janet
4 Menges, a notary public, personally appeared MARK
5 STEPPAN.
6 --000- -
.
8 MARK STEPPAN
9 called as a witness, being first duly
10 sworn, was examined and testified
11 as follows:
12
13 EXAMINATION
14 BY MR..GRUNDY:
15 Q Would you state your name, please, sir?
16 A Mark Steppan.
17 Q What 1s your office address?
18 A 1485 Park Avenue, suite 103, Emeryville,
19 California, 94608.
20 Q Where do you reside?
21 A Oakland, California.
22 Q How long have you lived in Qakland?
23 A Since 1984, so that is 26 years, I guess.
24 Q All right.
25 Have you ever lived in Nevada?
Bonanza Reporting - Reno (775) 786-7655 1111 Forest Street Reno, NV 89509
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1 A No.
2 - Q How old are you, sir?
3 A I'm 52.
4 Q Young guy comparatively.
5 A It's all relative. Everybody is young.
6 MR. WILSON: Perhaps it reveals more about the
7 guestioner than the witness.
8 MR. GRUNDY: Indeed it does.
9 BY MR. GRUNDY:
10 ) Where were you educated?
11 A UC Berkeley.
12 Q When did you finish there?
13 A 1979.
14 Q What degree or degrees did you attain?
15 A Bachelor of arts with a major in architecture.
16 o) You said 19797
17 A Correct.
18 Q And when were you first licensed or registered
19 as an architect?
20 A I don't remember exactly. I would guess it's
21 around 1987.
22 | Q Why the delay between your graduation and
23 registration?
24 A It's not a delay. Registration of an architect
25 requires a certain amount of time working in addition to
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1 taking all the licensing exams, and at that time it

2 would generally take anywhere from five to eight years,
3 nine years after graduation depending on your

4 undergraduate or graduate degree.

5 0 Do you have any other higher education besides
6 the bachelor of arts in architecture?

7 A No.

8 Q Can you give me a history of your employment

9 starting from the time of your graduation from college?
10 A I was already working for Fisher Friedman

11 Associates at the time I was in college. I started

12 full-time with them in January of 1980 and I'm still

13 presently employed by Fisher Friedman Associates.

14 Q What positions or titles have you held there?
15 A Well, everything from starting at the bottom
16 doing filing, et cetera, and drafting all the way up to
17 my current position, which is executive vice-president.
18 Q Can you go through them for me so I can

19 understand the hierarchy?
20 A Drafter, designer, job captain, project
21 architect, project manager. I don't know if there is
22 | any other title between that and executive
23 vice-president. Given the size of the office many of
24 those functions were performed at the same time and

25 we're not structured on pure category.
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~

1 Q I know from your earlier deposition that there
2 were nine or ten architects in the firm at the time of

3 | that deposition. Is that still true?

4 A No, there are currently nine people in the firm

5 total currently.

6 Q Okay.

7 And of those how many are architects?

8 A Five.

9 Q Of the hierarchy that just described starting.

10 with drafter, designer, job captain, project architect,
11 project manager, and then executive vice-president, how
12 many of those jobs were held before you became a

13 licensed architect?

14 A Probably just the drafter and job captain and

15 designer.,

16 Q So the first three are the sorts of positions

17 that are held by unlicensed or unregistered architects?

18 A Incorrect.

19 o] Incorrect?

20 A Um-hum.

21 Just by their nature and by the order of how I

22 have presented them does not make them held by
23 unlicensed architects. Typically a job captain role can
24 be held by a licensed architect, as can a designer. So

25 one of the people I have told you was licensed in the
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1 office is one of the two main designers in the office.
2 He is licensed.

3 There is no -- There is no distinct

4 correlation. The only one that is typical to be not

5 licensed is the drafter.

6 Q As I understood your answer, the three jobs

7 that you mentioned, drafter, designer and job captain,
8 are ones that you held before you were an architect?

9 A I believe so, although I'm sure the job captain
10 morphed over.

11 0 So it's not necessary within your profession
12 that those particular types of jobs be held by

13 architects, although I understand they may be from time
14 to time?

15 A Correct.

16 QO But to be called a project architect, which I
17 think is the next in the ordex that you gave me, that is
18 a job that must be held by a licensed architect?

19 A Correct.

20 Q Now, there are other titles that are held
21 within Fisher Friedman Associates beyond the executive
22 vice-president, or not beyond, but in addition to the
23 executive vice-president that have more corporate

24 sounding names like vice-president, senior

25 vice-president, executive vice-president; correct?
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1 2 Yes, there are a couple of those.

2 Q There were people who held those positions back
3 in 2005 and 20067

4 A Yes.

5 0 Tell me how those particular positions fit into
6 the hierarchy, if in fact they are part of the

7 hierarchy?

8 A I'm not sure how best to answer your question.
9 Are you talking about people -- Let me rephrase.
10 Are you asking about people that have worked on

11 this project or just in the office?

12 Q Well, my question certainly is prompted by the

13 titles that were held by some of the people that worked

14 on this project, but I'm trying to understand how Fisher
15 Friedman works in terms of its titular hierarchy, if

16 there is such a thing, and maybe there isn't?

17 A There isn't any particular hierarchy.  Other

18 people that worked on the project have titles such as

19 senior vice-president, I believe for the other two

20 people of that senior level, but that does not really

21 come into play in the role they might play. They may do
22 designer's work, job captain's work, project architect's

23 work, project manager's work.

24 0 Let me see 1f T understand correctly.
25 The initial names and positions you talked
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1 about were how the profession is arrayed, at least in

2 your firm, with regard to the jobs that they perform.

3 In addition to that these people may have other
4 positions as corporate officers. 1Is that an accurate

5 characterization of what you're trying to say?

6 A I suppose they could, but the corporate officer
7 component 1is not a necessary component of the office

8 functioning of the projects.

9 Q I understand that distinction. You define

10 people's roles by their titles within the profession,

11 but they may also have other roles as officers of the

12 corporation? |

13 A - They might.

14 Q So with that in mind, let's go back to 2005 and
15 2006 and talk about the people that were employed then,
16 the professionals or paraprofessionals, and what their

17 titles or positions were on both sides of the hierarchy?

18 A Working on this project?

19 Q Yes.

20 Let's start at the most senior and go down.
21 A Well, you would have Rodney Friedman, who is

22 the president, CEO, director of design. You would have

23 me --
24 0] Just a second.
25 A Sorry.
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1 Q Rodney Friedman held the position of president

2 of the corporation?

3 A Correct.

4 Q Okay.

5 Did he also hold an architectural type of

6 title?

7 A You could call it director of design. 1It's not

8 on a businesgss card.

9 Q Okay.
10 So he was the --
11 A He is the sole proprietor so he oversees

12 everything that goes on.
13 Q So Mr. Fisher was not engaged in the business

14 back then?

15 A No, Fisher retired around '97.
16 Q All right.
17 And by sole proprietor do you mean the sole

18 owner of Fisher Friedman Associateg?

19 A Correct.
20 Q And in terms of how long had Mr. Friedman been
21 a licensed or registered architect back in -- Well, it's

22 easier to figure from today, I guess?
23 A I don't remember when he first got licensed in
24 California.

25 0 How old is he?
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1 A Seventy-six.

2 Q Is there a relationship, a family relationship
3 between you and he?

4 A Yes, I'm his son-in-law.

5 Q So you're married to his daughter?

6 A That follows.

7 Q How long have you been married to Rodney

8 Friedman's daughter?

9 A Since 1985.

10 Q Then in terms of seniority within the firm back
11 in 2004, 2005, are you the next most senioxr?

12 A Yes.

13 Q And your corporate title then was executive

14 vice-president?

15 A Yes, it says that and director of operations on
16 the business card. It's not a corporate title. That is
17 just an architectural functioning title.

18 Q Can you explain to me what the director of

19 operators does in your firm?

20 A Oversee the operation of the firm from the

21 standpoint of things such as taking out the garbage,
22 looking at invoicing, running projects, ordering

23 supplies, handling the computer system.

24 Q All right.
25 It says --
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1 A A variety of those tasks.

2 Q Virtually all of the operations functions?
3 A A lot of them.

4 0 Igs there a board of directors --

5 A Yes.

6 Q -- at Fisher Friedman Associates in 2004,

7 2005 -- pardon me, 2005, 20067

8 A Yes.

9 Q Who was on the board of directors?

10 A Rodney Friedman, myself and his wife.

11 Q What is Mrs. Friedman's name?

12 A Shirley.

13 Q Are you still on the board of directors?

14 A Yes.

15 0 When did you become a member of the board of

16 directors?

17 A I don't remember off the top of my head.

18 Q Certainly before 20057?

15 A Yes.

20 Q Before 2000, you think?

21 A Probably not, but I don't know for sure.

22 0 Have there been other board members since you

23 became the third board member?

24 A No.
25 0 What is the form of Fisher Friedman Asscciates,
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1 is 1t a professional corporation or some other form?

2 A It's a corporation.

3 Q It's organized under the laws of California, I
4 understand?

5 A I assume s0.

6 Q Do you know if it's a professional corporation
7 or just a general corporation?

8 A I don't remember.

9 Q In Nevada at least, and I'm not a California

10 lawyer so I don't know the answer to this gquestion from
11 California's side, but here I believe in order to be an
12 owner of an architectural firm you have to be a licensed
13 registefed architect. Is that true in California, to

14 your knowledge?

15 A No, I don't know. He is a licensed architect,
16 so 1f it was true it would follow.

17 Q All right.

18 Is Mr. Friedman the sole stockholder?

19 A Yes.

20 ) After Mr. Friedman and you, who was the next
21 most senior professional employee back in 2005, 20067
22 A That level probably was equally shared between
23 Nathan Ogle and David Tritt, who I think are both senior
24 vice-presidents, but I don't remember for sure.
25 ) What is Mr. Tritt's first name?
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1 A David.

2 0 That 1is spelled T-r-i-t-t?

3 A Correct.

4 Q What are Mr. Ogle's and Mr. Tritt's ages

5 roughly?

6 A I believe Nathan is around 40 and David is

7 around 61.

8 0 You think they were both during that period of
9 time senioxr vice-presidents?

10 A I believe so.

11 Q Did they hold other titles within the firm in
12 '05, '067

13 A Given that we're not a title driven company

14 it*'s kind of hard to answer that question. They perform
15 other duties. They don't necessarily have other titles.
16 David is also a designer, so he would be categorized as
17 a designer on responses for projects.

18 0 The reason I'm interested in the titles is

19 because every example of your billing rate sheet uses

20 billing rates based upon titles, not individual names.
21 That is why I'm asking if either of these fellows held
22 other titleg?

23 A They may have held other titles for the

24 purposes of how things were billed on different projects

25 all over the history of the firm. It just depends on
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. 1 how projects are managed. They are not all the same.
2 Q So the billing rate title that might apply to

3 these two gentlemen might change from job to job?

4 A Tt might.
5 Q Okay.
6 Did they both become genior vice-president

7 about the same time?
8 A To the best of my knowledge.
9 O Back in '05 and '06 who were the next most

10 senior people?

11 A As it related to the project or to the office?

12 Q Well, let's start with as they related to the
. 13 office?

14 A Frankly I don't remember whom all we had

15 employed in 2005, 2006 that might have been next in line
16 if you were going by titles.

17 Q On the 2005 master fee schedule, are you

18 familiar with that document?

19 A I'm familiar with fee schedules, vyes.

20 0 And we will be talking about this one in

21 particular in a few moments, but the next senior person
22 below the senior vice-president is a vice-president. Do
23 | you know if for the purposes of the titles that they

24 held in 2005, 2006 anybody held that office?

. 25 A I don't remember.
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1 Q For the purposes of the fee schedule the
2 vice-president and architect III and a project manager
3 ITI all billed out at the same rate. Would it be fair

4 to assume from that those people were generally of the

5 same level of experience and hierarchy within the firm?
6 A I suppose that is reasonable.
7 0 For instamnce, on a particular job is a project

8 manager III senior to an architect III or are these just
9 interchangeable?
10 A They are somewhat interchangeable and I don't
11 set how they are used. That is a full list of possible
12 titles and positions, some of Which are used, some of
13 which are never used.
14 0 All right.
15 Then the next level down ig the architect II,
16 project manager II. Would those also be somewhat
17 interchangeable?
18 A Somewhat .
19 Q So who filled this basically level below that
20 of senior vice-president on the Reno project in 2005,
21 2006, do you know, and I'm talking about the
22 vice-president, architect III or project manager III?
23 A Well, Nathan effectively was acting as the
24 project manager. So that is a point of multi-tasking,

25 if you want to look at it.

Bonanza Reporting - Reno (775) 786-7655 1111 Forest Street Reno, NV 89509

AA3005



Steppan v. Iliescu Mark Steppan Page 19

1 0 In addition to project manager was there a
2 senior architect identified for the Reno project?
3 A I don't know how we divided out the different

4 pecple's work definitions.

5 Q Okay.

6 Did the Reno project have one designated

7 project manager?

8 A Nathan.

9 0 Was that true for the entire time that work was
10 performed on the Reno job?

11 A Yes.

12 Q Do you recall what David Tritt's role was on

13 the professional side?

14 A Probably as a designer, as far as his duties.
15 Q Okay.
16 Then who below Nathan Ogle and David Tritt

17 worked on the Reno job?

18 A I don't remember all of the people that would
19 have worked on it. Some of them include Joe Preston,

20 Amy Chu, Kuan Chang, and there might very well have been
21 others, Michael Shaffer. I really don't remember. It's
22 a relatively small office. 1It's probable that everybody
23 worked on it.

24 Q Joe Preston I think we can figure out the

25 spelling of.
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1 Amy Chu, how is her name spelled?

2 A A-m-y and C-h-u.

3 Q The other, Kuan --

4 A Kuan Chang, K-u-a-n, I think it's C-h-a-n-g.
5 Q C-h-a-n-n?

6 A C-h-a-n-g.

7 Q Thank you.

8 And do you recall what roles Mr. Preston

9 played?

10 A Not by definition of roles. He worked on

11 multiple different types of tasks, including the fly
12 through and developing the city model in the computer,

13 the City of Reno model and many other graphic and

14 computer tasks.
i5 Q What about Amy Chu, what was her role?
16 A She worked on the project doing drawings, as

17 did Kuan. They don't have specific roles.

18 Q So they would do drawings as directed by

19 someone?

20 A Generally.

21 Q And would the person that would do that

22 direction generally be Nathan Ogle, the project manager?
23 A It could be Nathan, it could be David, it could
24 be Rodney, could be me, could be Joe.

25 0 Did you hold sort of a professional role. that
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1 was defined other than as executive vice-president?

2 A I'm not sure I understand the guestion as it
3 relates.
4 Q Is there a professional role above that of

5 project manager on a particular project?

6 A Not that I'm aware of from a title standpoint.
7 Q Well, how would you define your role on the

8 Reno project as executive vice-president, and if it

9 changes over the course of time, tell me about that as
10 well?

11 A The project was being performed under my

12 purveyance as the supervising architect. That included
13 involvement from attending of meetings and meeting

14 parties and participating in decision making to looking
15 over people's shoulders and seeing 1f they were properly
16 drawing items or to telephone calls, whatever it might

17 be. It was an oversight role as is typical of someone

18 in my position.
19 Q All right.
20 Was that pretty much how you would define your

21 role from the time it started in late 2005 until the

22 time you stopped doing work in late 20067

23 A I don't know how else to define it.
24 Q I'm sorry?
25 A I don't know how else to define it.
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1 o) So there was no change in your role, I guess 1is

2 what I'm asking, at any stage along that basically --

3 A Not that I remember.
4 Q -- twelve month continuum?
5 How would you describe Mr. Friedman's role

6 during that same period of time?

7 A The director of design and the owner of the

8 firm, enthusiastic about working on a project of this

9 potential, participating in the design and meetings and
10 review of the project.

11 0 Would you say that the project was being

12 conducted under his purveyance?

13 | A Every project is conducted under his purveyance
14 to a degree.

15 Q And that he exercised some role of supervision?
16 A All of the senior parties exercise some role of
17 supervision. That is typical on any project.

18 0 Is there some way to distinguish what he did on
19 this project from what you did?
20 A Being the owner of the firm and the director of
21 design his role is inherently different than mine.
22 Q Can you be more specific than that?
23 A It's very hard to'define differences on a
24 day-to-day basis. He would participate more in the

25 designing of features of the building and I would
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1 participate more in the oversight of how things were

2 coming together. I might call the City of Reno and

3 ask -- find out how to get certain documents and he

4 wouldn't necessarily be doing that.

5 So those are different tasks that we would have
6 had during the process.

7 Q ‘Ckay, that makes sense to me.

8 By your answer do I understand that he was more
9 involved in actually creating the design of this project

10 in the early stages?

11 A Than --

12 Q Than you?

13 A Yes.

14 Q And is that his forte?

15 A Yes.

16 Q And you gave the example, I think, of things

17 that you did that he might not have, such as

18 communicating perhaps with City of Reno people?

19 A I was giving you an example of a particular

20 case where I would have called certain folks at the City
21 of Renc to try to track down some drawings and that

22 would not have been normally a task that he would have

23 done.
24 Q Is that something that he would ask you to do?
25 A Posgibly.
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. 1 Q Or --
2 A Or I would on my own.
3 Q Or Nathan Ogle?
4 A Yes, it would all depend.
5 Q Or just about anybody?
6 A Correct. It's a team environment.
7 Q In addition to your undergraduate work at Cal,

8 has there been any other industry training or education
9 that you have undertaken?

10 A Yesg, one undertakes continuing education on a
11 yearly basis to maintain AIA membership, for example,

12 and in many states the licensing of an architect

. 13 requires continuing education as well.
14 Q Is that true in California?
15 A No, it is not at this time, other than the
16 newly enacted sustainable -- I think it's sustainable

17 design and disabled access requirements that are now
18 included in something that you must do to maintain your

19 architect's license.

20 | 0 That would be in California you're saying?
21 A Correct, and in many other sgtates.
22 In addition to maintaining continuing education
23 credits for the AIA membership or for licensing in other
24 states, I have certainly participated in many seminars
. 25 and meetings to learn what I can about the profession on
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1 a yearly basis.

2 Q You presumably are a member of ATIA?

3 A Yes, I am.

4 Q How long have you been?

5 A Probably since '87 or '88 sgince I was licensed.
6 I don't remember for sure.

7 0 Other than holding a license, is there a

8 proficiency requirement to be a member of AIA? In other

9 words, do you take an extra test --

10 A No.

11 0 -- or display proficiency in any other way?
12 A The way you display proficiency is in

13 continuing to collect the continuing education credits

14 through attending seminars, filling out tests and

15 answering tests, et cetera.

16 o] Are all of the licensed or registered

17 architects in Fisher Friedman alsc members of the AIA,
18 to your knowledge?

19 A I believe so. One might not be.

20 Q There are continuing education requirements as
21 part of the AIA membership?

22 A Yes.

23 Q You were first licensed in California I think
24 you said in 19877

25 A That's what I remember.
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1 Q Am I using the right terminology here, it's a
2 licensing event rather than a registration event?
3 A I'm a registered architect with a license to

4 practice in California, for example.

5 Q Ig that two different certificates?

6 A No, it's one certificate. You take a

7 registration licensing test. I don't know if the words
8 are truly interchangeable or not.

9 Q In California you became licensed or registered

10 in 19877

11 A To the best of my knowledge.
12 o] And how about other states?
13 A I'm licensed in Oregon, Nevada, Texas and New

14 Jersey, and no, I don't know the dates of registration
15 in each of those states off the top of my head.

16 Q Since it's handy let's start with Nevada.

17 What did you have to do in ordef to become

18 registered in Nevada?

19 A I had to become an NCARB member and I needed to

20 pass a written exam.

21 Q You used a term there that I'm not familiar
22 with?
23 A National Council Architects Registration Board,

24 NCARB. Most states require you to be an NCARB member in

25 order to get what is called reciprocity from one state
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. 1 to another state. Each state has different requirements
2 for obtaining licensing in that state.

3 Q And NCARB, what do you have to do in order to

4 become a member of NCARB or recognized by NCARB?

5 A Fill out an application, show that your license
6 is in good standing, I believe, and pay fees. It might
7 be different if you're joining as you're trying to

8 become 1iceﬁsed.

9 Q Did you say that there was a test that had to

10 be taken?

11 A Not for NCARB.

12 Q So basically to become a member -- a member, is
. 13 that the right terminology, of NCARB?

14 A That's good enough.

15 Q Okay.

16 You have to apply. Are there minimum standards

17 of membership?

18 A I don't remember.

19 0 Do you have to be licensed in some state in

20 good standing?

21 A I don't remember because they have changed the
22 rules for how you are getting licensed to start with as

23 compared to when I became licensed, so I don't know.

24 Q When did you become recognized by NCARB?
‘ 25 A Probably it was prior to obtaining my first out
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1 of state license, so that is pre '05, as far as I know.

2 Q When was that --
3 A I don't remember exactly.
4 Q When was the first time that you became

5 licensed in another state?

6 A I don't remember.

7 Q Do you think it was before 20057

8 A Yes, it would have been.

9 0 Do you remember which state you became a member

10 of first?

11 A Probably Oregon.

12 Q Do you think that that event occurred sometime
13 after the year 2000°?

14 A It was after 2001.

15 Q That would have been approximately when you

16 would have become recognized by NCARB?

17 A I think so.
18 0 Why did you become registered in Oregon?
19 A We saw the potential to do some work in Oregon

20 and the person that had been licensed in many states to
21 allow Fisher Friedman to do work in other states was

22 generally speaking Fisher.

23 Q Ckay.
24 A So someone needed to take over the mantle.
25 0 Do you remember the states -- Was Mr. Fisher
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1 licensed in all the states that you are?

2 A I really don't remember. He was licensed in at
3 least eight states.

4 Q That was to allow the firm to do business in

5 those stateg?

6 A Correct. That is standard practice.

7 Q Other than Mr. Fisher before you and now you,

8 are there any other architects in Fisher Friedman

9 Associates who are registered in other states than

10 California?
11 A Not to my knowledge.
12 Q 8o basically Mr. Fisher retired and the firm

13 needed somebody to register in other states; right?
14 A That's fair.

15 Q And you were either appointed or volunteered to

16 do so, I guess?

17 A That's fair.
18 Q Which?
19 A That's fair, both.
20 Q I presume --
21 A It was logical.
22 Q It is logical, but I try not to assume anything
23 in this business.
24 A That's fine.
25 Q I presume it's Mr. Friedman that wanted
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1 somebody with multiple licenses go the firm could do

2 business in other states?

3 A As well as myself wanting the same thing.

4 Q So you passed the NCARB standards and got that
5 designation; correct?

6 A Yes, I became a member of NCARB.

7 Q And then once you became a member of NCARB were
8 you able through reciprocity simply to apply for and

9 become registered in Oregon, Nevada, Texas and New

10 Jersey? 1Is that right, New Jersey?

11 A New Jersey, correct.

12 No, for Oregon I needed to take a test in

13 Oregon on thelr laws and practice act and pass that, and
14 then if passed, if I passed it there was an oral exam
15 that was given to all the participants that passed the
16 written exam.

17 In Nevada you have to take a written exam, but

18 you don't have to go to Nevada.

19 Q I'm sorry. Let me finish Oregon first.
20 A sure.
21 Q You took a written test and then you had an

22 oral exam?

23 A Correct.
24 Q After that process you were issued a
25 registration or licensed in Oregon?
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1 A Correct.

2 Q When you went through that process, did the

3 firm have a project to work on in Oregon?

4 A No.

5 Q Have you used your Oregon license?

& A No.

7 Q Was Nevada the next state in which you became

8 registered?

9 A I don't remember.
10 Q So in Nevada you had to take a written test?
11 A Correct.
12 Q But no oral?
13 A No.
14 Q SO were there any other requirements to become

15 registered in Nevada other than to be a member of NCARB
16 and to pass the written test?

17 A Yes, you have to be a licensed member in

18 another state in good standing. That is a requirement

19 of all in order to obtain reciprocity.

20 Q That is a requirement to be a member of NCARE,
21 1s 1t not?

22 A Por my purposes I suppose the answer is yes.
23 Q What do you mean for your purposes?

24 A As I explained earlier, I don't know 1f you

25 need to be a licensed architect to be a member of NCARB
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1 when you're going through the licensing process. 8o it
2 wouldn't necessarily be a true statement to say you have
3 to be licensed. I don't know for sure.

4 Q Ckay, I understand. Thank you.

5 Did you have to f£ill out an application in

6 Nevada?

7 A I had to f£ill out an application as far as I

8 remember, vyes.

9 Q Did you list your license in California and

10 Oregon?

11 A Probably, but I don't remember. It would had
12 to have been listed for California, ves.

13 Q When did you become a registered architect in
14 Nevada?

15 A I don't remember exactly.

16 Q We will talk about this in more detail later
17 on. When you first became aware of the possibility of
18 doing work on this Reno project, the Wingfield project,
19 were you at that time a registered Nevada architect?

20 A I assume so, but again I don't remember the

21 exact timing. So logically speaking I would assume so.
22 Q Had you done any architectural projects in

23 Nevada prior to the Wingfield project?
24 A No.

25 Q So --.
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1 A Let me -- You mean me personally with the new

2 license? With my being licensed in Nevada the answer is
3 no.

4 Q Had Fisher Friedman done projects in Nevada?

5 A Yes, many years ago with Robert Fisher being

6 licensed in Nevada. That is why I needed to clarify

7 that.
8 Q Okay.
9 Can you tell me about the other projects that

10 the firm did when Mr. Fisher was licensed in Nevada?

11 A I cannot begin to remember all of them.

12 Q Do you remember cne of them?

13 A There might have been some when I was not even
14 there.

15 One of them was Green Ranch.

16 Q Green Ranch?

17 A Which is right down here.

18 Q A residential development?

18 A Yes.

20 Q That project involved the design of the

21 subdivision and amenities?

22 A It included design of the buildings on the
23 site, site plan. I don't remember if there were any
24 other amenities.

25 Q Was your firm involved in the design of the
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1 layout of that residential project?

2 A Yes, as far as I remember.

3 Q Any other projects that you recall Fisher

4 Friedman being involved in while you were employed?

5 A I worked on one, a housing project that was in
6 Las Vegas.

7 0 Do you remember the name of that?

8 A No, I can't remember the name.

9 0 Was it single family or multi-family?

10 A Multi-family.

11 Q High rise or low rise?

12 A I believe it was three stories.

13 9] Green Ranch was all single family, was it not?
14 A I believe they are townhouses. I'm not

15 positive. It's not single family.

16 Q But there were some townhouses and some gingle
17 family?

18 A No, there was no single family. I believe they
19 are multi-family dwellings.
20 Q 1 see.
21 A I think the project in Las Vegas was Kahala
22 Apartments, but I can't remember for sure.
23 Q Any other projects that Fisher Friedman did
24 while you were employed?
25 A I can't remember any others.
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. 1 Q When was the Green Ranch improvement layout
2 project roughly?
3 A Roughly 1983.
4 0 Sometime in the early '80s?
5 A Yes.
6 Q Was Fisher Friedman the sole architect on that

7 project, did all of the architectural work?

3 A As far as I remember.
9 Q Was that project completed?
10 A Yes.
11 Q Do you remember who the developer was?
12 A No.
. 13 Q How about the Las Vegas project, when was that
14 done?
15 A That would have been around '95.
16 o Did your firm take that project from concept to

17 completion?

18 A No.
19 0 What role did your firm play in that project?
20 A We did schematic designs and design

21 development.
22 Q Did somecne else take the project after design

23 development was done?

24 A Yes.
. 25 Q  Somebody else did the construction drawings and
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1 the construction management?

2 A Correct.
3 Q Why was that?
4 A That was just the arrangement that Bob, Rodney

5 and the client came up with. I don't know the reasons

6 behind it.

7 Q That is the way it was planned from the outset?
8 A Correct.
9 0 It wasn't that Fisher Friedman started the job

10 and then the developer chose to proceed with somebody
11 else?

12 A Not to my memory. Not to my knowledge.

13 Q Do you remember who the developer was of the

14 Las Vegas project?

15 A I don't remember his name.

16 Q You recall it as being the Kahala Apartments?
17 A I believe so.

18 Q C-o-h-a-1-a, phonetically?

19 A Probably K-a.

20 Q K-a-h-a-1-a?

21 A I think so.

22 0 Okay.

23 A There have been so many projects I could be

24 giving you the wrong name.

25 Q What part of town was that in Las Vegas?
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1 A I have only been there once. I don't really

2 remember.

3 Q You only visited that site once?

4 A I think so, as it relates to me personally.
5 Q I'm sorry?

6 A As it related to me personally going to the
7 site.

8 Q What was your role on the Kahala Apartment

9 project?

10 A I believe I participated in design and did the
11 drawings.

12 Q I presume from your earlier answers, and

13 correct me if I'm wrong, that you were not registered as
14 an architect in Nevada either for the Green Ranch
15 project or the Kahala project, if that is what it was

16 called?

17 A I did not need to be and that is correct.

18 Q I understand.

19 A Yes, that is correct. I did not, I was not.
20 Q Mr. Fisher was the registered architect on

21 those projects?

22 A Correct, and I don't believe that he needed --
23 You do not need to be licensed in Nevada on the Kahala
24 one as we did not do the construction documents.

25 Q You didn't do what?
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1 A We didn't do the construction documents so

2 we're not the architect of record, but I could be

3 remembering incorrectly. We would still need to be

4 licensed to do the schematic design at that time because

5 the rules change, so I don't know what they said at that

6 time. In any event he was licensed.

7 Q He was licensed?

8 A Yes.

9 Q Do you remember who the architect was who did

10 the construction drawings and administration?
i1 A No.
12 o) Do you know if the Kahala Apartments project

13 was completed?

14 A Yes.

15 Q It wag built?

16 A Yes.

17 Q Can you think of any other projects that your
18 firm, Fisher Friedman Associates, worked on during the

19 time you were an employee of the firm in Nevada, besides
20 the two we have talked about?

21 A Not that I can think of at this moment.

22 Q What was the next state that you became

23 registered in, Texas or New Jersey?

24 A I frankly don't remember which was next. Both

25 were close to each other, so --
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1 Q Why did you seek registration in Texas?

2 A Because Rodney and Nathan and I were talking

3 about the possibility of doing projects in other states
4 and they were getting some feelers or seeing there were
5 some interesting looking projects in the other states

6 and we used to do work in those states.

7 Q And you used to do work in those states when

8 Mr. Fisher had multiple licenses?

9 A Correct.

10 Q So you had some experience, the firm did?

11 A Yes.

12 0 Do you recall what you had to do to become

13 registered in Texas?

14 A I don't think I had to do anything other than
15 pay the fees.

16 Q How about in New Jersey?

17 A The same thing, I believe.

18 Q Have you ever used your license in Texas or New
19 Jersey?
20 A No.
21 Q Are there any other states that you have been
22 registered or licensed in?

23 A No.

24 Q So is it fair to say, sir, that the only
25 project outside of the State of California that you have
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1 been involved with as a licensed architect has been the
2 Wingfield project in Reno?
3 A If you're asking me if there is any project

4 other than Wingfield that has fallen under my name the

5 answer 1s no.
6 The question you asked is any other project
7 that I have been involved in out of state as a licensed

8 architect. So yes, I have been involved in other
9 projects as a licensed architect because I participated
10 in other projects. That doesn't mean that they are
11 under my name. That is just the distinction of the
12 question.
13 Q Perhaps my question should have been more
14 artful.
15 A That is okay. I just wanted to make sure that
16 you understand.
17 Q So the only project that you have been the
18 licensed responsible architect with Fisher Friedman
19 outside the State of California has been the Wingfield
20 project?
21 A Correct.
22 o) Have you ever had to respond to a disciplinary

23 complaint in any state?

24 A I have not.
25 Q Fisher Friedman, does it carry a license or a
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. 1 registration in California?

2 A It's a corporation in California. I don't know
3 if it's required to have anything else.

4 Q So you don't know if as a corporation

5 consisting of architects owned by an architect there is
6 a separate license or registration that is regquired in

7 California?

8 A I don't know.

9 Q I understand correctly that you are not and

10 have not been a principal or an owner in Fisher

11 FPriedman?

12 A I have not been an owner of Fisher Friedman,
. 13 that is correct.
14 Q Do you have any contract or agreement that may

15 allow you to become an owner in the future? I'm not

16 talking about expectations or hopes --

17 A No.
18 Q -~ or estate plans?
19 Has there been any period of time since you

20 went to work for Fisher Friedman that you had a break in

21 service, that you have worked someplace else or taken
22 time off for any significant amount of time?
23 A No.
24 Q I may have asked you this, but is there any
. 25 other architect within Fisher Friedman that owns a
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. 1 registration or a license in any other state but
2 California?
3 A Yes, you did ask me. The answer is not to my

4 knowledge.

5 Q Thank vou.

6 Within your firm what do you call the person

7 who has immediate and overall supervision of a specific
8 job or project?

9 A I'm not sure how best to answer that question.

10 Are you asking as a title that we would call that

11 person?

12 ) I'm not particularly title driven either. How
. 13 do you define the person who has the primary

14 responsibility to carry through a particular

15 architectural job at Fisher Friedman, is that a project
16 manager or something else?

17 A It could be a variety of things. I don't

18 really care what it's called. We have never really

19 particularly cared what it's called, but it could be

20 project manager, could be project architect, could be
21 designer. It just varies. There is no way to pigeon

22 hole it into one thing given the size of the firm.

23 0 So there is nobody who is recognized within the
24 firm as being the person who ig responsible for seeing
. 25 that a job gets performed properly and done right and
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1 completed and all of those things?

2 A That wasn't the question that you asked. You
3 asked if there was a title for someocne.

4 Q Let me ask that question then.

5 A Generally speaking I oversee all the projects.
6 Q What authority do you have with regard to a

7 project? For instance, do you have the authority to

8 designate a project manager?

9 A Sure.

10 Q Do you do that?

11 A Generally that's me.

12 Q Help me understand why in some projects you as
13 the senior -- as the executive vice-president might have

14 a project manager on one job and not on another other
15 than yourself?

16 A Because I might be having too many jobs to do
17 the same role on every single one.

18 Q So if there are too many jobs open in the

19 office such that you can't be the primary responsible
20 person on each job, in that instance you would appoint a
21 project manager?

22 A I would probably phrase it differently, but
23 there might be times when -- that there is a project
24 over here that requires a project manager on a daily

25 basis, 95 percent of his time associated to that job,
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1 and if I have three jobs I can't give 95 percent of my
2 time. My five percent might still be the standard

3 oversight role.

4 @) But there are some jobs in which there is no
5 project manager identified?

6 A It has probably happened, sure.

7 Q There are some in which you specifically in the
8 eyves of the owner or developer, whoever your client is,
9 there are some jobs in which you take on that title?
10 A Correct.

11 Q But is the default position that you're the
12 project manager on a job unless you have too many open
13 projects going at any one time?
14 A Maybe currently, but in the years past when
15 there was a larger staff that might not have been
16 exactly true. There might have been other project

17 managers that would have picked up certain types of

18 projects.

19 Q Does Rodney Friedman ever serve as project
20 manager of a project?
21 MS. KERN: What time frame, ever or now?

22 BY MR. GRUNDY:

23 Q During your employment?
24 A Yes, probably.
25 Q In the last ten vyears?
Bonanza Reporting - Reno (775) 786-7655 1111 Forest Street Reno, NV 89509

AA3031



Steppan v. Iliescu Mark Steppan Page 45

. 1 A Maybe there might have been a project or two

2 where he started as the project manager, the main

3 contact with the client until the project got to a

4 certain peint in the development and then handed it over
5 to other people to continue doing the actual rest of the
6 drawings and further development of the project, so it

7 is certainly possible.

8 Q How long have you been executive

9 vice-president?

10 A I don't know, it might have occurred around

11 '01, '02, something like that.

12 0 Did anyone hold that office before you took it?
. 13 A There were more than one executive

14 vice-presidents for a while, yes. So I did not take a
15 role from someone else.

16 Q Is there anyone other than Mr. Friedman

17 perhaps, and I'm not asking whether he ever held the
18 job, but is there anybody who is currently employed at
19 Fisher Friedman who held the position of executive

20 vice-president besides you?

21 A No.

22 0 What is the biggest Fisher Friedman has ever

23 been in terms of the number of professionals employed?

24 A I don't know how many the number of
. 25 professionals would have been. The largest the firm has
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1 ever been 1s approximately 85 people.

2 Q And when was that, when was the heyday in terms

3 of size?

4 A I think it reached that size arcund 'B83.

5 0 You told me that currently the firm has nine

6 employees?

7 A Correct.

8 Q Five of whom are architects.

9 In 2005 and 2006 what was the size of the firm?
10 A I don't remember. It would have been more than
11 15, I think.

12 0 Has the firm always been located in the east
13 bay area?
14 A No, it was started in '64 in San Francisco and
15 was 1in San Francigco until 2001 when we moved to
16 Emeryville.
17 Q I see.
18 Roughly how many employees were there in 2001
19 when you moved?
20 A Somewhere between 32 and 40.
21 Q Can you explain how it happened that the firm
22 went from 32 to 40 people in 2001 and was down to 15 by
23 20057
24 A Quantity of work decreased. Some people
25 elected to go to other firms and we elected to not
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1 replace them as the remaining staff was able to handle
2 all the workload, and even as the staff continued to

3 reduce we were able to handle the workload.

4 Q Was there some large defection of people? 1

5 mean, was there an instance like in my firm a few years
6 ago where the firm kind of split and some senior people
7 went one way and some pecople went another, did that

8 happen to Fisher Friedman after the turn of the century?
9 A No, the main thing that happened in a lot of
10 ways was 9/11. That put a kerplunk on many of our

11 projects.

12 0) So the market, you're saying, is the principal
13 reason you think that the firm's business has declined?
14 A Correct.

15 Q Since 2001, since you moved to the east bay,
16 where would the Wingfield project fit in terms of size?
17 So since 2001 to 2010 was Wingfield one of the
18 bigger projects, one of the smaller projects, or maybe
19 right in the middle?
20 A It would have been one of the largest in terms

21 of construction costs.

22 Q One of the largest?

23 A Probably the largest. I don't remember for

24 sure.

25 o) Other than the office in San Francisco, which
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1 moved to Emeryville, has Fisher Friedman ever maintained
2 any other offices?

3 A Not outside of those two cities.

4 0 and certainly the firm has never maintained an

5 office in Reno?

6 A Correct.

7 Q Is your Nevada architectural registration still
8 active?

9 A Yes.

10 Q Do you need to do anything to keep it active

11 besides get some CLE courses and pay a fee?

12 A No. I don't think that Nevada currently

13 requires CE courses.

14 Q It doesn't?

15 A I believe it will in the immediate future, but

16 I don't think it currently does.
17 Q It's ten after 11:00. Do you want the take a
18 break now, I'm sort of between subjects, or do you want

19 to keep going?

20 A I don't need a break.
21 Q Ckay.
22 How did Fisher Friedman get involved in the

23 Wingfield project?
24 A To the best of my knowledge there was a

25 communication between Tony Iamesi and Rodney Friedman.
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1 o) Who is Tony Iamesi?

2 A He was working with Sam Caniglia.

3 Q How do you spell Iamesi?

4 A I-a-m-a-s-e-i, I think.

5 Q Okay.

6 And you said he was working with Sam?

7 A Correct.

8 0 And that would be Caniglia, C-a-n-i-g-1l-i-a?
9 A Yes.

10 Q Had Fisher Friedman ever done work with Mr.
11 Tamegi or Mr. Caniglia before?
12 A We had not worked with Sam before.

13 I believe that Tony had worked on the

14 construction of the Park Bellevue Apartment building in
15 Oakland on Lake Merritt that was one of Fisher

16 Friedman's first projects in '64, '65.

17 Q So Tony Iamesi was a builder?

18 A I believe he worked on the concrete end of

19 things. I don't know specifically what his role was and
20 that is when he formed a friendship with Rodney Friedman

21 and Bob Fisher.

22 Q He was a construction guy?
23 A I believe so.
24 Q Rather than a developer?
25 A Correct.
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1 Q Or an architect obviously?
2 A Correct.
3 0 And they worked on a project in San Francisco

4 many years before?

5 A No, I said they worked on a project in Oakland.
6 Q I'm sorry.

7 In Qakland many years before?

8 A '64 .

S Q Many years by any account.
10 A That is a lot of years.

11 Q And you said that they had developed a

12 friendship. Was there a friendship that extended beyond

13 the construction business, that shared project?

14 A Not that I'm aware of.

15 Q So they had a good experience with one another
16 in the '60s and then there was no work with Fisher

17 Friedman until the Wingfield project was proposed?

18 A I believe so. I really don't know if they had
19 any other communications over the years. Tony's son,
20 Tom, works for one ofpour current clients so there may
21 have been certainly knowledge of what Fisher Friedman
22 was doing that would be discussed between son and

23 father.

24 o Okay.
25 So Tony Iamesi's son worked for a builder or
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1 developer?

2 A He works for a non-profit developer.

3 Q That Fisher Friedman was working with?

4 A Correct, and works with.

5 Q And you say that you don't recall that there

6 was any prior business relationship with Sam Caniglia?

7 A Correct.

8 Q Do you know who approached who with regard to

9 Wingfield, did they bring the business to you or bring

10 the idea to you?

11 A I believe that Tony brought the subject of the

12 potential project to Rodney's attention, yes.

13 Q It was to Rodney's attention that he brought

14 it?

15 A Yes.

16 Q That would be Rodney Friedman?

17 A Correct.

18 Q Was there a meeting that was held that got this

19 whole thing started?

20 A Yes.

21 Q Do you remember when that meeting was?

22 A No.

23 Q Did vou attend that meeting?

24 A I attended a very, very early meeting. I think

25 it was the first one, but I'm not positive.
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1 Q Who else was in attendance at that meeting?

2 A The meeting that I remember attending would

3 have included Nathan, Rodney, me, Tony and I think Sam.
4 I don't remember anybody else.

5 Q Where did that meeting take place?

6 A That meeting took place at our office in

7 Emeryville.

8 Q Was the principal topic of discussion at that
9 meeting the possibility of doing this project in Reno?
10 A Yes.

1L Q Whom did you understand Tony and Sam were

12 representing at that time?

13 A T don't know if I paid any attention to any

14 part of that particular discussion. I think that

15 Consolidated was mentioned. I don't remember if BSC was
16 mentioned at that time. It's been a long time.

17 Q Those entities Consolidated -- Do you remember
18 what the full name of Consolidated was?

19 A No.

20 Q Consolidated and BSC were companies that you
21 were unfamiliar with up until that point?
22 A Correct.

23 Q How far did you get in the first meeting, was
24 there a discussion of the scope of the project?

25 A I believe so, but I really don't remember all
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1 of what we talked about.

2 Q Do you recall anything about what was said

3 about the scope of the project?

4 A I think, but I could be confusing which

5 meetings things occurred in, that they brought in --

6 that Sam or Tony brought in sort of a scope concept

7 either in their heads or on paper about how many units,
8 the type of building they wanted to do, the type of

9 project they wanted to do, the types of services they
1¢ wanted to include cotherwise there wouldn't have been

11 much point in having the conversation. They would have
12 just said hey, we want to do a project in Reno and we
13 don't know what the project is. 8o I'm assuming that
14 they actually did have some of that as part of that.

15 Q I understand, Mr. Steppan, that often we fill
16 in the blanks in our memory by assuming what wmust have
17 happened, because you wouldn't, as you say, have had the
18 meeting without some detail, but what I would like you
19 to do is concentrate on what you do recall actually
20 rather than what you think must have occurred because of
21 the context.
22 A I understand.
23 Q To your recollection was this project always
24 contemplated to be a high rise mixed use residential

25 project?
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1 A Yes.
2 Q So the general concept, as I defined it there,
3 was consistent from the first time you heard about the
4 project until things fell apart?
5 A Definitely.
6 Q What did you know about the abilities of either
7 of these people, Mr. Iamesi and Mr. Caniglia, about
8 their ability to build such a project?
9 yi\ I didn't know anything about their abilities
10 one way or the other.
11 0 Do you recall any discussion at that meeting
12 about other projects that they had done like this?
13 A No, I don't remember.
14 Q Was there any discussion at that first meeting
15 or the early meeting which you attended about how the
16 project would be financed?
17 A I don't remember any discussions on 1it.
18 Q Do you recall anything else that you talked
19 about other than the fact that it was going to be a high
20 rise mixed uée residential project?
21 A I'm pretty sure the location of it was
22 discussed alongside the Truckee River, so the actual
23 site was talked about versus just some project somewhere
24 in Reno, but really beyond that I can't say with

25 certainty what we all talked about at that particular
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1 meeting.
2 0 Was there discussion about the schedule as to
3 when construction was -- when the builders wanted to
4 begin building?
5 A I don't remember.
6 Q Or any discussion about any entitlement issues
7 that might exist?
8 yiy Not at that time that I remember.
9 Q So when you walked out of that meeting, what
10 was your understanding as to whether there had been any
11 understandings or agreements reached?
12 A I don't think I could really say what I
13 | remember when I left that particular meeting and be
14 accurate about it.
15 Q Did you understand at that early stage that
16 your firm was being considered for this project along
17 with others?
18 A I don't remember any others being mentioned.
19 Q So you don't recall whether or not Mr. Caniglia
20 and Mr. Iamesi thought they would be consulting with
21 other architects?
22 A I did not get the impression they were going to
23 be consulting with other architects.
24 Q To your knowledge was thexe any other firm that

25 bid on the project or were consulted prior to the --
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1 A Not to my knowledge.

2 Q -- prior to the time of agreeing to go with

3 your firm?

4 A Not to my knowledge.

5 Q Was there discussion during that early meeting

6 that you attended about the terms under which the

7 architects would take on this project?

8 A If by terms you mean that a fee would be based
9 on a percentage of construction costs as a typical

10 method, I don't remembér if it was discussed at that

11 meeting.

12 Q Okay.

13 A Certainly it was at some point and fully

14 understood that that was the typical and accepted method
15 of proceeding.
16 0 At that point in the history of Fisher Friedman
17 was that the normal type of arrangement that was made

18 for construction projects?
19 A That's normal in most instances and not just

20 Fisher Friedman.

21 9] Well --
22 A It's standard.
23 Q My question was, was it with Fisher Friedman?
24 A Sure.
25 Q You think that was made clear early on?
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1 A I believe that was discussed early on, yes.

2 Q Was there any discussion then about whether

3 Fisher Friedman could do this work in Nevada?

4 A I don't remember any particular discussions,

5 no.

6 Q Do you know where you were in your licensing

7 application/renewal process?

8 A I imagine I was licensed, but I don't know the
9 exact timing so I don't want to give you a date.

10 Q Ckay.

11 Have you reviewed any documents to prepare for
12 giving this deposition today?

13 A I'm sofry?

14 Q Have you reviewed any documents to prepare for
15 this deposition today?

16 A I don't think I actually reviewed anything to
17 prepare for this particularly, no.

18 The only thing I read recently was Dr.

19 Iliescu's deposition just because I hadn't read it
20 previously.

21 Q So you didn't spend any time in the last 60

22 days looking through your file?

23 A Not in preparation for a deposition.

24 Q Did you for some other purpose?

25 A I had to go through files in order to respond
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1 to a request for documents. Other than that, no, I have
2 been doing lots of other stuff.

3 Q Okay.

4 You reviewed Dr. Iliescu's deposition. Did you
5 review any other depositions?

6 A I can't remember if I actually read through

7 some of the other previous ones. I don't think I have

8 seen any other recent ones of the other attorneys that

9 were deposed.
10 Q You don't recall if you reviewed your earlier
11 deposition?

12 A Yes, I believe I reviewed mine. That was quite
13 a while ago. I thought you meant more recently.

14 0 I did.

15 So you haven't reviewed your deposition in the
16 last 60 days or so?

17 A No.
18 Q You reviewed it shortly after it was given, I

19 presume?

20 A After I received it.

21 Q Which I presume came pretty gquickly after it
22 was given or maybe not?

23 A It came within a reasonable time frame, but I

24 don't know if I would have termed it quickly.

25 Q When you reviewed your deposition did you make
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1 any changes to 1it?

2 2\ No.
3 0 Other than Dr. Iliescu's deposition that was
4 taken more recently and yours that was taken some time

5 ago, have you reviewed any other depositions?

6 A I frankly don't remember if I have or not. I
7 don't think so.

8 Q For instance, have you ever read Mr.

9 Snelgreove's deposition?

10 A I don't believe so.
11 MR. GRUNDY: Let's take a break right now.
12 (A recess was taken.)

13 BY MR. GRUNDY:

14 Q Who negotiated the contract between the

15 architect and the developer on the Wingfield project?
16 A On Fisher Friedman's end of things or both

17 sides or multiple sides?

18 Q Let's start with the architectural firm's side?
19 A Nathan, Rodney and nmyself worked on it.
20 0 The three of you all worked on the negotiation

21 of it?

22 A We all participated in the discussions and the
23 e-mails and the phone conversations, not necessarily all
24 at the same time.

25 So the negotiation is a broad -- I mean, it's
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1 more than a five minute deal so --
2 Q Would changes in proposed terms require the
3 agreement of the three of you or could any one of you

4 agree to such changes?

5 A They would have to be agreed to by Rodney and
6 I
7 0 So although Nathan was involved in discussions

8 and meetings, it was kind of up to you and Rodney as to
9 what terms would be accepted?
10 A Correct. He would certainly have opinions, but
11 he wouldn't be casting a deciding vote.
12 0 Is there any way that you can identify when
13 that first meeting was that you attended?
14 A No.
15 0 I have been through all 6,000 and some
16 documents that you produced in response to a request for

17 production and in your initial disclosure, and I don't

18 find any notes of that meeting or records of it in any
19 form. Do you know if any such record exists?

20 A No, I don't know.

21 MR. GRUNDY: I will show you what we will mark

22 as Exhibit 1 to this deposition, just because it follows

23 the convention of what we have done in the past.
24 (Exhibit 1 was marked.)
25| ///
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1 BY MR. GRUNDY:

2 Q I would ask you if you recognize Exhibit 17?
3 A I have seen this before.
4 Q I would tell you that it is possible that I

5 missed it, because there was no discernible
6 chronological order in the documents that we got, but I
7 believe this was the first written proposal that was

8 made by anyone to the other with regard to the contract.

9 Do you agree?
10 A I don't agree or disagree. 1 don't know.
11 Q Who drafted this letter?
12 A Probably Nathan and I drafted 1it.
13 Q Is it a standard form proposal that you use in

14 your firm?

15 A There is not one standard propcsal form, and if
16 I can interrupt for one second, this has the correct

17 spelling of Tony Iamesi's name on the document, if you

18 wish to correct the other spelling.

19 Q This is the correct spelling?

20 A I believe so.

21 Q I-a-m-e-8-17

22 A Um-hum.

23 Q So this was drafted, you think, by you and

24 Nathan Ogle?

25 A That is what I remember.
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1 Q Did you have discussions with Rodney Friedman
2 about the egsential terms?

3 A I don't remember i1f I did. I'm sure that

4 Nathan did.

5 Q So was it Nathan who actually sat down at a

6 computer and prepared this writing?

7 A Probably.

8 ' Q And would he have prepared it from an earlier

9 form or would he have started from scratch?

10 A I don't really know what he did. He could have

11 done either. He may have had sort of a proposal thing
12 in his head that he wanted to use. He might have found
13 something else.

14 Q Did the three of you discuss the terms that are
15 set forth herein before it went out, by the three of you
16 I mean Rodney Friedman, you, and Nathan Ogle?

17 A I assume so, but I don't remember specifically.
18 Again that is a memory thing.

19 Q Do you know how long after that meeting that

20 you attended October 25th occurred?

21 A No.

22 0 Do you know if there was any work performed by
23 anyone within Mark B. Steppan, AIA or Fisher Friedman

24 pricr to the 25th of October 20052

25 A Any work performed?
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1 Q Yes.
2 A I really don't remember. I couldn't say.
3 0 This proposal describes five specific steps,

4 does it not?
5 A Under scope there are five phages listed,

& correct.

7 0 And do vou know 1f that changed in the final
8 document?

9 A I don't believe so.

10 Q Where did the infcormation come about the

11 schedule section? 1 know where the last sentence came
12 from. Where did the rest of it come from?

13 A I imagine it came from conversations with Sam
14 and Tony.

15 0 Do you recall that that was the developer's

16 desire that completion of all of the architectural work
17 be done within eight months?

18 A I don't know if it was his desire or the time
19 frame that was discussed as reasonable given hisg desires
20 and what one would have to do to get the approvals.

21 0 In this document dated Octocber 25th ié the

22 proposal for a 5.75 percent total construction cost as

23 being the architect's fee. Do you see that?

24 A Yes.
25 o] Was there ever any other percentage negotiated
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1 or discussed among the parties?

2 a I believe there was a slightly higher rate

3 discussed initially. This was the rate that was agreed
4 to. I don't remember what the other rate might have

5| been exactly.

6 Q Is this a standard rate that is used within

7 your firm or was it in 20057

8 ’ A That is a pretty standard rate given the scope
9 of the project, and it's not within our firm. It's

10 based on standards that you can get out of Canada or

11 other architects or other things. That is a fairly

12 standard rate for work of this scope.

13 Q All right.

14 By this scope you mean the size of the project?
15 A Correct.

16 Q Did you have some idea as to what the total

17 | construction costs on this project would be in October
18 of 20057

19 A I don't remember specifically. I imagine so.

20 Q So you think you might have discussed the 5.75
21 percent figure and another higher figure that you can't
22 recall?

23 A Um-hum, vyes.

24 Q Is the cost plus 15 percent a common term in

25 FFA contracts?
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1 A For reimbursables, for example?

2 Q Yes.

3 A Yes, that is standard.

4 Consultants generally range from 1.10 to 1.15

5 for mark-ups on their reimbursables as well.

6 Q How was the list of consultants retained by the
7 architects derived as opposed to other consultants

8 retained at the owner}s expense?

9 A It was derived from experience and discussions.
10 Q So was it negotiated?

11 A I'm sure it was discussed with them. I don't

12 know that it required negotiation.

13 Q But what I'm trying to get at here is I'm

14 trying to understand how this negotiation went and I'm
15 trying to determine the extent to which the terms that
16 are set forth on October 25th are, in fact, proposals as
17 described in the first sentence or do they include terms
18 which have been the result of discussions upon which

19 there was an agreement.

20 So my question is do you believe there was an
21 agreement as to the consultants retained by the

22 architects vis-a-vis the owners prior to this proposal
23 or was this the first time this was addressed?

24 A I don't remember for sure. It's reasonable to

25 expect that the extent of consultants was discussed.

Bonanza Reporting - Reno (775) 786-7635 1111 Forest Street Reno, NV 89509

AA3052.



Steppan v. Iliescu Mark Steppan - Page 66

1 I'm pretty sure we did discuss it, even early on in the

2 meetings as some of the types of consultants that we

3 might retain versus ones that Tony and Sam might retain.

4 Some of these are very standard for the owner to be

5 picking the tab up on.

6 Q Do you think you knew in October of 2005 that

7 Tony Iamesi and Consolidated Pacific Construction were

8 not the owner of this project?

9 A I don't really remember. I could say I think
10 so, but that could be, you know, given everything that
11 has occurred from there to now. I don't know for sure
12 at that time. They may have certainly said we're in the

13 process of purchasing this land.

14 Q You don't know whether that occurred --

15 A I just don't remember if that occurred.

16 Q -- early on or not?

17 A I imagine it did, because we asked where is the

18 land and blah, blah, blah, and it's reasonable to

19 assume, but I can't remember exactly the discussions

20 would have included that knowledge.

21 Q Was Consolidated Pacific Construction, Inc.

22 owned by Tony Iamesi in October of 20057

23 A My understanding at the time was that Tony

24 worked for Sam and Consolidated was more Sam's, but how

25 much ownership or anything I didn't know.
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1 Q So you think that Sam Caniglia was an owner of
2 Consolidated Pacific?

3 A That is what I understocd.

4 Q Did you understand that Anthony Iamesi was as
5 well or that he was not an owner?

6 A I didn't really think about it. I Jjust assumed
7 he worked for Sam.

8 Q Do you remember why this was addressed to Tony
9 rather than Sam?

10 A No.
11 Q In the last sentence on page 2, which is

12 Steppan 3051, it identifies a project number, and this
13 is the project number used within Fisher Friedman
14 Associlates?

15 A Correct.

16 Q I see you give two alternatives. It could be

17 0515 or 0515-R. I presume the R stands for Reno?

18 A No.
19 Q What does it stand for?
20 A 0515 is the base job number. 0515-R is

21 reimbursables. Reimbursables are tracked separately

22 than base fee.

23 Q So this became project number 5157
24 A 0515.
25 Q There is a difference?
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10 A Sure, 05 is 2005. So it's thought of as 0515.
2 I mean technically we wouldn't reach 5,000 years, but
3 you Kknow.

4 Q Did Fisher Friedman number its projects

5 sequentially?

6 A Yes.

7 Q This proposal is made on behalf of an entity
8 called Mark Steppan, AIA. Did Mark Steppan, you, ever
9 form a business entity or is this just your name being

10 used as an individual?

11 A It's my name being used as an individual as the
12 licensed architect in Nevada.
13 Q Did you understand that you were contracting as

14 an individual?

15 A I don't know if I thought about it

16 specifically.

17 Q The proposal that you send, and you can take a
18 look at the first page of it, if you would like, which
19 begins on page 3053, is basically the 1997 AIA form, is

20 it not?

21 A Yes, it loocks a Bl4l.
22 Q It doesn't look like it was filled out.
23 A No, based on executing a B141. This was Jjust

24 an early copy of it so they could see what it was.

25 Q You wanted £o supply them with the form the
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1 contract would take?

2 A Correct.

3 Q But the provisions that are set forth in the
4 letter are not carried forward into the form?

5 A That form hasn't been updated to match the

6 specifics of the proposal.
7 Q All right.
8 Do you think this form was sent out on or about

9 the 25th of October?

10 A I believe so.
11 Q When was a contract signed?
12 A T don't remember off the top of my head. It

13 took a while to execute.
14 Q I'm going to show you a little bit later a
15 contract that was signed by your client, at least, on

16 the 21st of April.

17 A Okay.

18 0 Does that sound right?

19 A Sounds about right.

20 Q Okay.

21 The contract includes as Exhibit A your 2005

22 master fee schedule. Do you see that? It's I think the

23 third page down, 2052.

24 A Ckay.
25 Q Were thege the rates that were in effect for
Bonanza Reporting - Reno {775) 786-7655 1111 Forest Street Reno, NV 89509

AA3056



Steppan v. Iliescu Mark Steppan Page 70

1 these particular titled individuals in October of 20052
2 A These are the rates that would be assigned to
3 those descriptions.

4 Q Was this a fee schedule that was used on all
5 projects that were done in 20057

6 A Yes. In fact, this fee schedule hasn't

7 changed since '03. Those numbers haven't gone up.

8 Q Don't feel bad, neither have wmine.

9 Do you know what response you got from Mr.

10 Tamesi to this letter?

11 A No, I don't remember.

12 Q Was there some time that occurred --

13 Understanding that you didn't actually sign the

14 agreement, both sides sign the agreement until April,
15 but did you understand all along that Fisher Friedman
16 was going to be the architect for this project?

17 A Well, technically I'm the architect for the
18 project and Fisher Friedman was acting as the design
19 consultant. That is technically the relationship.
20 Q Did you understand all along that technically
21 Mark Steppan was going to be the only architect

22 negotiating for this project?
23 A It's complicated and it's normal in this type
24 of instance that you have one person as part of the firm

25 that is licensed in the state that you're doing the
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1 project in. They are not the only person doing the

2 negotiation, but if you're trying ask the question did I
3 know that things were going under my name, the answer is
4 ves.

5 0 Did you not think that you were the only

6 contracting party on this architectural project?

7 A No, I'm the contracted party.
8 Q You're the only contracted party, are you not?
9 A Yes, correct.

10 Q You understood that back in 200572

11 A Um-hum.

12 Q Yeg?

13 A Yes.

14 o) You understood that you were the only one who

15 would be held responsible for the architect's

le6 obligations under this contract?

17 MS. KERN: I'm going to object. I don't guite
18 understand your question. I don't know if Mr. Steppan
19| does. When you say obligations, what do you mean by

20 obligations?

21 BY MR. GRUNDY:

22 Q Well, you understood that as the contracting
23 party, you, Mark Steppan, the individual, was the only
24 person who was responsible. to the other party to this

25 contract to do the things that were required under this
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1 contract, did you understand that?

2 A I'm not sure how best to answer the question,

3 because there is still technically a relationship

4 between me as an employee and Fisher Friedman

5 Associates.

6 Q We will talk about that relationship in a

7 minute and whatever side agreements there might have

8 been, but I'm just talking about what you understood was
9 the import of making this proposal on October 25th,
10 2005, and my question to you again is did you understand
11 that you were the individual who was responsible for
12 performing the architect's obligations with respect to

13 your contracting parties, in this case Conscolidated

14 Pacific Construction?

15 A I suppecse so.

16 Q And this is, as I understand from an earlier

17 discussion, the very first such contract you as an

18 individual had ever entered into?

19 A No, it's the first contract that has been under
20 my name for Fisher Friedman -- with Fisher Friedman

21 Associates.

22 You're including the potential of deing work
23 outside of the office at some other time for my own
24 business or anything else. So I don't know that I ever

25 did a contract, but I'm just clarifying you're talking
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1 about Fisher Friedman.

2 Q Then we do need to do some clarification.

3 Have you ever worked under your own name as an
4 architect since you became registered as an architect in
5 California?

6 A I have designed some houses, did not do the

7 construction documents on them.

8 Q Have you signed a contract where the architect
9 of record was not Fisher Friedman, but Mark Steppan?
10 A I suppose we didn't have a signed contract to
11 do that particular work.

12 0 You're saying you may have provided

13 architectural services for friends or associates or

14 even, heaven forbid, family members?

i5 A Yes, I have done some design work.

16 0 But prior to --
17 A But this would be the first contract that I

18 signed like this.

19 Q Had you ever charged fees to an architectural
20 client other than through Fisher Friedman prior to this
21 project?

22 A Yes.

23 Q And you had done that on the basis of some

24 unwritten contract?

25 A There was a written agreement. There wasn't an
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1 ATIA contract.

2 0 I1'm sorry, sir, I'm confused and I just need to
3 understand.

4 Have you entered into any sort of a written

5 contract, you, Mark Steppan as an individual with any

6 client for the provision of architectural servicesg?

7 A Yes.

8 0 On how many occasions?

9 A I think one.

10 Q What were the circumstances of that occasion?
11 A I did the design on two spec housges in

12 California.

13 0 When was that?

14 A I don't remember, probably '04 through '0g,

15 something like that.

16 Q Did you have a financial interest in the

17 project other than as an architect?

18 A No.

19 Q Was there some relationship between you and the

20 client?

21 A Someone I knew, but no relationship.
22 Q Sc it was a business associate or a personal
23 associate?

24 A More of a personal associate than a business

25 assoclate.
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. 1 Q And you entered into an agreement to provide
2 these services, but was it or was it not written?
3 p:y I believe there was a written agreement to do

4 the design services, yeah.

5 0 I'm sorry, about when was that?

6 A I think it was '04 through around '06.

7 Q So it was right about the same time as this
8 one?

9 A Yeah, 1f my memory is correct.

10 Q And why did you enter into a contract as an

11 individual in California at a time when you were a

12 corporate officer and senior employee of Fisher

. 13 Friedman?

14 A Because I was doing work for this person who

15 was a friend of Rodney's to help him design some houses

16 and they were done on the side, not on Fisher Friedman
17 time.

18 O Why was that?

19 A Because that is what he wanted to do.

20 MR. WILSON: Who, if I can ask?

21 BY MR. GRUNDY:

22 Q That is what Rodney wanted to do?
23 A The client wanted to design some homes and it
24 was less expensive for him to use an individual than to
. 25 use Fisher Friedman to do that work.
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1 Q So Rodney asked you to provide that service at
2 a lesser cost?
3 A No, he and I talked to the client and it was

4 elected that I would design the work so that the client
5 would have less expensive fees. It was less cost to the
6 developer.

7 Q And that was because Fisher Friedman employees,
8 other than you, were not going to work on it?

9 A As I said, I worked on it as an individual

10 outgide of Fisher Friedman Associates. No one else was
11 going to work on it within the office, because what we
12 would have charged would have been too high of a rate
13 for this gentleman to afford to do the project.

14 Q Okay.

15 So you agreed with this client to help him

16 design two houses that he was building?

17 A Correct.

18 0 You entered into a written agreement with him
19 to be the architect of record?
20 A No, to design two houses. I was not the
21 architect of record as I did not do the construction
22 documents.
23 Q So you just did the design work on those two
24 houses?

25 iy Correct.
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1 Q And the design work that you did was for the

2 purposes of what? Why would you have not also done the
3 construction drawings?

4 A I didn't have the time to spend doing the full
5 construction drawings outside of the office and the fee
6 that I wanted to charge, given that I would have to do
7 it off hours and on weekends, was larger than he wanted
8 to pay. So he elected to hire another firm who could

9 work on it during business hours.
10 Q So somebody else took your design concept;
11 correct?

12 A Correct.
13 Q And did the construction drawings and whatever
14 the architect did with regard to contract

15 administration?

16 A Yes, I don't know if there was any.
17 Q Okay.
18 And in that instance did vyou bill this client

19 yourself?
20 A Yes.
21 Q And the income came to you and you didn't share

22 it with Fisher Friedman?

23 A Correct.
24 Q Or with any individuals within Fisher Friedman?
25 A Correct.
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1 Q And that is the only time you have ever done
2 that during your time at Fisher Friedman --

3 A I think so.

4 Q -- where you have entered into a written

5 agreement to do architectural work not through Fisher

6 Friedman?

7 A I think so.

8 Q Ckay.

g Other than that instance, the only time that

10 vou have entered into a written contract with anyone

11 directly was on the Wingfield project?

12 A Yes.
13 Q Now, I presume -- Well, let me not presume.
14 Was the intention back in October of 2005 that

15 if you were to get a signed contract the money from that
16 contract would be pald to Fisher Friedman?

17 A Yes.

18 MR. GRUNDY: In your earlier deposition -- She

19 is going to bring lunch in so let's take a break. I'm

20 going to stop here in mid sentence.

21 MS. KERN: Okay.

22 MR. GRUNDY: I don't want the distraction while
23 I'm asking questions while people are bringing things in

24 and out.

25 (A recess was taken.)
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1 BY MR. GRUNDY:
2 Q We were talking, I think, at the break about
3 your understanding of the effect of the contract that
4 was being proposed in which you were the only party on
5 one side of the agreement, which wag Exhibit 1 which was
6 the proposal that was made.
7 I want to talk to vou a little bit about what
8 you did in order to put yourself in that position. You
9 wrote the letter of Octcober 25th, Exhibit Number 1, on
10 letterhead Mark B. Steppan, AIA, CSI, NCAREB, Architect
11 listing the Park Avenue address in Emeryville. Had this
12 letterhead existed before October 25th, 20057
13 A I don't know. It was done for thig project.
14 0 What else did you do to make the
15 representations as to the fact that you were the
16 architect of record? Did you make business cards?
17 A I made a few.
18 Q Did you buy the letterhead or did you just
19 print this out as needed as part of the printing
20 process?
21 A It's just done as needed as an electronic file.
22 Q Same with the business cards or did you have

23 them made up?

24 A I think we did them internally.
25 0 I think we talked about it earlier, you did
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1 nothing to incorpcrate or form a business association?
2 A Correct.
3 Q Did you purchase insurance in the name of Mark

4 Steppan, Architect?

5 A No.
6 Q Did you make any changes to the Fisher Friedman
7 insurance policy to represent, or I mean to reflect that

8 you were going to be taking on projects in your own
9 name?
10 A I don't remember if something was done. It's

11 possible.

12 Q If something were done, what was 1it?

13 A I don't remember. It might have been adding my
14 name on as an individual. I don't really remember.

15 Q Did you pay an extra fee for that?

16 A No.

17 Q Is there anything elgse that you did to create

18 the impression of a separate existence of Mark Steppan,
19 Architect?

20 MS. KERN: I'm going to object to the use of
21 the term impression. I don't know what that means.

22 BY MR. GRUNDY:

23 Q Well, we can argue about what the effect of

24 doing a letterhead is or not, but it dcoesn't matter.

25 Did vyou notify the California architectural
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1 board that you were doing business under your own name?

2 A No.

3 Q Did you investigate as to whether or not that
4 was required?

5 A I don't remember if someone -- if that was

6 investigated separately. I don't believe it's reguired.

7 0 Did you investigate what was required in Nevada
8 in order for you to enter into contracts there?

9 A Yes.
10 Q What did vyou do?
11 A I looked online and talked to the Nevada state

12 board to determine what was required to perform work in

13 Nevada as an individual or as a company.
14 Q You locked online?
15 A Yeah, vyou can find requirements out from the

16 Nevada blah, blah, blah.org.

17 Q So did you determine that there was something
18 that you needed to do in Nevada in order to enter into
19 contracts here?

20 A I learned that I could do work in Nevada being
21 a licensed architect in Nevada and that Fisher Friedman
22 by themselves, not using me, could not because Fisher

23 Friedman are not currently licensed in Nevada.

24 0 All right.
25 Did you look into the possibility of
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1 registering the firm?
2 A Yes.
3 Q Aand what did you do to look into that?
4 A Talked to the board.
5 Q What did you find out about whether you could
6 register the firm?
7 A If I remember correctly, it would have required
8 that Rodney also be licensed in Nevada and I don't
9 remember if there was an isgssue with Fisher or not.
10 Q Well, in 2005 was Fisher still active in the
11 firm?
12 A No, he wasn't.
13 Q Was he an owner of the firm?
14 A No.
15 Q Was he ever an ownexr?
16 A Yes.
17 0 So.he had given up his ownership interest in
18 the firm?
19 A Yes.
20 Q He wagn't working for the firm?
21 A Yes.
22 Q Did you determine that there may be problems
23 with Fisher Friedman doing business in Nevada with a
24 retired, non-owner in the letterhead, was that an issue
25 that you loocked into?
Bonanza Reporting - Reno (775) 786-7655 1111 Forest Strect Reno, NV 89509
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1 A I'm sorry, I don't understand the gquestion as
2 it relates to what is being asked here.
3 0 Well, did you determine whether or not it was a

4 problem?

5 A When?

6 0 In 2005 when you were thinking about entering
7 into this contract?

8 A Yes, it was looked into and it was determined
9 that Fisher Friedman Associates as a firm was not going
10 to be easily licensed as that firm name in Nevada.

11 0 And you told me that part of that reason was

12 because of Fisher's not being
13 A I said -- No, what I said was I was not sure 1if

14 that was part of it as well.

15 Q Did you discuss that with the board?

16 A Yes, all issues were discussed with the board
17 in terms of what the requirements were for having a

18 corporation be licensed in the state.

19 For example, and I know we're not normally

20 supposed to continue to explain, but Oregon if you have

21 names in a firm's name, all those names must be active
22 participants in the firm and be licensed in that state.
23 That is different than Nevada.

24 Q That 1s what I thought you were suggesting that

25 you looked into it in Nevada. Did you look into that

Bonanza Reporting - Reno (775) T86-7655 1111 Forest Street Reno, NV 89509
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1 issue in Nevada?
2 A I have already said vyes.
3 Q Anyvthing else that you had to do in order to
4 make it clear that you were entering into this contract
5 individually?
6 A I don't know that there was anything else that
7 needed to be done.
8 Q What was your expectation in October of 2005 as
9 to how the payments under this contract would be
10 handled?
11 A The payments would be made to Fisher Friedman

12 Associates as discussed and approved by our client. I

13 could elect whoever I want to receive the payments.

14 Q Did you explore whether that was the case?

15 A Explore whether what was the case?

16 Q Did you explore whether that was acceptable to

17 the state architect board?

18 A Yes.

19 Q That you could allow Fisher Friedman, your

20 employer, to take in all of the funds?

21 A Yes.

22 Q And did you enter into any sort of agreement or
23 understanding with the firm about how those funds once
24 received would be distributed?

25 A No written agreement was made.

Bonanza Reporting - Reno {775) 786-7655 1111 Forest Street Reno, NV 89509
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1 Q That wasn't my gquestion.

2 Did you enter into an agreement or

3 understanding?

4 A The understanding was that Fisher Friedman

5 would get the monies on the project.

6 Q And then how would it be distributed after -

7 that?

8 A As part of Fisher Friedman's income.

9 Q Let's talk, then, about how that would happen

10 if this project had been in California. Under the terwms
11 of your employment were you paid a salary or a

12 performance based compensation?

13 A Salary.

14 Q So it was a straight salary?

15 A Yes.

16 Q With bonuses?

17 A No.

18 Q Was that to be the case with this Nevada

19 contract?

20 A Yes.

21 0 Did you have any expectation either in your own
22 mind or based upon what you were told by anyone else

23 that you would enjoy some additional financial benefit
24 by virtue of the fact that you were being the architect

25 of record on the Reno job?

Bonanza Reporting - Reno (775) 786-7655 111} Forest Strect Reno, NV 89509
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z Doc#: 26 Filed: 02/21/2 CTRQNICANLOTILED BY
' - ING, HARRIS & PETRONI, LTD,

3 on of/c%j(}é?

;‘ 1
Entered on Docket
- February 21, 2008

4 ’ Hon. Gregg W. Zive
5 United States Bankruptcy Judge
" :
7
g || STEPHEN R. HARRIS, ES
BELDING, HARRIS & PET ONI I..TD
. g|| Nevada Bar No. 001463
417 West Plumb Lane ;
Reno, Nevada 89509 :
104 Telephone: . (775) 786-7600 -
i1 Facsimile: (775) 786-7764
Attorney for Debtor J : . ,
12 | P - |
UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
13 DISTRICT OF NEVADA
14 : ok ok B W ’
15 IN RE: .
BSC INVESTMENTS LLC, P BK-N-07-50477
- 16 -an Oregon limited liability company,: {Chapter 11) -
17 ; STIPULATION AND ORDER TO
' , : . : DISMISS VOLUNTARY
18 B R CHAPTER 11 PETITION
Debtor. o 1 o rg. DATE:
o ; and TIME:
19 ' Est, Time:
20 f 3 Set By:
'21 COMES NOW, BSC INVESTMENTS LLC, an Oregon limited liability company, by and
through its attorney of record STEPHEN R.HARRIS, ESQ., of BELDING, HARRIS & PETRON]
22
: LTD. ,and CALVIN BATY, as Member of Baty Investmcnts LLC, a Member of Baty Schlelnmg
23|
' Investments, LLC, the 66.67% Member of BSC Investment LLC; JOHN SCHLEINING, as Member
24 . i :
of Baty Schleining Investments, LLC, the 66.67% Member of BSC Investments LLC; and Samuel
25
Camg]la, President of Consohdated Pamﬂc Development, - Inc., the 33.33% Member of BSC
2
6 Investments LLC, and John Iliescu Jr‘ and Sonnia Ilieseu and the John Jliescu Jr. and Sonma Iliescu
27 :
j. .

LAW OFFICES OF

SELDING, HARRIS
& PETRONI, LTD.

ATTORMNEYE AT LAW

REND,
NEvADA 89509
{775} 78E-7600

* Y WEST PLUMB LANE
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10
11

12|
13|

- 14

15
16
17
18

19

20 |

21

22,

23

24

25

26

27

LAW DFFICES OF

28l

' BELDING, HARRIS
& PETROMI, LTD.
ATTORNEYS AT LAW.

17 WEST FLUMB LANE

REND,
NEVADA 89509
(775} 786-7600

Case: omw:ﬁvz Doc#: 26  Filed: ozzzwz‘ Page: 20f6. |

1992 Family Trust, by and through th[ﬁr attorney, SALLIE ARMSTRONG, ESQ. of DOWNEY i

BRANT), LLP; and the United States '-Frustee, by and th‘ough its counsel WILLIAM B. COSSITT,

ESQ and stipulate and agree as follows:

I
1. A Voluntary Petition for Relief under Chapter 1 of Title 11 of the United States
Cod}: was filed herein on April 25,12007. No trustee has been appointed gnd, Debtor acts as
Debtor-In-Possession herein. ‘ '

2. The Debtor’s primary agset at the time of the commencement of this case was itsright

to purchase certam real property purm[:ant toa Land Purchase Agreement. On June 22, 2007, the
Debtor f led its MOTION TO ASSUME EXECUTORY CONTRACT PURSUANT TONUSI.C

§365 (“Motion to Assume™) and the Court verbally approved the Motion to Assume on August 27,

2007, at 2:00 p.m., subject to certain deadlines to be reviewed at a status conference to be held on

Septémber 27, 2007 Af the status'ctlnference held on September 27, 2007, the Court confirmed |
that the Debtor had until October 25112007 to perform its obligations under the Land Purchase
Agreement, The Debtor made all ;)Eosszb]e efforts to perform by sa;d deadhne ‘but was not

successful. -

3. On December 7, 2'007& this Court cntered its OR_DER GRANTING DEBTOR’S
' i
MOTION TO AS‘SUME EXECUTORY CONTRACT PURSUANT TO 11 Us. C. §365, which

stated that if the Debtor did not pcrfomp its obligations under the executory contract by October 25,
2007, the Chapter 11 case would be dismissed.

4, Accordingly, the pame., hereto strpu]ate and agree that the above-captioned Chapter
11 case of BSC INVESTMENTS, LLC an Oregon limited liability company, is hcreby dismissed,

without prejudlce

DATED this éﬂ/\ day of Dccemb.er,RQOO'?. DATED this 2 -(?()day of December, 2007,
STBPHEN R HARRIJS, ESQ. ' .. SALLIE ARMSTRO

, i[‘D.

DOWNEY BRAND,

ttorney Tor John ] r. andfonnia.
Iliescu and the John Iliescu Jr. and
Niescu 1992 Family Trust 7
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9
10
11

12

13

14
15
16
17

19
20
21
22
23

24

LAW OFFICES O

25

26
27
28

SELDING, HARRIE

& PETRGNI, LTD.
ATTORNEYS AT AW
17 WEST PLUMB LANE

REND,
MNEvabR BOSOR
(775) 7B6-7600

LLC, a8 Member of Baty Schleining

18

Case: 07-50‘wz Doc#: 26  Filed: 02121/2‘ Page: 30f6

DATED this _é_ day of December, 2007. - DATED this day of December, 2007.

ZEE FAXED SIGNATURE PaGe ATTACHER

; 2
SCHLEINING, Member aty Schlelmng WILLIAM B. COSSITT, ESQ.

nvestments LLC, an Oregon lirffited liability Office of the Umte.d States Trustee

company, as 66. 67 % Member of BSC

INVESTMENTS LLC, an Oregon limited llablhty

company |

P FAXED Sui-::x!.tw! s Page .f»‘mﬂr::mz‘-t*n

CALVIN BATY, Member of Baty lnvestments,

Investments LLC, an Oregon limited
liability company, as 66.67 % Member of
BSC INVESTMENTS LLC

o TE FAYED SiGHaTRe Pacis Syl e
I
SAMUEL CANIGLIA, Presidentof |
Consolidated Pacific Development Inc..a
Nevada corporation, as 33.33%
member of BSC INVESTMENTS LLC

" IT IS SO ORDERED.,

#it#
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LAW GFFIGES bF
BELDING, HARRIS
& PETRONI, LTD.

ATTORNEYS AT baw ~ |
117 WEST PLUMB LANE

REMN®,

NEVADA "BES0S

(775} 7867500

16

- 21

Case: 07-50Mz Doc#: 26 . Filed: 02121:2(’ Page: 40f6

11| DATED this ‘7 T day of Decomber,{2007, .- DATED this_/_day of December, 2007.
2 l TR 3
CEAYED DiGna I'UFlr F’,.\L,,: ATThH AXED JMNA Msk PAGE AT
3T SCHLE einber o Baty e emmg W LLIAM OSSITT,
Investments LLC, an Oregon limited!l{ability - Office of the Umted States Trustee
4§ company, as 66, 67 % Member of BSC .
INVES TS LLC, an Qregon lllm]tﬁd liability
5 .
; |

7|| GALVIN BATY, Member of Baty Investments,

LLC, as Member #f Baty Schleining] .

8| Investments, LLZ, an Oregon limited _
liability company, as 66.67 % Member of

9 || BSCINVESTME NTS LLC .

EENED DaNAT S a2
16 ‘ ' [
11 SAMU ANI resident ofj
Consohdated Pacific Devalnpmcnt Inc.,a’

" 12 |{ Nevada corporation, as 33.33%. _
member of BSC INVESTMENTS LLC

13 . 1

14| | omom
s IT1S SO ORDERED. = | o
17 e
18
19

20

22
23
24|
25
25[
27

28

; - | AA2860
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||

DATED this _é, day of December, 2007. - DATED 1his day of December, 2007.

G i aa TR o

By Silcining WILLAM B, COSSITLESQ- ™
ability Office of the United States Trustee

company, as 66.67 % Member of B8C - - ' :

W\&STME’NTS LLC, an Oregon limited liability

company 7 :

VT i T b e
RTINS R T S S el N A &

CALVIN DATY, Member of Baty Investmets,

11.C, 2s Member of Baty Schieining

_}nvﬁﬁnents, LLC, an é)irzgo% Ilidmite‘;l ; : -
jability company, as 66.67 erber o '

BSC mv}ss‘i-MéNTs LLC

w @ ~ & ;s W N

——————

10
11 || SAMUEL CANIGLIA, President 0
: Consolidated Pacific Developmept, Inc.,2

12 || Nevada corporation, a8 33.33%
member of BSC INVESTMENTS LLC

13.l

15 IT 1§ SO ORDERED.

16

17 ik
w_ll
19
zqi,
21
2|
23
24
25
26|
27
28

Lo GEFICED oF
ECLDING, HARRIS
& FETRONR), LTR.

ATTERNDYE AT LAW
W7 WEAT PLLIMD LANE - - B 3

REND, : .
NrvADAa BE30B
(776) TDO-7OOD - -
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DEC—lE—EUO?OEsDeﬂSJEIBeH&vHST Doc#: 26 Filed: mzm@etl B63k: 60f6 P 03

1| DATED this day of December, 2007, -DATED this / Z day of December, 2007,
e RN S e B e S L - m
TOWN SCHLEINING, Member of Baty Schlcining —C"‘Eéﬁ'wm B COSSITI ESQ
Investments LLC, an Oregon limited liability Office of the United Stales Trustee

4| company, &5 66.67 % Member of BSC .
INVESTMENTS LLC; an Oregon [imited liability

5|| company ‘ :

6

e B R

AT

7 || CALVIN BATY, Member of Baty Investments,
.|| LLC, as Member of Baty Schleining :

8| Investments, LLC; an Orepon limitad .
liability company, as 66.67 % Member of

9| BESCINVESTMENTS LLC

101} ST i

" 110t SAMUEL CANIGLIA, President of
Consalidated Pacific Development, Inc..a
12| Nevada corporalion, as 33.33%

_member of BSC INVESTMENTS LLC -

13 _
14 | o o ORDRER
15 IT IS SO ORDERED. '
16
17 #i
R

19
20
21
22
23|
24
25
26
27
28

LawW DrFIQES OF
FELDING, HARRIE
& PETRAM| LTD.
ATTTONNEYE AT LAW .
1Y WEET PLIMB LANE , : -3
REND,
NEVADA BEZ0R
{¥7E] 786-760D
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Receptionist, Reno

From: USBC_NEVADA@nvh.uscourts.gov
Sent:  Thursday, February 21, 2008 2:57 PM
To: Courtmail@nvb.uscourts.gov '
Subject: 07-50477-gwz Stipulated/Agreed Order

***NOTE TO PUBLIC ACCESS USERS*** You may view the filed documents once without
charge, To avoid later'charges, download a copy of each document during this first viewing.

U.S. Bankruptcy Court
District of Nevada
Notice of Electronic Filing

The following transaction was received from Leav1tt RL entered on 2/21/2008 at 2: 56 PM PST and
filed on 2/21/2008

Case Name_. BSCINVESTMENTS LLC
Case Number: 07-50477-gwz

Document Number: 26

Docket Text:

Stipulation and Order To Dismiss Voluntary Chapter 11 Petition (Leavxtt RL)
The followmg document(s) are associated with this transaction:

Document description:Main'Doéument

Original filename:Q:\pdf\8\rno eorders\0750477.pdf

Electronic document Stamp:

[STAMP bkecf‘Stamp D=%89277954 [Date—2/21/2008] [Fl]eNumber—9349682 O]

[1d80b568de77bb6d39bb9adf88861942631961 1138856adf059eb0529529175b2(7a
bb9a8bebelcadcTbaeat8293a06a80204ef22f4224711226¢348a4410293]]

07—50477-ng Notice will be electfonically mailed to:

JAMIE P. D-REH-E.R ’jdreher@downeybrand.com, reno@downeybrand.cém
STEPHEN R HARRIS  noticesbh&p@renclaw.biz

' GAYLE A.KERN gakltd@kemltdcom

U. S TRUSTEE RN 11 USTPReg10n17 RE. ECF@U.SdO_] gov

07-50477-gwz Notlce w;ll not be electromcally mailed to:

BELDING, HARRIS & PETRONL, LTD

2/21/2008 ' - AA2863
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~ SONNIA ILIESCU

C/O DOWNEY BRAND, LLP
427 W. PLUMB LANE
RENO, NV 89509
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12 of 54 DOCUMENTS

NEVADA REVISED STATUTES ANNOTATED
Copyright © 1986-1991 by The Michie Company
All rights reserved.

*** ARCHIVE MATERIAL ***

*** THIS SECTION IS CURRENT THROUGH THE 1991 SUPPLEMENT ***
*H¥ (SIXTY-SIXTH (1991) SESSION) ***

TITLE 9. MORTGAGES; DEEDS OF TRUST; OTHER LIENS .
CHAPTER 108. STATUTORY LIENS
MECHANICS' AND MATERIALMEN'S LIENS

" Nev. Rev. Star. Ann. § 108.234 (1991)

§ 108.234. Notice of nonresponsibility: Filing by owner or claimant of interest in land

Every building or other improvement mentioned in NRS 108.222, constructed upon any lands with the knowledge of
the owner or the person having or claiming any interest therein, shall be held to have been constructed at the instance of
such owner or person having or claiming any interest therein, and the interest owned or claimed shall be subject to any
lien recorded in accordance with the provisions of NRS 108.221 to 108.246, inclusive, unless such owner or person hav-
ing or claiming an interest therein shall, within 3 days after he has obtained knowledge of the construction, alteration or
repair, or the intended construction, alteration or repair, give notice that he will not be responsible for such improvement
by filing a notice in writing 1o that effect with the county recorder of the county where the land or building is situated;
and, in the instance of:

1. A lessor, the notice of lien nonresponsibility shall be deemed timely filed if the same has been filed within 3
days immediately following the execution of the lease by all parties as to that construction, alteration or repair, or in-
tended construction, alteration or repair, known to the lessor at the time of the execution of the lease by all parties.

2. An optionor, the notice of lien nonresponsibility shall be deemed timely filed if the same has been filed within'
3 days immediately following the execution of the agreement permitting entry upon the real property by all parties as to
that construction, alteration, repair, or intended construction, alteration, repair or other work known to the optionor at
the time of the execution of the agreement by all parties.

HISTORY: 1965, p. 1163.

CASE NOTES

1. General Consideration.

11. Owner's Knowledge.

111. Authorization by Agents or Lessees.

1. GENERAL CONSIDERATION,

ONE CLAIMING UNDER A DEED OF TRUST, SIMILAR TO A MORTGAGEE, DOES NOT HAVE TO GIVE A
NOTICE OF NONRESPONSIBILITY 10 protect his priority over subsequent liens. Aladdin Heating Corp. v. Trustees
of Cent. States, 93 Nev. 257, 563 P.2d 82 (1977},

THE METHOD PRESCRIBED FOR GIVING NOTICE WAS EXCLUSIVE under a former similar siatute. An owner
could not escape the effect of liens where he had given personal notice of nonresponsibility to a lien claimant instead of

AA2866
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Nev. Rev. Stat. Ann. § 108.234

following the then-prescribed method of posting notice. Rosina v. Trowbridge, 20 Nev. 105, 17 P. 751 (1888). (Deci-
sion under prior similar statute which required physical posting of a notice of nonresponsibility.)

CITED IN: Fred L. Stanfield Constr. Co. v. Stearns Corp., 6 Bankr. 265 {Bankr. D. Nev. 1980).
11. OWNER'S KNOWLEDGE. '

CORPORATE AGENT'S KNOWLEDGE IMPUTED TO THE CORPORATION. --Evidence that a corporation which
owned reduction works had an agent residing in the vicinity of the premises, who personally visited the reduction works
and knew that work ‘was being done and improvements were being made thereon was prima facie sufficient to charge
the corporation with knowledge of the fact, and no notice having been given by it that it would not be responsible for
the materials and work, it was chargeable with the liens for the material and labor fumished. Gould v. Wise, 18 Nev
253, 3 P. 30 (1884). (Decision under prior similar statute.)

TERMS OF A LEASE CAN PLACE THE OWNER IN A POSITION OF KNOWLEDGE. --The fact that the consid-
eration for a lease of a reduction works was that the lessee, at his own cost and expense, make all necessary repairs and
improvements in and about the reduction works, and furnish all necessary materials to place it in good condition, and
that the money so used, together with that expended in paying taxes and insurance, was to be in full payment and satis-
faction for the rent of said premises for the first year, of itself showed knowledge on the part of the corporation of the
"intended construction, alteration, or repair,” within the meaning of this section. Gould v. Wise, 18 Nev. 253, 3 P. 30
{1884). (Decision under prior similar statute.)

AN OWNER WITH KNOWLEDGE IS ESTOPPED FROM DENYING AUTHORIZATION. --A property owner who
failed to give the required notice of nonresponsibility for the expenses of improvements on this property after gaining
knowledge that improvements were in progress was estopped from denying that he authorized the lessee to order the
impravements. Nichols v. Levy, 55 Nev. 310, 32 P.2d 120 ¢(1934). (Decision under prior similar statute which required
physical posting of a notice of nonresponsibility.)

Where the defendant did not file the notice of nonresponsibility provided for in this section, the work each plaintiff
performed was deemed to be "at the instance of such owner;" since the plaintiffs were deemed to have a direct contract
with the owner, they were not required to deliver the prelien notice specified in NRS 108:245. Fondren v. K/L Complex
Lid, 106 Nev. —, 800 P.2d 719 (1990).

AN OWNER WHO REQUESTS WORK CANNOT EVADE RESPONSIBILITY. --A notice of nonresponsibility was
not considered effective despite its conformance to statutory requirements where the building was altered with the con-
sent or at the direction of the owner. Verdi Lumber Co. v. Bartlert, 40 Nev, 377, 161 P. 933 (1916). (Decision under a
prior similar statute which required physical posting of a notice of nonresponsibility.)

OWNER'S LIABILITY EVEN WHERE EXPENSES WERE NOT FURNISHED AT HIS INSTANCE. --To constitute
the "contractor, subcontractar, architect, builder, or other person”, the statutory agent of the owner (see now NRS
108.222), such person must have been employed, directiy or indirectly, at the instance of the owner, or his conventional
agent. But the interest of the owner may be subjected to lien claims, notwithstanding the fact that labor and materials
have not been furnished at his instance, if, knowing that alterations or repairs are being made or are contemplated, he
fails to give notice that he will not be responsible therefor. Gould v, Wise, 18 Nev. 253, 3 P. 30 (1884). (Decnslon under
prior similar statute.)

The employment of labor or the purchase of materials by the owner of the building or his agent is not necessary to the
attaching of lien rights on the part of the laborer or the person who furnished materials; if the owner has knowledge of
the same, lien rights are deemed to attach unless the required notice is given. Peccofe v. Luce & Goodfellow, Inc., 66
Nev. 360, 212 P.2d 718 (1949). (Decision under prior similar statute.)

HI. AUTHORIZATION BY AGENTS OR LESSEES.
AUTHORIZING AGENT IS NOT A NECESSARY PARTY. --The lien laws of this state do not either expressly or by
necessary implication require the contractor to be made a party defendant; the laborer or materialman is given the right

10 sue the owner of the property directly to enforce his lien if the ontractor or other person named is the statutory agent
of the owner, or, not being the agent of the owner, if the work was done or material furnished with the owner's knowl-
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edge and no nonliability notice was published as required by law. Didier v. Webster Mines Corp., 49 Nev. 5, 234 P. 320
{1925). (Decision under prior similar statute.)

RENTED CHATTEL INSTALLED AS A FIXTURE. --When an electric sign became a fixture on real property by rea-
son of its attachment thereto, it took on the nature of real property and its owner was bound to timely file a notice of
nonresponsibility to protect the sign from being subject 10 a mechanics' lien recorded in accordance with the provisions
of NRS 108.221 et seq. Young Elec. Sign Co. v. Erwin Elec. Co,, 86 Nev. 822, 477 P.2d 864 (1970).

THE OWNER HAS A MANDATORY ACTIVE DUTY OF STRICT COMPLIANCE if he would be relieved of re-
sponsibility under this section, and by failure in compliance he is estopped to deny the authority of his tenant or other
person authorizing the improvements, because of which the property must be held subject to lien. Peccole v. Luce &
Goodfellow, Inc., 66 Nev. 360, 212 P.2d 718 (1949). (Decision under prior similar statute.)

NO PERSONAL JUDGMENT AGAINST AN OWNER. --In action by lienholders against a mine owner to foreclose
liens forlabor performed by them upon mining property while the said property was under the charge of lessee, it was
error for the court 1o render a personal judgment against the owner for these services, where there was no evidence 1o
show that in contracting for services lessee was acting as the agent in fact for the owner, thus rendering it personally
liable upon general principles of law. If lessee was merely the statutory agent, the effect of his acts in employing labor
could only operate to charge the property with a lien for such services as were of a lienable character, and could not
charpe owner with any personal llabl]ll')r Didier v. Webster Mines Corp., 49 Nev. 5, 234 P. 520 ¢1925). (Decision under
prior similar statute.)

USER NOTE: For more generally applicable notes, see notes under-the first section of this chapter or title.
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. .. - 2) . Will the pro;ect disturb ‘areas wnthm or adjacent to Wetlands. stream
SR ' ~ environments, major dramageways, or. significant hydroIogic fesources'?.
Yes ‘ , _ '

B (If S0, explaln the impact(s) and. descnbe pmposed mIbgatmg measures.. = -
Such environmentally sensitive areas must be shown on the subdmsmn e

.- map.) The project lies within the flood AE and Shaded Zone X of the AR

- Truckee River. The EI’OQOSEd uses within the structure that witl be =~ ¢

~ located within the flood zone areas are limited to the parking_garag_, R
' associated wnth the proposed develogment : o
3) Descnbe the rnethods for stabnllzatnon andlor revegetabon of exposed and-i. R
- disturbed soils due to proposed grading activities: =~ I

Areas disturbed due to grading activities will be rmtrgated through'

' Pedestrian Plaza areas. Iandscaplnq and groundcover

N

- 4) | Does the project tngger an SUP for residential adjacency? if yes epraln' .
-~ howand refer to section for submrttal reqmrements ) : ‘

B s the project Iocated onamajor arfenal?
_ - No__ , — —
’ 78 Isthe project an expansnon of an; EXISlIng facnhty‘? Please mdlcate exlstlngf'.i Lo
e -—andproposedsquarefootage B , , o
'UTILITES e
? WATER

- ISA CONCEPTUAL WATER SUPPLY AND CONVEYANCE STUDY INCLUDED WITH;'{'_TQ'_'
VTHIS APPLICATION? __No ] s e

(t:no, prowde an explanatton) Appﬁp_nate plans necessary for subm:ssron to
TMWA were not available until the preparation of this appllcatnon Submlttal to
f ‘TMWA will follow _lthe su_bmmal schedule of thrs apy llca’hon“ i SERE

1) Indlcate the source of water, water purveyor and the estlmated water dernand

for the project: Trickee Meadows Water Authority will serve the project aﬂd-","’:' |

the estlmated water demand for the y ro iect will be 94 i_Acre-feeL

. IS A PRELIMINARY SEWER REPORT INGLUBED WITH THIS APPLICATION'?

' a. QPSR A p_rellmrnag sewer report was submitted with this appllcatlon .
|

AA286§‘: R ILE'cho'ouis?f" :



(H no,pmvade an explanaﬁon): -

v

1) Indicate which’ entlty anid facrhty will provude sewer collectlon and treaImenI o

" and ‘provide_ an’ estimate of the project  generated sewage oontnbutlon
. TMWRF The project is. antlcipated to _generate 263 OOO:I: q. g.d ‘

: 2)— 'Prowde a desenptlon of the size, Iocatlon, and ownershtp of ex:shng and i
... proposed sewer:lines connectlng to sewer lines of the sewage: ‘treatment

E _provider;. A'36™ Re J:onal Transmission main located in 1sland: Dnve wnl -

. be connected to for serwce of the s:te wnth a 10” servuce main

' ALL OTHER UTILITIES

ARE POWER LINE RELOCATIONS PROPOSED FDR THIS PROJECT‘? ‘fe's-

(if ves; prowde an explanatlon) -An overhead line. exlsts crossing the site from -

east to west, providing_service to.an existing structure located on APN.011-112-02°
(at 260 Island Drive). This line will_be undergrounded with the proposed.

: develop_rnent and service to the structure at 260 Island Dnve will be Qemetuated'_ L
-t hrough this underqrounded Ime.u-_ — S : o

_ Prowde a descnptlon of the type. and ownersh|p of exashng and proposed publlc and

quasi public utilities proposed to serve the project:___Other than the utility providers

antl_cl ated to‘ rowde servnces Io_the Wln eld Towers . '

h TRAFFIC

t

ISA PRELIMINARY TRAFFIC STUDY INCLUDED WITH THIS APPLICATION'? Yes

(i no, pm\nde an explanahon)

1). Provnde peak hour and average dally traﬁ” ic: volume generatlon estlmates for
: ,jti'ie proposed project. - ] :
.o AM Peak — 255, PM Peak 391 ADT 3 4711

2} Identlfy potential |mpacts to ex15t|ng and proposed streets mtersecuons and

" major transportation. oomdors affected by’ the project and descnbe mlbgatlng

'measures proposed: ' :

. _-.This question: W|II be: addressed through an ex_g_gded traffic.
- .analysls recently scoped with the Cin! of ‘Reno. This- traffic report will
be. orovided directly to all necessa' 2 encies as deemed b__ the City of .

Lo ' .'-‘.-IILIIESCI]DOOIS_B'. 7

identified: above, Sierra Pacific. Power, Charter COmmumcatlons and SBC are_ o




: L
¢

Saint_Ma' 5 Medrcal_Center a

- “noise Ievel)'? No.

| VJ'WILL THE PROPOSED USE GENERATE HAZARDOUS WASTE" No

S e e R B R RS B e R TR
'

Reno)_for additional rewew and consrderatnon in assocrataon wuh the |
, project.

. _"

e PUBLIC AND EMERGENCY SERVICES

Prowde the location and source of garbage dlsposal pohce, ﬁre and. emergency .
- medical service providérs and describe potential impacts the project may have upon the - -
- capacity of these service providers:. Public_and emergency services are currently o
- available within adjacent neighborhoods and are served by Reno Police, Reno =
g Flre and REMSA._ As'this pro ect is an infill development in the urban core of the -
' ity, the impacts upon police fire and emergency services are’ seen to be -

- mimmal as they were or should have been expected. - Garbage service will be -

The nearest ‘emeraency medical service facll
it blocks north of the site, -

provided by Reno Disposal.

1S SUBJECT PROEERTY WITHIN THE AIRPORT NOISE_IM_EM (65 Ldn -

LY

(If S0, explam the: lmpact of the hazard on. the proposed development and descnbe-
N proposed mrtlgatmg measures Such areas must be shown on the subdmsn()n map )

1

1 ﬁ_' If the apphcant has never operated a factllty whlch generates hazardous-_- L

waste, a letfer stating stich; or

2 Iif the applicant has operated a- facllrty which generates ‘hazardous waste, a':i-__- S
o letter including the name and location of any and all facilities the applicant has .

: operated “which generate hazardous waste. . This_letter must include . a.
~ disclosure; of any citations or- oorrectlon notices: |ssued agalns suoh facﬂlty:._ ;
- and their status or dnsposmon S L

.- "'—_-'-‘WlLL THE PROPOSED USE INVOLVE ANY. EXPLOSIVE MATERIAL AS DEFINED lN- =
CiNRS 459.3816 AND 450.383327 No . o | ,

. It so, identify the matenals quantmes stored on site safety precautlons which wﬂ! be-j_'
, _‘:,:,;taken and method ofdlsposal) ST

o e e

o LEscUoo0tss
AA2871 ILIESCU00: >




- PRELIMINARY GRADING AND DRAINAGE PLAN

CHECKLIST
_NAME OF PROJECT
Completeand tem |- S ' S
Lo No._ IT.EMS_REOU!RED

{2

e

3

1

_ V'Project name S
" | Plan drawn on 24" 36" o 30° % 42" sheets usrng

standard engineering scales. Minimum'séile shall be

SR LEY (i) for sites of 10 acres or{ess. . For Iarger srtes
| minimum smle 1*= 100" . _

| Date, north arrow scale and number of sheet in.

reratron to the total nurnber of sheets.

All streets lndroated as either public i or pnvate

The prelrrnmary grading plan for the entire project.
‘stamped-by a-Nevada regrstered civil engineer;---
~ | showing existing.contours at maximum 5 foot '

- | intervals, approxlmate street grades; proposed
‘suiface: dralnage approximate eéxtent of cut and fill
| slopes, and approximate building envelopes andall .-
'| pad elevations sufﬁcrent to convey the |mpact of
) ;gradlng D

:Indrcate any portron of the site wrthln the boundary of
| the project located within Zones "A" or "B" of the ‘
FEMA FloodMap.

A hydrology report and drarnage study of the srte

|- prepared by a Nevada' registered civil engineer - ‘_ S

. -| addressing: Exrstlng location, size, direction and peak R

| discharge for'5 year and 100 year frequency fiows of - | -

each natural major drainage facility within'the -

- .} boundaries of the project clearly designated, together

- | with the area of watershed contributing to each other, -
1 The & and 100 year ﬂows entering and exitrng the -

| site,

.' f-f Ownershrp, drrechon of flow and the approxrmate .
- | location and size of proposed storm dralns and

o ;"sanrtary sewers. . -

8 |All existing drarnage plpes or channels wiﬂ'n dlrectron
ok of flow and SIZE - S
{ '.'
; Fﬂmwﬂﬁgmevﬂomammumﬁow.dnc - ‘

b appg7p  ILIESCUO0O160 -
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- Complete and

Correct

No.

ltern

ITEMS REQUIRED __: .

11

10

12

13

s

17

' Explanahon for. handlmg storm water dralnage and

' development

| The surounding area wrthln 150' of the extenor
-{ boundaries of the proposed subdmsnon showmg the

|2 Topography with ma)amum 5 foot contours
|b. | " Street ] location, names wiidths ofnght-of way, B

le. '-"'Dlrectlon of dramage moludrng all adelI’lan

'~The Iocatlon -size and dlrechon of ﬂow of the nearest,j o
1 avallable pubhc stoiTn drain lnstallatlon ' :

The locateon and outline to scale of each exnshng

building, permanent structure; or other permanent

physical feature, and any aﬂerahon or removal of the L
| same. R o S

Ay

estimated additional runoff generated by the proposed

following:

. _and pavement widths (including exlstung curb.
. cuts of both. sades of the streets). -

: ':'streets or publlc ways.
d - '_.Exrstlng utlllties stmctures efc.

The wndth of nght-of-way and approxnmate grade of
each street (public or private) and alley within and- -

necessary to serve the proposed project, and the - _
radius of all curves and diameters of each eul-de-sao '

bulb, mdudlng a typical | sectlon for eaoh type of. sireet

The width' and approxlmate Iocatron of all existing: or .|
proposed easements, whether:public or private, for
roads;’ dramage sewers lmgatnon or publlc uhlrly

purposes | _
The: Iocabon !snze direction: of ﬂow as well as. eurrent t

and deSIgned capacrty, of the nearest available. pubho
sewer along with the esbmated amount of sewage to _.

be oontnbuted _
All known areas of potent:al hazard rncfudmg butnot |

limited to, earthquake faults; earth slide areas,
avalanche areas or otherwuse hazardous slop&s .

FonnsfPIanrﬂnngevelupmenlApplimﬁonMow doo ‘ |

c!early desrgnated on the map

N

iR

- AA2873  IUESCUODOT6!
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E7 o118 Desngn of publlc and pnvate streets nghts-of-way and
’ collective driveways.such that emergency access by
| firefighting and. other emergency vehicles is practical.
Emergency aecess isto be. des:gnated on the map.

; N Q/ 1 19 | identify siopesmteeper than 3:1 and indicate methods * |
S N N | | :proposed for erosion control and slope stabilization for | =
: l S R - I such slopes, wrth an exp{anatlon ofhow the methods o
- B o 'zweredenved o S

| e g

f') A B e . Sug_qlementallnformatlon

o N N @ 20 - ‘Apprommate area in square feet or acres ofthe L Ll
i S I SEE ,amoun‘lofland utlllzed as follows SN B I
w 1 @) steets . -

: R L by parklng

j R R 1 e common area and[or recreatlon avea

E'i/ 21 <| Soils report, prepared by a Nevada reglstered clvil
IR .engmeer indluding soils charadenstlcs sufficient for
| use in tentative stmetural desagn ie., sh'eetsechons

P oo .buﬂdlng pads etc

& EM///Z | 2 |A proposed plan :ndlcatmg potentlal developmentof
R . -] the entire area if the project is a portlon of afarger -

BA S - ’-holdmg or proposed development. = . _

: 1 S S D/}? - 23 |'Explanation of measures proposed t enmlnate or
P N I B :_mmgate areas; of potential hazard |denhﬁedon plan. j.
l B D/I’Z" 24| Consideration’and explanation of strudure onentatton [
1 '.ﬁ‘iforsolaraceess andforuse B X | R

! : ) . . A

SR 133/ s 25 f"Add:taonal Plan Vew Sheets. Menevercross- _

J i B { | sections are réquired, the applicant must submit an. 2
S b o} | additional plan view which graphically delineates all |- v
: S | (- {areas of proposed.cut and/or fill of greater thanSfeet. SRR TR 4
PN FE ~© > | This sheet shall ulilize the same scale. asthe DRI

Prehm:nary Gradmg and Dralnage Pian s

| FomislPiannlngIDevalopmerdAppﬁesﬂonNomdoc ; - : o 7

o

doo . Am2874 o
o . WIESCUDGOtE2 -




ST ﬁ Reno Development Applrcahon f R
. .. o ‘g[ OwnerandAppltcantAfﬁdawt ' | , o

| ' - H/A I:l Notnce of Moblle Home Parkwﬂhm 750 Ft. _:'-.f ' |
| ' . . M Adv:sory Board lnfon'natlon o Lo
- fo 0 8%rxrsie Plan
L, | BT %'&11" ZomnchmtlyMap“ 7

| ) : IEI 24’136' Colored Dlsplay Map (1 copy for ongmal appl:caﬁon)

.
N

[ N }g{ 24'x36'Non—Colored DlsplayMap
X B%’xﬂ Color Bulldlng Elevahons R

I | 3 JE' 24' X 36* Building Elevatlcns (ongmal to be |n color)
' ] ,_" | _ | | ﬁ/%’ X 36’ Pfellmmajy G@dlng and Dramage Plan
= 24" x 36" Prelzmmary Landscape Plan -

N

| o . .a/ Calculate hand:cap parkmg spaces and reguiar parkmg spaoes

’ SR E’ lnformabon on s|gnage O A
T Ef Exlenorllghtmg [

1 )
A - E’ Slope Map (for hlllSlde developments)

’ ‘ o R, Supporhng lnformatlon ¥ : -
| E/ Appllcaoon Checkllst

IR . ! g .' N -
| Br Check or Money Order (see Planmng Fee Schedule)

B J . PLEASE FOLD ALL 24 X 36" MAPS TO APPROXIMATELY eX 12'

“Origlnal Apphcat:on and anteen Cogaes are requured for th:s apphcahon**
Ay ”‘Addmonal cnptes may be requesmd on 3] case-by-case basls dependent on d:sbibuﬁm mqmrements

':.A'A2_875-‘ s lszi{é.s'_fc:UDW-@;:_:_




o j' ‘ M/mgf,rc/c/ Towcrs |
"I"entatwe Map & Spec:al Use Perrml Application-
S T o Pro]echeseriphon

.. Lu::n::D -R::JD:;ERS_
mmlﬂﬂ-'."'

' 'Pro}ecﬂocation ., D ] i

~The subject properly is between \sand Dnve and Courl Street in. the: Downtown Reno. - The pmpeﬂy s .

-~ located within the newly crezted Redevelopment Area 2 and within the- S Virginia Street Transht Corridor. T
“The subject property Contains 1.362 acresmfour;(il) paroels (APNs: 011-122-03, 08, 07&12) Aneenal -
,:.based\fnc:mly Map shownngmepro;ecl locahen is prowdedonpageaof this Prqedoescnpbon :

»,---Pro}eclOverview e I

Tne ngﬁeld Towers Fro;ed is 2 pnvate resldenhal ofﬁm and retail develnpmem oﬂenng eonunercsal IR
- * housing and public plaza space in the ever growing and improving downtown core, The central locationto . -
* the hean of Reno is accessile to key transportahon comdors through the South Virginia Stréet Transh
‘Corridor; adjacent 10 the Rivérwalk and avetlooks the Truckee River. An appealing mix of retall and office -
uses at the ground fioors and stree: elevations of the buﬂding will service residents of this: prqec! aswellas - =
' surround:ng residents and visitors. The project has been designed with two main structures {one 28and -
one 40 story building). Parking will be provided erirely within a parkmg structure below. the podium (public -
plaza) level.  The public plaza area will provide! opporinnthes to tie in the building, residents and future
- businesses To the festivals and events that have|been so siccesstul in the Wingfield: Park area {such as,
- Arown and the River Festival). ‘The B andimcreaseofpoleamlspaoeforevemsandexlibﬁsm:. :
association with the existing festivals will help %o continie enhancing Reno's urban environment and help™ -
- Reno attain infil and mfensﬂy goals and eb;echves wuthln the Downtown Gore as dnven by the Tmckee o
. S eMeadowsRegnonalPlan _ N ; :

- .\5 | o . Projeel Background and communlty Goall

ot }\ S
- The anﬁeid Tower pro]ect heips promote mainy of’ me goals of the Truckee Meadows Regmal Plan: =~
" through intensification of the regional core, Addmonaﬂy. the ‘properly.lies within the City of Reno Transit .. -
- Coridor Overlay District. Location-indicated andJmandates intensification of this.and other properties inthe. - - .
 surrounding area. so as to (1) creale 8 cntocal mass to te downlown F-eno and (2) generale demand e
,fmma&etransn BRI _ i B x

o The Truckee Meadows Fteg:onal Plan pro\ndes strong. eneouragemeni for. mtenseldense mmed use . ¢
. .Uevelopments within appropriate -locations of: the region. . Appropriate locations are considered o 'be - S
- Downtown and Regional Centers-and TOD’ Goridors. . ,Foliowing " are exeetpts fmm the 2002 Tmekee SR
T Meadow Regnonal Plan provmg this eneouragemem and direction. . :

7-;;fR§g|onaI Form and Pattern~ : ‘ ) BT
.« The Regional Plan:wili promote & Reglonal Form that minimizes. sprawl and. supports 8-
¢ higher intensiy end density of development within designated centers and transh corridors,
The plan will strongly promote mﬁll development wrthm centers and: transn comdors to ophmuze:,-_‘_' ‘
existing infrastruchure.
©»  Intensification within the region willheduected toward defined centers. andTOD comidors. - . .
"« The Regional Plan identifies the desured distribistion of forecasted population and employmem; BT
- ‘growth within the region. Dowintown Centers, Regional Centers andTOD Comidors will -~ ~
accommodate &n-increasing proporlion of the region s populatnon nnd employmem growlh-_ s
overﬂlenextzoyears N ] : : Coa

N ETTEE
- OngnaISubmiltal ‘Februa'ﬂm

e

— _1-.. -
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- WNEGW FI.AM'IN‘ - AARING m -

) : N ngFrcH Towcrs b
o 1e.—1auwa Map ) Speclal Use Permll Appncauon Projectbucrlpﬂon -

Centersandcomdors , : E ' ! ' ' ' SRR
‘e The region will- plan Cenlers anid- TOD Comdors thal aitracl mr:reasmg levels of |nveslmenl and L
. developmem capstal -These Centers and TOD Conidors will grow to absorb.our inoreasmg o
populstion through the development of high-density- residential deveiopment. Gormnerual L
o ‘andmued—usedevelqmemmﬂbecﬁrecred!ooentersanduansdoorndom > -
- s The Downtown Cenlers of the City of Reno andcrty of Sparks, will be’ s:gmﬁcantecmormooenters _
" in_our region. These Tegional mixed-use centers will mc!ude retall hlgh density residenﬁal ‘
L entertainment, office b\ﬂd‘ngsandpubﬁc faollmes o Lo
~ = Downtown Centers, Reggonal Centers and TOD Corridors will be mlxed-use, vx.wal}y aih'am:ve ad . -
-~ Will enticé’ both tocal residents and\nsrtors tothearea day and night. TheseCentersandTOD S
"¢ Comdors will promote muli-modal transportahon and may support a range. of activites .
o _lnctudlng shoppmg, recreation,” di nlng and enteltamment. gaming. and aocmnmodatlun ST
employment, cunutal or communrty events* as well_as provufmg high densny residerrhal -
-» . To accommodate owr changing popuianoos needs the Reglonal Pian wil suppoﬂ the provrsroo of
" more diverse market-rate and atfordable housing products and opportunities, such as, assisted =~
o 'mrearrdoﬂrereldmlyhousmgfac:ﬁhes multlfamlly units, student housing, andmldto high rise .
. apartments, - 1 )
SRt B intense developmem will be dlrectedjto the “]Downtown centers, Regrona! Oen'ters and 'I‘OD-

b e i e £ et

o o - These P!anmng Prmpals are the spnngboand 1or manylof the Goals and Pohcres oi the Reg:onal Plan is- -
@ clear 10 ses that infensifcaton of the urban core area of the Region is desired and directed throtgh these. .
.,5 Y- - . PrincipalsItis the befie! of Wood Rodgers and the prqeci applicant-that the proposed ngﬁeld Towers
e promotes Ihese Hegronai Plan Pnnclpals and will assrsi in the oonbnued progress berng made in: lhe Reno
RenoﬂlsmctsandSpeemthmingAreos t i_ _ :
Theprqeotsﬁe lreswrthmmeCdy ofﬁenoDowmownAreaOvenay Drstnct{see Frgure 1508—30€ﬂreﬁeno: o
Municipal Code, updatedFebmaryQ 2005). Aoopyofﬂns sectronrsprov;ded in. Tab 5 of this application.
“With the_properly location in this Overiay Dnstncl, development on.the site ‘is generally- encouraged for
intensification to meet the' Regional land" use ‘goals for- the area. Some of the specific allowances of
- exemptions from standards City Code include: exemphon from Landscape Area Requn-ements Shading of"
pamsmdmsudents andresrderﬁaiadjacencyslandards Lo L :
S ‘| . : :
la ado‘man to the project s:te locarron vnmm he}ﬂownlown Area Overlay Dzsmcl, the propeny is also Iocated ‘
within-a City. of Reno Transit Coridor. (the South Vnrgnma Street Transit Corridor). The Truckee: Meadows
Regional Plan provides direction for developmem in the Regional. . Specific references are ‘made fo mixed
* use and-high density residential opportumhes wrthm the Downtown Centers. Fleglona! Cenrers and Tfansu
Onemed Developrnent (T OD) comdors i . l O i

The propeny was recently added to the Cﬂy of Reno: Redevelopment District in Hedevelopmenl Dsstnd 2.
As such, the incremental tax benefits from the cionstmctl;m of this prqed will strongly benefit. lhe district.

*mThe project site is NOT within ﬂreInmkaeBwer Corridor or Dowmown Riverfront Speoral _rpose District. - p
S - This-district-has special restrictions to height and seibaoks trom the:urban core area; ad;awnl to the Hrver '
) .. | Thrsandafeworherpropemmhavebeenlenmdmrsﬂzsina. '

-  _ AA2877 ;:|L_|§§E:Uooo1ss.', N
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S T R w.ngacaaTowm |
| ’ WODD RODCERS . Tem:atlveMap&SpeclaIUsePennllAppI!caﬂon Pro[ectDescﬂpﬂon

!
(

= Sl S

EMNGINEERING - PLAMMEGG - AT .Ul\fml: :

,SunnnaryomeposedDevelopmem ‘3"' k R L

: : Ail . : O,

. Theproject ste cmstsoi 1.362 acres of Iandiowled beiween Is!and Drive and coun StreetinDowntown. Lt

. Reno, just east ol Adington Avenue. - The \Mngﬁeld Towers ‘will consist of two architecturally matching .
- tnwers (one of 40 stories and one of 28 stones] The !ullowmg uses are included in the proposed towers

1‘499 resvdenhal (condomlmum )unrts L 3 S :

- '824 parking spaces, entirely contained within 2 pakag shucthe

-"'28,300¢ SF of Public Plaza Space at the Podium Level .

40,500z SF of Office and Retal Space | * -
: Amnter galﬂen with a 75-foot lap poo! srhlaiedon topofthe 28 story tower _

. Ampyufﬂmetentahvemapexh‘brts:sprowdedmreduced suelnTabSandmful!sczeaﬁad\edtomis -
- apphcahon package Architectural elevahons have also| been prcmded m thss appiicahon Sl :

" MasterPianDesmahon S TounstCon\%merclal

 ProposedlotsfUnits 1499 Condolmlmum Unns rangmg in size from 378¢ SF to
I 7014;tSFandanaverageumlStzeot1,243¢sf

.9 ~ Setbacks & Lot Sizes - - The CB zone allows for o-oat: seﬂ)ad(s on. all sades of the -
T : w0 LT properly. jiThe: project incorporates O-foot setbacks for the
" sublemanegn struchiral portion of the building wntammg the
. Parking Garage and some retail space, which is exposed on
. -the_downhilliver side of the property. The “setbacks 10
. . propery hne for thetwotowars tange from jusl over 2&feet10-
, ‘ -overBO—feet L .
~ PedestianAccess - . - -’,Pedestnan"'acoes will be prowded mto and through the -
o IR 3 pmpenygmundsmmugnapubucpiaza I
o Pakieg - Awol 824 parking spaces are prowdad in. the paing . -
L e -'stmdureatﬂlebaseofthe bulding. Dspending upon the.
calcu!ahon:memod ‘used, between 407 and:679 parking
- spaces are,requured fo meet the minimum Gode Standards. -
- The emess‘pariung:smtended for use and benefit by others in
the areas.’ Please-see the Parking Section of this Project - - -
:Descnphon for additional details regardmgmeprowsmnoiahd' ‘
required parkmg spao&s L o

Projéct Signage: o Project Sngrlnage is proposed on both the’ Court Strest and
P _ - .. lsland Drive " entrances/accesses o the prqec:t and -wit .
R _oonfonn tothe CB .standards. . — o

|
1;

AA2879 "‘"’55’??’500157'




S | w.ngr.glaTowc.-s

eo LUDDD RDDGER:S Tentatlve Mep&Speclal UseFennl‘tAppﬂcnﬂon ProjedDescnpbon S

o PTOIBG‘ HetgmaﬂdAI'Chﬂedure - :The propoeed Wingfield Towers area Please refer- to the o
- , - reolored - bur‘tcrng elevations provrded in: Tab 3 to view. the FUTEENES
“proposed arctttectural character : ,

' ProjectMaintenance: . . 'Common AreawmuntormeMngﬁethowersrspropesedto
B -j.be mamtarned through an assocratm orotheracoeptahle
o RequestsoftheClty - =y iiéi L
S Three requests are sought wrth this applrcatrort * .'
_ e .
(1) Atentatrvemaptora499 unit hrgh nee oondomrmum devetopmentcontelmngtt unrtsotretaland o
~officespace. . § _ - :
@ A special use pemit for hillerde development l ,
3 ASpematusepennnforwtsandtills i
Tentettve MapReguest . ‘;

- As-noted prevrously, the Wirigfield. Towers proposes 499 resrdenhal oondormnrum unrt& An addrtron 1t o
‘unrtsarepropoeedtooontamretarlandotﬁoeq)aoe : o A

""t

7 Build o‘QgUmtandNon-resdentratAneas SRR R
- , S e ;.UnrtorUseType . Nurnber -of Umts or :

. L ) SquarEFOOtﬂge AL
'StudroUmts. o o 7t Unlts |
1Bedoomlnts . | . 263Unis ,
- | 2 Bedroom Units .~ 144 Units |
-abedroomUrlits ', o T Units:
Penthouses . : o - AKnits |
- Total Hesrdenhal Units . o408 Unis |
Otﬁee&HetatISane o 40500¢SF'

o | l'
Amenittes o o !l

The amenities’ mctuded in the thgﬁetd Towers tnotude 3 heath duh o wellness center, 754001 tong rap';-".

pool and 28,300+ SF of Public Plaza area at; the: podrum level. " It has yet 10-be determined whether: the.

health club/welingss-center will be a commercxal venture or it rt will be. open onty to Ihe reedents ot the_ .
thgﬁeld Towemprqect S “ . R ,

Vehicutar and Pedestnan Access : | |

Access to the parkmg garage area will be accommodated through Court Street and Island Drive. Pedestnan :
access will be serves similarly off both of these streets through stairways:and elevators, Access to the

Public Plaza at the* podrum level of the Wingﬁetd Tower pro]ect will be availabte trom both Court Street and

Island Drive. ... R [T

Anzggy  'WESCUOOtER.



.. LLJDE:ID -ﬁr::ocsr:z:s_ Tentzﬁveuap&SpeclaIUsePermnAppllcaruon Pmleclbescrlpﬁon

ENQINEERING - m MAPFHG  BUMVEY NG

- Paﬂqng mllbeprovsdedlnaparkmg garagehermmthe proposed towers. The padonggarage area willbe o
subleranean when viewed trom Court Stree:msuslummhesgmwhmmmelshndbnvesdeo!me

. st AccesslomegamgewﬂlbepmwdedhwnGmﬂStreeiandts!andDme |

Thetotal fumber of parking space provided i e ga!ag'e|5824 The parhng requurements Iortheplqeot
: rangefrom407spacestoﬁ795paces dependmgupmwhemercodeal!owedreducbonsmeusedmmeg Do SR
.. project. Theamamwhachﬂmepro;echsloca:addoshavesomepaﬂmglssues,wmmﬂﬂlspfqed-“lsbf P
* = thi§ reason that the parking pmwdedmtrmmpmposedegﬁeidTowergarageismoremmample 0 e
' meet the demand of the pmposedTmersaﬂhprowdepossﬂ:leaddhon&padongloracﬁmaeﬁuent_ el
" uses (such as the Park Tower Condominiums) on for special events al Wingfield Park (such as the Truckee
- “River Festival, Artown, etc). . Thevanancemeqmredspaceswbasedupmmegenera!oodepmsonsﬁ__
--ioruﬂstreetpadongmtransﬂcomdoraleas. '

‘i."' _‘
I

‘ RMC Sechon 16.08, 405(c)(4)(b) allows for hmtdings over 65 foet in hengm to reduce Ihe overa!l paking -
“requirement by 40%. Residential uses maytalmthe 40% reduchon of provnde one space per dwelling unit,
; vdudlevensl&ss 7 . ‘l .
j"-'The follawmg tables .show the various parkng uequtremem calculahons allowed hy Code. me first table AR
~ calculates the Standard Downtown Parking Requirement,-aiso showing the - TOD .allowed (40%) reduced” L
o pammg requirement. The second table (Allemative 2) calwlates the TOD parking- requirement # 1 parlung_.l SRR RS S
: spaoe per uni‘t Is prcmded ratherthan usmg the Standard Dawntown Parkmg Flequuemnt -

a. Afmauve 1- Standard Downtown Code andTOD Heduced Parkmg nequuements (40% Heducnan]
Use - R UartsorSF Mulhplier f;Parking gui
[ StudoUns - o _O9perunt - |- :
2'Bedroom Units - - 15perunt ?‘-'j‘.‘2163ﬁaoes? i R
3 bedroom Units - 1S5perunit. | - 26Spaces
“Penthouses “i5perunt | 6Spaces | -
- | Guest - 1A0units - | 50 Spaces’ |

] Ofﬁce 1/3858F - | 54Spaces -
: Downtown Code Flequired Parki .| -678 Spaces..
TOD Aflowed - 40% Reduclion - B 27165;)3035 N
-|.TOD Reduced Parking Req"t_'lir'ement' 407 Spaees I

AA2881" S f‘?_ﬂ%lESCUOOMGQ o
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LlJDCID RC‘IDGERS

Wlngiclc.lf:] Towc.rs .
Tentaﬂve Map & Speclat Use Pen-nn Applicsbon Pro]ect Descnpﬁon

'r : -A!temative 2= TOD Parkmg Hequ:remem (1 Parhn. Spaee Per Unit Calculabon)

: Use Umts orSF 'MultiPllef - Parhng_eg_ﬁ uired |

[ StudioUnits™ ot |0 dperunt - |° 71Spaces |

) '1Bedroannits'.""." ' ‘ 2n ' “t1perunil -~ - | - -263Spaces - | -

| 2 Bédroom Units o 14 tperunit: % .1443pacesf

3 bedroom Units - R Y ~ 1perunt: '] . 178paces- | -

| Penthouses -~ A B B . _iperunit | - 4Spaces | . -
| Guest . - o k1o 1M0units - | 50Spaces. o). .
- I Ofice I P0,60% 8, © - {f3B55F: - | ‘54Spae&s; _}

- | Retail "c.';19,a1?:"_9fb': “none-____ | .- 0Spaces

{Total D _',:;;: .' s aoaSpaees

‘ 'Accessible Paﬂcgg o . L

Paﬂung reduchons have been aﬂowed in the dawntown and TOD areas fo encourage the use ui alternatwe '

transportation modes. Unfortunately, a viable, dependable mass transit systém does nol currently exist.in

" Reno. While it is applauded that appropriate planning s taking place. through the Regional Center and TOD
' plans.itrsforeseenmatv;ahie mass: transmssmlanwnberofyearsaway As such, meappﬁcantls-
~ proposing parking in excéss of the Code requ:remems It should be understood that excess parking is
-~ allowed as Jong as t is contained within a parlnngstmch:re Section18.08.405(c){4)(c.) states that ‘Parking .~
~in excess ofcode’ minimums myonlybeprowdedmpaMngstmchuesolwiﬂnnmemveiopeloe Lo
building.” - The community benefit from. this excess parking could: help:to address some of the existing: -
~ parking issues in the area, such as at the Park Tower Condominiums.. Appropriate agreements for use-of -

- the spaces would need to be executed, bulil is memtentultl'ne applicant that, i additonal parking can be -
. provided that it beniefit the exts‘tmg area and'résidents; Possible additional benefit uses for the excess ,
parking could be the ever-growing and successhul special events held in ngﬁeld Pat‘k {Rolhn on the Hwer '

= Cormrl Senes The Truekee River Festwal and Arnown to name a few). B S

JI

! I
. (

Aeeessible parkmg is requared ata rale of 9 spaces ior 401, 500 requared spaces The parklng garage: .

© provides 17 total accessible spaces. while only 8 spaces are - reqmred As euch ‘the requlrement for ‘
':._aecessibleparlmepacems met. L o _

o S&lal Use Pennll HM Tei ‘]: :
' Requested w:th th:s appﬁcahm are two. specxal use pem}hs

o _],—

-{1) - Hiside Development andi; o

‘(2} Culs inexcess of 20 feet. K
S

Hlllsme Deveiopmeru Special Use Permli i : ;
. . €| .

The sub;ect property. due to ex:shng slnpas requires. a spemal use permll for Hillside. Development :

Apprex:rnately 26% of the total site area eumams slopes over 15%

“Wood Flodgershas ana1yzed the proposed ngﬁeld Towers pm;edwmmspem to the- exasungﬂlﬂs:de S
Ordinance. The subject property has a Céniral Busmess (CB) zoning designation and no maximum:density
‘ requurements mereiore the sub;ecl propeny is not subject to:the H‘ﬂs1de ‘Development Densﬂy Reducllon_ :

o _-'_:'_AA2'882: ILIESCU000170
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“ ° i

o i . -7 L...i?ao RooceRs 'rumuapasmhwsepmmppucaﬂon Pro]ectDescdption
| ’ .' re%lrements A table :dentlfvlﬂg Reqmred Opeﬂ Smfhas been prepared It shouicl be noted that the '7 . f ' .' . ';,f,:
L pmposed developmem oonforms to openspace reqmemems vnthm the ordinance | S R

,L

REQUIRED DPEN SPACE IN Hﬂ.LS!DE DEVEI.OPIIENTS

DPMSPMW T
(SqmFeet) S
.‘_t.524-.6‘: ‘-_-:i'-. R
2178
22869 - |
7424

' SIopeRnnge — COIumnA.Mlntmum T
.| OpenSpace (%)

018% | 0 - -
cBI0% | 5% -
201-25% 5%

251-30% | .--. T75%.
. Greaterthan30% | - 100% +1,586.
' o : TotatRequiredComnonAreaOpen R 1 !
T . Spaoe '7,731.9: i

rTheresuttsoftmstabteshowmatammnmumot?'lsasquarefeelofmnunonareawmspaoe{sreqwmd‘--

“"based on the slopes on the project site. 'lhetota!arrmofPubﬁcPtazaareaprowdedonmepocrumlevet IR

‘ol the devalopmentls.".aaaoisquare fest. 'nus amomt ofopen SpaOBISIﬂ excms otthe amount requnmd,-_j R
- perﬂteHn!lsudeOrdmanee R - C ce

..“,_ . .

| - A copy of the slope analys:s for this prqect wnth the-srte tayout overtald on the cotonzed slope map tS"‘ e
, ‘,j :'provnded in Tab 5 of this applmhon package ; L , '

o ,.‘Cuts and Flll Speclal Use Permll

Co "fiThe applmahm requests-a special use perrmt fof cut i n e_xoess of 20 feet. It shoutd be noted that the cut R
‘ i,_j;areas on the site will be filled in with the base of me:proposed buildings. This base: area wtl[ house six St
_ ': stcmes of parking garage, as wetl as some res:denttal aml retatl space. o T
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:-,‘,anberof'l‘wers R b g o o 2towers.‘_ B
E“Tm R o "’_,4()stones -

,’TalalHes»demﬂUnns o ' CoMe e dognits
HesndanhalUnﬂsEaslTwer oW T e 3s4Unks.
ResdermalUnRSWmever e j e sl
HesndenbalUmts(AwessedfromGarage) YL 4Uns

AddrbmaIUnﬂs(HetailandOIﬁoe) R ) L S AtUnils -

.. RetailUnits - ST T o gUnits
Office Unkts ST S T 3Units.

' Buildinngerage ‘ S , - 53A20sSF

Residential Area (i ncludapnvateierraoesatlevels 18 31 and 38] : 55804&1 SF

Office and Retall Area - R S 404202 SF

: Medlanmdﬂoomkea o if o 1_fi'1: e 3235115]:1 :

'_:_GrossDenﬁty

d. - AverageLutS;ze sl o o 1243:SF
3 - - MinmumlotSze - . o o o U lammep
' | Ma’“"‘”""""s'“ e T L T4 sF

.PaﬂmgSpacesRequued o U . 407 Spaces
. “Accesshie Parking Heqmred R A . '9Spaces
. -AwewbleParhngProwded ) S I A7 Spaces”

- 399-.9 DU/Acre
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

JOHN ILIESCU, JR. individually, JOHN

ILIESCU, JR. and SONNIA SANTEE Electronically Filed
ILIESCU, as Trustees of the JOHN Aug 11 2016 02:07 p.m.
ILIESCU, JR. AND SONNIA ILIESCU Tracie K. Lindeman
1992 FAMILY TRUST AGREEMENT, Clerk of Supreme Court
Appellants
Supreme Court No. 68346
VS. Washoe County Case No. CVVO07-
00341
MARK B. STEPPAN, (Consolidated w/CV07-01021)
Respondent.

APPELLANTS’ SUPPLEMENTAL APPENDIX
VOLUME XIIlI

Appeal from the Second Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada
in and for the County of Washoe County
Case No. CVV07-00341

G. MARK ALBRIGHT, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 001394
D. CHRIS ALBRIGHT, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 004904
ALBRIGHT, STODDARD, WARNICK & ALBRIGHT
801 South Rancho Drive, Suite D-4
Las Vegas, Nevada 89106
Tel: (702) 384-7111/ Fax: (702) 384-0605
gma@albrightstoddard.com
dca@albrightstoddard.com
Counsel for Appellants
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72 | 04/17/08 | Additional Exhibits to Applicants/ X1, | AA2572-2912
Defendants’ Motion for Partial Summary| XIlI
Judgment not previously attached with
original Appellants Appendix including
Exhibits 1, 3, pages 25-152 of Exhibit 7,
8, 9, pages 13-56 of Exhibit 12
73 | Taken | Deposition Transcript of Mark Steppan X | AA2913-2987
09/29/08 | on September 29, 2008 (Pages 1-75)
Filed
12/11/13
74 | Taken | Deposition Transcript of Mark Steppan X1, | AA2988-3279
02/16/10 | on February 16, 2010 (Pages 1-203), XV
Filed | including Exhibits
12/11/13
75 | Taken | Deposition Transcript of Mark Steppan X1V, | AA3280-3958
03/02/10 | on March 2, 2010 (Pages 1-420), XV,
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76 | Taken | Deposition Transcript of Mark Steppan | XVII, | AA3959-4402
03/03/10 | on March 3,2010 (Pages 421-519), XVIII,
Filed | including Exhibits XIX
12/11/13
77 | 09/27/12 | Order Granting Mark Steppan’s Motion | XIX | AA4403-4408
for Reconsideration and Denying
Motion to Dismiss, and Order Granting
John lliescu's Motion for
Reconsideration and Denying [Hale
Lane’s] Motion for Summary Judgment
78 | 02/14/13 | Second Stipulation to Stay Proceedings XIX | AA4409-4411

Against Defendant Hale Lane and Order
to Stay and to Dismiss Claims Against
Defendants Dennison, Howard and
Snyder without Prejudice
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Appellant’s Appendix, including
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72 | 04/17/08 | Additional Exhibits to Applicants/ XIl, | AA2572-2912
Defendants’ Motion for Partial Summary| XIlI
Judgment not previously attached with
original Appellants Appendix including
Exhibits 1, 3, pages 25-152 of Exhibit 7,
8, 9, pages 13-56 of Exhibit 12
79 | 10/27/14 | Additional Exhibits to Defendants’ XIX, | AA4412-4761
Motion for NRCP 60(b) Relief From XX
Court’s Findings of Fact, Conclusions
of Law and Decision and Related
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Appellant’s Appendix, including
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77 | 09/27/12 | Order Granting Mark Steppan’s Motion | XIX | AA4403-4408
for Reconsideration and Denying
Motion to Dismiss, and Order Granting
John Iliescu's Motion for
Reconsideration and Denying [Hale
Lane’s] Motion for Summary Judgment
78 | 02/14/13 | Second Stipulation to Stay Proceedings XIX | AA4409-4411

Against Defendant Hale Lane and Order
to Stay and to Dismiss Claims Against
Defendants Dennison, Howard and
Snyder without Prejudice




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Pursuant to NRAP 25(c), I hereby certify that I am an employee of
ALBRIGHT, STODDARD, WARNICK & ALBRIGHT, and that on this ﬁ
day of August, 2016, the foregoing APPELLANTS’ SUPPLEMENTAL
APPENDIX VOLUME XIII, was filed electronically with the Clerk of the
Nevada Supreme Court, and therefore electronic service was made in accordance

with the master service list as follows:

Michael D. Hoy, Esq.

HOY CHRISSINGER KIMMEL P.C.
50 West Liberty Street, Suite 840
Reno, Nevada 89501

(775) 786-8000
mhoy@nevadalaw.com

Attorney for Respondent Mark Steppan
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